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Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

Stevenson, Wong & Co.
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The Landmark
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Hong Kong
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Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) Company Limited
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Hong Kong
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Comprehensive Service Building Science & Technology Innovation Base
No. 80, Lanyue Road, Science City
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Guangzhou

PRC

MARKETING CENTER IN CHINA

8/F, Zone B, Energy Saving and Environmental Protection Building
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Guangzhou
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

HEI12A31HIEEE
Year ended 31 December
20204 20194
ARBTFT AR®ETFT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
A Revenue 521,561 398,558
FRETISIRADEF] Profit before income taxation 56,944 72,455
FREMNR2E @ 4EEE Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 44,364 58,943
AANTER ANELERGF K Profit and total comprehensive income
SHEUWEEAREE for the year attributable to owners of
the Company 44,364 58,943
BEKRERE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
¥12H31H
As at 31 December
20204 20194F
ARBFT AR®ETFTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE Assets
ERIEE Non-current assets 51,031 45,464
TMENEE Current assets 448,140 355,569
BEEE Total assets 499,171 401,033
Emkas Equity and liabilities
ErIasE Non-current liabilities 13,832 2,891
I =R Current liabilities 242,729 267,712
= REElR Total liabilities 256,561 270,603
T ARER Total equity 242,610 130,430
MBEERE Net current assets 205,411 87,857
—E_DEFR
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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6 China New Energy Limited

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
China New Energy Limited (the “Company” or “CNE") and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”), | am pleased to report that the Group recorded
its well performance and the 5th consecutive year of generating profit after
tax (“Net Profit”), even in the extraordinary year ended 31 December
2020 (“Reporting Year”).

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Our total revenue has substantially increased from RMB398.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to RMB521.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020, representing an increase of 30.9% which was
due to the completion of projects in our order book for the provision of
ethanol production system technology integrated services in the ethanol
fuel, alcoholic beverages and other industries respectively.

Our Net Profit decreased from RMB59.2 miillion for the year ended 31
December 2019 to RMB44.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2020, representing a decrease of 25%. The decrease was due to the
incurrence of some exceptional expenses such as fees relating to the
de-listing from the Alternative Investment Market (the “AIM”) of the
London Stock Exchange and the re-listing of the shares of the Company
(the “Shares”) on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) at the same time during the year.
Although Net Profit decreased, the listing on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing”) was a new start and a milestone for the Company.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

PROSPECTS

The Board and | are optimistic about the long-term future of CNE.
Although the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (the “COVID-19”) in early
2020 has created economic uncertainty and imposed negative impacts
on most industries, with China’s good control against the COVID-19
pandemic and the worldwide use of vaccines, | believe people will defeat
the pandemic and the global economy will return to normal development.
The policy, proposed by China during the 13th Five Year Plan period
of adding 10% biofuel ethanol to gasoline nationwide is still being
implemented. Meanwhile, investment in biofuel ethanol and upgrading
of original equipment in production enterprises is still advancing, which
can help maintain the Company’s current business volume. At the Fourth
Session of the 13th National People’s Congress in China, the Chinese
government’s work report has put forward a GDP goal of 6% growth in
2021. China has robust development potential, while its economic and
technological development are still at an important period full of strategic
opportunities. Internationally, with the United States re-signing the Paris
Agreement, it is a consensus that the mankind needs to strive together
to cope with the challenges of climate change. Thus, focus on carbon
emission reduction has been strengthened around the world, while
Mainland China and Hong Kong have announced the goals of carbon
neutralisation by 2060 and 2050, respectively. The Chinese and Hong
Kong governments will continue to put more efforts on the application
of clean energy as well as energy conservation and emission reduction,
thereby helping to direct the enterprises to have a sustained demand for
energy conservation and emission reduction, as well as technology and
equipment upgrade, which is a favourable opportunity for the industry
where the Company operates. The Company is considering to expand
its business in the fields of clean energy and new energy, so as to seize
opportunities to increase its sustainable business.

| am confident in the outlook for future years and the investment value
of the Shares which is expected to be reflected in the medium to long
term market valuation of the Group. Looking ahead, the Group will adhere
to prudent financial management and cost control, and will continue to
explore good business and investment opportunities to drive its business
growth.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my appreciation to the
valued shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”), supportive
business partners and associates, insightful management and dedicated
staff for all their contributions and commitments towards the Company. |
would also like to thank the Board for their invaluable advice in steering
the Group through these exciting times.

Yu Weijun
Chairman and Executive Director

22 April 2022
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8 China New Energy Limited

BUSINESS REVIEW

Shares of the Company were listed on the AIM market of the London
Stock Exchange between May 2011 and July 2020. On 23 October 2019,
Shareholders had passed a resolution at an extraordinary general meeting
to approve the cancellation of the admission of the Shares to be traded
on the AIM and, in the best interests of the Company, to proceed with an
application for the Listing.

As a result of the remarkable hard work of the Company’s management
team and other professional parties, on 15 July 2020 (the “Listing Date”),
Shares were delisted from AIM and were successfully listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. This earmarked another milestone for the
Group.

The Company is a leading ethanol production system producer in
the PRC. The Group primarily provides integrated services including
engineering design, equipment manufacturing, installation and
commissioning and subsequent value-added maintenance for the core
system of ethanol production system in China’s ethanol fuel and alcoholic
beverage industries. The Group is able to undertake “turn-key” projects for
ethanol produces as a main contractor. In 2020, the Group conducted two
new fuel ethanol construction projects for Harbin Hongzhang Bioenergy
Limited and Heilongjiang Wanlirunda Bio-tech Limited. The Group has
also conducted several up-grade projects for fuel ethanol, edible alcohol
and medicinal alcohol producers.

In early 2020, COVID-19 pandemic broke out and spread rapidly
around the world. Thanks to the several epidemic prevention measures
implemented by the Center for Disease Control and Prevention and the
Group’s every effort to comply with the draconian regulations imposed by
the local government, the Company’s personnel could return to work and
carry out production safely without too much disruption. After returning
to work, in order to achieve annual objectives and tasks, the Company
continued to adhere to the customer-oriented service concept, focused
on production and implementation, overcame various difficulties, actively
explored the market, deepened internal management, and improved the
quality of products and services. At the end of the Reporting Year, the
Company has achieved the expected target of revenue. The outbreak of
COVID-19 epidemic has no material impact on the Company’s business
operations in 2020.

During 2020, the Group secured 33 contracted projects with a total
contract value of approximately RMB659.3 million and completed 26
projects. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 40 backlog projects
with a total contract value of approximately RMB722.7 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the period, the business license of Guangdong Zhongke Tianyuan
New Energy Science and Technology Co. Ltd.* (BB SR X T#sE ARl
HBRAT), an enterprise of domestic headquarter, was registered as
one license with multiple addresses. In order to unify the expression of the
address of domestic headquarter, the address of domestic headquarter
is now unified as Unit 210, 2/F, Comprehensive Service Building Science
& Technology Innovation Base, No. 80, Lanyue Road, Science City,
Guangzhou High-tech Industrial Development Zone, Guangzhou, PRC.

Research and Development

The Group has established a solid reputation in terms of advanced
technology and has proven track records in the ethanol production
system industry in the PRC. Over the years, the Group has been
devoted to research and development to drive improvement and
innovation in technologies to be applied to the core system of the ethanol
production system, and intends to continue to invest in our research and
development efforts.

As at the date of this annual report, the Group has 34 patented
technologies, which have been incorporated into its production
procedures. In addition, the Group has submitted 19 patent registrations
in China and one patent registration in Brazil, and is engaged in two
ongoing research and development projects. We believe our advanced
technologies and research and development capabilities have equipped
us with a competitive edge which allows us to continue to secure contracts
from customers through our provision of high-quality and innovative
ethanol production system technology integrated services.

OUTLOOK

In 2022, it is believed that with the promotion of vaccination, the
COVID-19 pandemic will be gradually contained and the global economy,
especially the Chinese economy, will recover. The development plan of fuel
ethanol in China is still proceeding in an orderly manner as planned, and
the Company will strengthen its management to maintain a stable growth
of its Engineering, Procurement, Construction business. In the 14th Five-
Year Plan, the Chinese government continued to focus on developing the
real economy to unswervingly build a country with strong manufacturing
capabilities, which will promote our green manufacturing business. The
Company will invest certain resources in product manufacturing and
operation to increase its operating income. In addition, the Company
will strengthen its scientific and technological innovation and increase
investment in research and development. In addition to completing the
major scientific research projects in Guangdong Province as planned, the
Company will make moderate investment in cellulose ethanol technology
to maintain its capabilities in scientific and technological innovation.

* For identification purpose only
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China New Energy Limited

As far as our business development is concerned, in addition to
maintaining the existing business in mainland China, we will also expand
into other territories and diversify into new businesses.

Leveraging on the Central government’s goal in “carbon peak and
carbon neutralization”, the Company will develop projects in hydrogen
production from ethanol and methanol with a focus on the development
of an industrial chain, and propose the product equipment plan of “in-
situ hydrogen production and liquid phase hydrogen production” for the
innovation of hydrogen energy development direction.

The Company will solve the issues of hydrogen energy storage,
transportation and safety, actively develop international business, and
carry out marketing according to the ideas of stabilizing Southeast Asian
business, implementing business in African continent and developing
South American business. We believe that our management team and
partners will work together to provide high-quality services for customers
and create new achievements for the Company.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

During the Reporting Year, the Company realised a total operating revenue
of RMB521.6 million (2019: RMB398.6 million), an increase of 30.9%
over the year ended 31 December 2019, and a net profit of RMB44.4
million (2019: RMB59.2 million), which decreased by 25% compared
to the year ended 31 December 2019. The sustained growth of revenue
indicated the minimal impact of the epidemic on the Company’s business
and the continuous growth in demand for ethanol production systems.
The decrease of net profit was mainly due to the increase of RMB24.8
million in the administrative expenses and net impairment losses increase
of RMB12.7 million on financial and contract assets in the Reporting Year.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales increased by approximately RMB99.7 million, or 34.5%,
from approximately RMB289.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately RMB388.8 miillion for the Reporting Year. Such
increase was mainly driven by the corresponding increase in revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit increased by approximately RMB23.3 million,
or 21.3%, from approximately RMB109.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately RMB132.7 million for the
Reporting Year. The Group’s overall gross profit margin decreased
from approximately 27.5% for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately 25.4% for the Reporting Year. The decrease in gross profit
margin was mainly due to a sizable contract priced at competitive price by
a recurring customer.

Selling and marketing expenses

The Group’s selling and marketing expenses increased by approximately
RMBO0.2 million, or 2.3%, from approximately RMB8.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB8.8 million for the
Reporting Year, mainly due to the increase of bonus for marketers as a
result of improvement of the Company’s operation.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses increased by approximately RMB24.8
million, or 89.5%, from approximately RMB27.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately RMB52.5 million for the Reporting
Year. Such increase was mainly attributable to the increase in legal and
professional fees and non-recurring listing expenses.

Net impairment losses on financial and contract assets

The Group’s net impairment losses on financial and contract assets
increased by approximately RMB12.6 million, or 350%, from RMB3.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB16.2
million for the Reporting Year, mainly due to the uncertainty of the further
development of COVID-19 epidemic that the Company had cautiously
increased the expected loss rate of trade receivables and contract assets.

—ZE_EEER
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Other income and other gains — net

The other income and other gains — net decreased by approximately
RMB1.1 million from approximately RMB4.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately RMB3.1 million for the Reporting Year,
since there was no gain on disposal of returned goods in 2020.

Finance costs — net

The Group’s net finance costs remained stable for the Reporting Year, due
to a stable use of loan facilities.

Income tax expense

The income tax expense decreased by approximately RMBO.7 million
from approximately RMB13.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately RMB12.6 million for the Reporting Year, primarily
attributable to the decrease in the taxable profit during the Reporting
Year. Guangdong Zhongke Tianyuan New Energy Science and Technology
Co. Ltd.* (BRHARKTHEREIRABRAT), being a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company which was qualified as High and New
Technology Enterprise in 2019, was entitled to a preferential income tax
rate of 15%. The effective tax rate for 2020 was 22.1%, which was higher
than the China corporate preferential income tax rate of 15%. This was
mainly due to the loss position from increasing of listing expenses incurred
by the Company, reducing the profit before tax of the Group.

Profit for the year
As a result of the foregoing, for the Reporting Year, the Group recorded a
net profit of approximately RMB44.4 million as compared to a net profit of

approximately RMB59.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2019,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB14.8 million or 25%.

* For identification purpose only
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL OFFERING

The net proceeds from the Listing, after deduction of the underwriting
commission and actual expenses paid by the Group in connection thereto,
were approximately HK$20 million. After the Listing, a part of these
proceeds has been applied for working capital and on-going research and
development projects.

The below table sets out the proposed and actual applications of the net
proceeds from the Listing Date up to 31 December 2020:

LHHEEBE

2020
BRREZZFE 12A31H 1220205
FRiSFRIE=T &) FRigmRIA 12A31H
m& BRAR REVBAEER
BEAT BEAT BEAT

Actual use

of proceeds
Planned use from the Unutilised
of proceeds  Listing Date to balance as at
as set out in 31 December 31 December
the Prospectus 2020 2020
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million

MM BRI IEE

Strengthening financial position to

BN (80%) pay for project costs (80%) 16 11 5
AIFETEE BE(10%) Funding the research and

development projects (10%) 2 2 0

—MREEEE(10%) General working capital (10%) 2 2 0

REREFEE > LHPMSREFRERREATH
HAZ2020F6 530 RVERERR (HBIRETR)) F
RENSNEA SRR RI EES) -

BEE2020F12H318 » LHAISTIRFERETAIIS
BRBTEEDA R T ARBAMSRERERE
FAIRIT - AR EHERIBIREZFIESIA AR
BHER NPRISUR PR - EER T A AER
IEBERAEEFEK

During the Reporting Year, the net proceeds from the Listing were utilised
in the manners as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 30
June 2020 (the “Prospectus”) and there has been no change in the use
of proceeds.

Up to 31 December 2020, approximately HK$15 million out of net
proceeds from the Listing had been utilised. The remaining unutilised
net proceeds were deposited in the bank. The Company intends to apply
the rest of net proceeds in the manner as stated in the Prospectus. The
Directors will constantly evaluate the Group’s business objectives and
specific needs.

—EDEER
Annual Report 2020
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China New Energy Limited

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Shares were successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 15 July 2020. On 23 September 2020, 38,786,855 ordinary
Shares were allotted and issued pursuant to exercise of share options
under the pre-IPO share option schemes adopted on 17 October 2017 by
the Directors and employees of the Group each at a price of GBP0.015.
The share capital of the Company comprised only ordinary Shares. As at
31 December 2020, there were a total of 589,758,898 Shares in issue.

The Group's operation and investments were financed principally by cash
generated from its business operations and equity contribution from the
Shareholders.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had net current assets of
approximately RMB205.4 million (2019: approximately RMB87.9 million)
and bank deposits, balances and cash of approximately RMB37.3 million
(2019: approximately RMB28.8 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's total equity attributable to owners
of the Company amounted to approximately RMB242.6 million (2019:
approximately RMB130.4 million), and the Group’s total debt comprising
lease liabilities amounted to approximately RMB256.6 million (2019:
approximately RMB270.6 million). The Directors have confirmed that the
Group will have sufficient financial resources to meet its obligations as they
fall due in the foreseeable future.

Gearing ratio is calculated based on the net debt divided by total capital.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings plus convertible notes plus lease
liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as total
equity as shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus net debt. The
gearing ratio of the Company was not applicable as at 31 December 2020
(2019: approximately 0.06), which was mainly due to the increase in cash
and cash equivalents.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD,

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES
AND FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

During the Reporting Year, the Group did not have any significant
investments, material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates
or joint ventures. Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not
have other plans for material investments or acquisition of capital assets as
at 31 December 2020.

BORROWINGS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s borrowings were approximately
RMB20.7 million (31 December 2019: RMB18.9 million), of which
RMB11.2 million will be repayable within 1 year. Such loans were all
denominated in RMB, the weighted average effective interest rates as at
31 December 2020 and 2019 are 4.72% and 6.36% respectively. There
is no seasonal requirement for borrowings.

As at 31 December 2020, the right-of-use land and buildings of the
Company’s subsidiaries and trade receivables have been pledged to the
Bank as security for banking facilities granted to the Group. The pledged
land and properties will be released upon the settlement of relevant loans.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

For the Group’s operation in China, the major revenue and expenses
are denominated in RMB. Since there are certain monetary assets and
monetary liabilities that are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the Group
would be exposed to foreign exchange risk.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management of the Company monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
when the need arises.

—ZE_EEER
Annual Report 2020

15



EEEmADN
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B ER

FEBENREREBR ZHHEEERETERE
R fZEl e A EBBVIRITIERIIUAREEHE » 1
B BHERRE A 2k o AEBBYBER A T iR
BREIAITER S

ARG

REFEK2020F12831 BT e A& (S (2019
FiE -

AR

FA20206E12831 1 » AERE U EE—REH B A F
B AEEA ANRIBOSHE T (20194 : ) o

DEVE R

KEEN D ERHE A F GG M ERIHIEE6
PRREREITZ5)

EBEEH

20205128311 » AEMEE103% (20194 : %
2) BE - BEHEIEMLEEARNTEIBERSE
BRI FEFANAERE)

FEEREFRETHNESEREHNINER
BEZ - rEENEBRHESIENEIIRE
Hekst SRR SRR AE R AR > M AR ERS
FEERERON T - EF 2R - R EIRE
PEEAFE RS REE R BUBHEE -
BT REBIFMN—AREIER S RIEAL - — MR
= FEEREESRESNER R ARIFE
ERERFE

RHEARR S
ERTTREHMME020F12831 0 ILFE
TRSHEHRARS (20196 : ) °

16

China New Energy Limited

TREASURY POLICY

The Group's financing and treasury activities are centrally managed and
controlled at the corporate level. Bank borrowings of the Group are all
denominated in RMB and have been arranged on instalment repayment
basis. It is the Group’s policy not to enter into derivative transactions for
speculative purposes.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
Nil).

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had RMBO0.5 million capital
commitments for acquisition of a subsidiary (2019: Nil).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information for the Group is presented as disclosed in note 6 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 103 employees (2019: 96
employees). The increase in the number of employees was mainly
attributable to the staff turnover in the project management and support
department in the PRC.

The Group believes that on-going and continuous development of its
employees is critical to its success. The Group provides its employees
with tailored training programmes that are designed to upgrade their skills
and knowledge and to prepare them for the next step in their career path
within the Group. The Group entered into separate labour contracts with
each of its employees in accordance with the applicable labour laws of
China. The remuneration offered to employees generally includes salaries
and bonuses. In general, the Group determines salaries of its employees
based on each employee’s qualification, position and performance.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the distribution of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YU Weijun, aged 57, is an executive Director and chairman of
the Board. He joined the Group in August 2006. Mr. Yu is primarily
responsible for the overall strategic planning and corporate development
of the Group. He is also a member of the remuneration committee, the
chairman of each of the nomination committee and the risk management
committee of the Company. Mr. Yu is a director of Guangdong Zhongke
Tianyuan New Energy Science and Technology Co. Ltd.* (BE& F &K T
A RARHE BFR/AT]) and Guangdong Boluo Zhongke Tianyuan High
and New Technology Engineering Co., Limited* (ER&1BZ&HRKXTS
WMEMIEERAR).

Mr. Yu has over 33 years of experience in the technology sector. From
June 2014 to October 2018, he was appointed as the supervisor of Tiandi
Science & Technology Co., Ltd* CRHEHZRMBERAE) (a listed
company on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600582). From
September 2015 to December 2018, Mr. Yu was the director of Hubei Jin
Zhuang Renewable Resources of Science and Technology Co., Ltd* G5
It HRIEBEERAR/AT). From January 2016 to January 2022,
he acted as an independent non-executive director of Guangzhou Startec
Science and Technology Co., Ltd.* (BMEZERFERMHBERAT)(a
listed company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 430429).

Mr. Yu obtained a bachelor's degree in Economics from Jilin University
of Finance and Economics (FMEF 48 A£2) (previously known as Jilin
Institute of Finance and Economics* (F#EFBEB%)) in Changchun,
China. He also obtained an Executive Master of Business Administration
from Sun Yat-Sen University (also known as Zhongshan University*) (F7LLJ
KE) in Guangzhou, China. Mr. Yu is a member of The Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants* (FREIsE & 5HEM#®) and a member
of the Guangdong Institute of Certified Public Accountants* (24 s
BEEHE).

* For identification purpose only
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China New Energy Limited

Mr. TANG Zhaoxing, aged 52, is an executive Director and chief executive
officer of the Company. He joined the Group in August 2006. Mr. Tang is
primarily responsible for overseeing the overall operation, sales and project
design and management of the Group.

From June 2002 to August 2006, Mr. Tang was a general manager of
Guangdong Zhongke Tianyuan Regeneration Resources Engineering
Co., ld.* BERFAMKXTBEERIIZBRAHE). He is the director
and deputy chief executive officer of Guangdong Zhongke Tianyuan New
Energy Science and Technology Co. Ltd.* (B AR KT REE B
RAED.

Mr. Tang has over 31 years of experience in the engineering and
technology sectors. Prior to joining the Group, he has held various
management and engineer positions in the sectors of operation and sales;
process and equipment installation design; process planning and design;
and technology and project management.

Mr. Tang obtained a bachelor's degree in engineering from South China
University of Technology (EERIETAZ) in Guangdong, China and an
Executive Master of Business Administration degree from Peking University
JERAZ) in Beijing, China.

* For identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Richard Antony BENNETT, aged 53, was appointed as a Director
and re-designated as an independent non-executive Director in March
2011 and July 2020 respectively. He is also a member of each of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee, the nomination committee and
the risk management committee of the Company.

Mr. Bennett has over 28 years of experience in the technology sector.
Prior to joining the Group, he was a director and a co-founder and later
a consultant of FAI Inc. (currently known as J2 Global Inc.) from January
1994 to June 1999. Mr. Bennett was a director of Virtual Internet plc
(stock code: VET), the shares of which are listed on the London Stock
Exchange, from January 1999 to December 2001 and was a corporate
development director at Coms plc and later promoted as the chief
executive officer from November 2005 to January 2013. He has been
a non-executive director of MTI Wireless Edge Ltd. (stock code: MWE)
since February 2013 and a non-executive director and chairman of
Getech Group plc (stock code: GTC) since January 2021, both of which
are companies listed on the London Stock Exchange. Mr. Bennett is also
a director and chief executive officer of Sunbird Bioenergy Africa Limited
and a director of Grey Reach Investments Limited, Sunbird Bioenergy
Management Services, Sunbird Bioenergy Sierra Leone Limited, Sunbird
Bioenergy Zambia Limited and Sunbird Bioenergy Zimbabwe (Private)
Limited.

Mr. CHAN Shing Fat Heron, aged 59, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in July 2020. He is also the chairman of the
remuneration committee, a member of each of the audit committee and
the nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. Chan has over 20 years of experience in marketing and sales
management. He has held various senior management, managing
directors, consultants and directors positions in sectors of account
management and marketing, managing sales and marketing activities,
liaison to various entities and business associations and project
partnership. Since May 2007, Mr. Chan has been the managing director
of IC Strategy Company Limited, where he has been responsible for
organising education and business related projects, and the business
development of the trading business in China and the international
market.

—EDEER
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China New Energy Limited

Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor's degree in Public Administration and
Mathematics from the University of Saskatchewan in Canada, a master’s
degree in Business Administration from Oklahoma City University in the
United States and also a doctorate degree in Business Administration from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in Hong Kong.

Mr. CHAN Siu Shan Sam, aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in July 2020. He is also the chairman of the audit
committee and a member of the risk management committee of the
Company.

Mr. Chan has over 20 years of experience in accounting, business
operations and financial management. He has held various finance
managers, audit managers and directors positions in sectors of finance
and administration, accounting and audit. Mr. Chan is a director of
Suntech Management Limited, where he is responsible for accounting,
tax and consultancy matters. He is also a managing director of HPIL
Limited, where he is responsible for a hotel construction project in Saipan,
Northern Mariana Islands (a commonwealth of the United States). Mr.
Chan is a director of CKIT Services Limited, where he is responsible for
providing advisory services on company secretarial matters.

Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor of science in Biochemistry with
Pharmacology from the University of Southampton and a master's degree
in Business Administration (General Management) from the University
of Lincolnshire & Humberside. He is a certified public accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. PAN lJinfeng, aged 49, is our general manager. He is primarily
responsible for overseeing the overall management and daily operations
of the Group, including providing technical support, equipment supplies,
after-sales technical services and company operation management.

Mr. Pan joined the Group in April 2008 as the marketing director and was
responsible for the liaison, undertaking and post-construction services
of the domestic and overseas projects of the Group. He has been the
general manager of Guangdong Boluo Zhongke Tianyuan High and New
Technology Engineering Co., Limited* (ER&EZEPR KT
T T2 ABR/AT]) since February 2012, where he is responsible for
overseeing the overall management and daily operations of the company.
Mr. Pan has been the general manager of the Group since March 2022.

Mr. Pan has over 30 years of experience in the engineering and
technology sector. Prior to joining the Group, he has held management
positions in the sectors of technology and project management.

Mr. Pan graduated from Guangdong Science and Technology School* (&
HEREEMER). He has also obtained the national certificate of
senior winemaker.

* For identification purpose only
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China New Energy Limited

Mr. ZHOU Hongcai, aged 53, is our deputy general manager. He is mainly
responsible for overseeing the overall technical design, development and
management of engineering projects.

From April 2003 to August 2006, Mr. Zhou was a technical director at
Zhongke Regeneration. From September 2006 to August 2016, Mr. Zhou
became the technical director of Zhongke Tianyuan. Since August 2016,
Mr. Zhou has been our deputy general manager of Zhongke Tianyuan.

Mr. Zhou has over 30 years of working experience in the engineering
sector. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou has held various positions at
Hunan Jintian Chemical Fertilizer Company Limited* G¥E 4 X1GAB1E
T AT . From July 1990 to July 1992, Mr. Zhou was a teacher at
the company’s vocational school where he was responsible for delivering
lectures. From August 1992 to December 1997, Mr. Zhou was the
technical supervisor and technical factory manager of the company’s
adhesive manufacturing plant where he was involved in management
of the factory. From January 1998 to March 2003, Mr. Zhou was the
technical supervisor of the company’s technology development centre,
where he was mainly responsible for technical management.

Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor’'s degree in chemical engineering at South

China University of Technology (ZEFIE T A%2)in Guangdong, China in
July 1990.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. CEN Delin, aged 48, is our finance director. He has been responsible
for overseeing the daily financial management and accounting matters of
our Group. Mr. Cen joined the Group in February 2012 as the investment
manager of Zhongke Tianyuan.

Mr. Cen has over 19 years of experience in finance and accounting.
Prior to joining our Group, from August 2002 to June 2003, Mr. Cen
was the finance officer of Saiwo Naru (Guangzhou) Shoes Materials
Co., Lid.* (BR#MUNEIMNEMBR/AST)where he was responsible
for overseeing financial matters. He was also the finance manager at
Guangzhou Guangzhong Electromechanical Equipment Engineering
Company Limited* (BIMNEE#ERE T E)and Guangzhou
Deji Aquarium Company Ltd* (BEMNER KIEARAR) from August
2006 to November 2010, and from December 2010 to December 2011
respectively, where he was mainly involved in overseeing daily financial
and accounting matters.

Mr. Cen completed a finance and accounting program at the Wuzhou
Branch of Guangxi University* (B275 A28 M 434 in Guangxi, China in
July 1995. Mr. Cen also studied a part-time course in professional English
at Sun Yat-Sen University * (FALLIAZ2) in Guangzhou, China from August
2005 to January 2008.

Ms. XU Huijuan, aged 42 is our Board secretary/joint company secretary.
Ms. Xu joined the Group in September 2006. She is primarily responsible
for equities management and company secretarial matters of the Group.

Ms. Xu has over 18 years of experience in finance, accounting and
company secretarial matters. Ms. Xu has held various positions in the
Group since joining us in September 2006. From September 2006
to December 2007, she was the deputy office supervisor of Zhongke
Tianyuan. Ms. Xu has been the board secretary of Zhongke Tianyuan since
May 2011. She has also been the finance manager of our Company since
January 2008 and our Board secretary since May 2011.

* For identification purpose only
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Before joining our Group, from July 2003 to September 2006, she was
an accounting assistant and an asset management manager at Zhongke
Environment, where she was primarily responsible for accounting matters,
asset management and equities management.

Ms. Xu obtained her bachelor's degree in Accounting at Guangdong
University of Foreign Studies* (BEER4MEINE A Z2) in Guangdong, China
in June 2003. She obtained an intermediate economist qualification
issued by the Human Resources and Social Security Department of
Guangdong Province* (BEHE ANERMAEREE)in January
2011. Ms. Xu also obtained a master’s degree in Professional Accounting
from Sun Yat-sen University* (FALLX2)in Guangdong, China in
December 2013.

Dr. OU lJingshen, aged 46 is the deputy director of our research and
development department. He is primarily responsible for overseeing
laboratory operations of the Group.

Dr. Ou joined our Group in 2007. From January 2007 to August 2007,
Dr. Ou was a researcher of Zhongke Tianyuan, where he was responsible
for the operation of laboratories and experiments. Since November 2015,
he has been our deputy director of the biofuel engineering technology
research centre of Zhongke Tianyuan, where he has been responsible
for its daily operations, developing research and development plans, and
providing technical support to other departments in Zhongke Tianyuan.

Dr. Ou has over 7 years of experience in laboratory operations. Prior
to joining the Group, from July 1999 to February 2001, Dr. Ou was an
assistant of Guangdong Huaning Group Co. Ltd.* (EREZEREREA
@), where he was responsible for the operation of laboratory tests.

Dr. Ou obtained a bachelor's degree in biopharmaceutical at South
China University of Technology (EEmIZ T A%)in Guangdong, China
in July 1999. He then obtained a master degree in engineering at South
China University of Technology GEmIET K% in Guangdong, China
in June 2006. He also obtained a doctor of science degree at South
China University of Technology (ZERFIE T AE)in Guangdong, China in
December 2014. He has published various articles such as “The Specific
SiRNA Plasmids Construction and their Inhibition Effect on Expression of
mcl-1 Protein in Liver Cancer Cell” and “Incorporation of Endoglucanase
E4 into Minicellulosomes by In-Vitro Assembly” on the Modern Food
Science and Technology and the Journal of South China University of
Technology GERFIE T A2)in 2010 and 2013, respectively.

* For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining high standards
of corporate governance. The Board believes that good and effective
corporate governance practices are key to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and to sustain the success of the Group to create long-term
value for the Shareholders.

The Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on the Listing Date. In
the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) from the Listing Date to 31
December 2020, except for a deviation disclosed herein.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Company confirms that the Directors have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code from the Listing Date to 31
December 2020.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020, the Board
comprised a total of five Directors, being two executive Directors, namely
Mr. Yu Weijun (Chairman) and Mr. Tang Zhaoxing (Chief Executive Officer)
and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Richard
Antony Bennett, Mr. Chan Shing Fat Heron and Mr. Chan Siu Shan Sam.
The Board has at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules
relating to having (i) at least three independent non-executive directors
under Rule 3.10(1); (ii) at least one of the independent non-executive
directors must have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10(2); and (iii)
independent non-executive directors representing at least one-third of the
board under Rule 3.10A during the period from the Listing Date to 31
December 2020. As such, there exists a strong independent element in
the Board which can effectively exercise independent judgement.
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Mr. Yu Weijun and Mr. Tang Zhaoxing, the executive Directors, are
interested in the Shares through their interests in Tewin Capital Holding
Limited and Tonzest Capital Holding Limited respectively. Save as
disclosed aforesaid, the Directors have no other financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships with one another.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 17 to 24 of this
annual report.

Role of the Board

The Board is responsible for overseeing and approving the Group’s overall
business plans and strategies and monitoring the implementation of such
business plans, strategies and policies, and the leadership and control of
the Company.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions as set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The executive Directors are primarily responsible for the overall
management of the Group, while the senior management including
the finance director and the general manager are delegated the
responsibilities of managing the day-to-day businesses and operations and
executing the business decisions of the Group.

The roles of the independent non-executive Directors are to oversee
the Board independently to ensure that there is no potential conflict of
interest, to provide independent advice to the Board, and to ensure that
the Board has taken into consideration the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole when making decisions and the advice of the
senior management team of the Group.

Board Process

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall strategy
as well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. The
Directors may participate in meetings either in person or through
electronic means of communications. According to the current Board
practice, if a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter
will be dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting rather
than by a written resolution. The articles of association of the Company
(the “Articles”) also stipulate that save for the exceptions as provided
therein, a Director shall abstain from voting and not be counted in
the quorum at meetings for approving any transaction, contract or
arrangement in which such Director or any of his/her associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) has a material interest.
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Board and committee minutes are recorded in appropriate detail and
draft minutes are circulated to all Directors and committee members for
comments before being approved.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020, three
Board meetings, of which two were regular Board meetings, were held
and attendance of each Director at the Board meetings is set out in
the section headed “Attendance Record of Meetings” of this report.
Code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code stipulates that notice of at least 14
days should be given of a regular board meeting to give all directors an
opportunity to attend. Of the two regular Board meetings held during
the period, one of them was convened with less than 14 days’ notice
to facilitate the Directors’ timely decision making process in respect of
internal affairs of the Group. The Board will use reasonable endeavor
to meet the requirement of code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code in the
future.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of the
chairman and the chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

Up to the date of this annual report, Mr. Yu Weijun is the Chairman of
the Board and Mr. Tang Zhaoxing is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for overseeing the functions
of the Board and providing leadership for the Board to ensure that the
Board works effectively and performs its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by it in a timely manner. The Chief
Executive Officer is responsible for overseeing the overall management,
operation and businesses of the Group.

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
each independent non-executive Director pursuant to the requirements
of the Listing Rules. The Company has assessed their independence and
concluded that all independent non-executive Directors are independent
in accordance with the relevant guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

—EDEER
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Directors’ Continuing Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director was given a formal and tailored
induction after his appointment so as to ensure that he had appropriate
understanding of the Group’s business and operations and of his duties
and responsibilities under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory
and regulatory requirements. The Company provides regular updates on
the business performance of the Group to the Directors. The Directors
are continuously updated on the latest development regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance
and maintain good corporate governance practices.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development courses and seminars. During the period from the Listing
Date to 31 December 2020, the Directors participated in continuous
professional development by way of attending trainings and/or seminars
organised by professional organisations and director training webcasts
organised by the Stock Exchange and also reading materials relating to
new practices, rules and regulations to keep themselves updated on the
roles, functions, knowledge, skills and duties of a listed company director.

According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of trainings
received by the Directors for the period from the Listing Date to 31
December 2020 is as follows:

wEEERE R R

Trainings/Seminars/

EENS Name of Directors Reading materials
BiTES Executive Directors

REBTE Mr. Yu Weijun v
]S Mr. Tang Zhaoxing v
BIJEMITES Independent Non-executive Directors

Richard Antony Bennettdc 4= Mr. Richard Antony Bennett v
PRE%EE S g Mr. Chan Shing Fat Heron v
BRI Mr. Chan Siu Shan Sam v

EEREEEZES Appointment and Re-election of Directors
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Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election,
whereas code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code states that all directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by the
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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All Directors have been appointed for a specific term. Each of the
executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company on 16 June 2020 for a term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date. Each of the independent non-executive Directors was
appointed by the Board pursuant to their respective letters of appointment
dated 16 June 2020 for a term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date.

According to the Articles, any person appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy or as an additional Director shall hold office only until the
next annual general meeting of the Company after his appointment and
shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting. The Articles also provide
that at each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors who are
subject to retirement by rotation shall retire from office and shall be eligible
for re-election at that meeting.

Attendance Record of Meetings

Set out below are details of the attendance record of each Director at the
Board meetings and committee meetings of the Board held during the
period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020. Before the Listing
Date, an annual general meeting was held during the year ended 31
December 2020 to comply with the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. The
Company did not hold any general meetings since the Listing Date and up
to 31 December 2020.

HERY, SEREERY
Attendance/Eligible to attend
B | ’% EREHE
EX0gE ZE99E ZE99E ZE9gE Z899:
Risk
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination Management
Board Committee =~ Committee = Committee =~ Committee
EESee Name of Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
HIES Executive Directors
RERERE (FE) Mr. Yu Weijun (Chairman) 33 - 11 171 11
BB E ((TE#ER) Mr. Tang Zhaoxing (Chief Executive Officer) 33 = = = =
BiERITES Independent Non-executive Directors
Richard Antony Bennettdc 4 Mr. Richard Antony Bennett 23 11 171 171 171
PRERE S Mr. Chan Shing Fat Heron 23 171 1 11 =
B RE Mr. Chan Siu Shan Sam 23 11 = = 1
ZEZZEFR
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Risk Management
Committee (collectively, the “Board Committees”) on 16 June 2020.
All the Board Committees perform their distinct roles and functions in
accordance with their respective terms of reference which are available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board
Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

The attendance of each member of the Board Committees is set out in the
section headed “Attendance Record of Meetings” of this report.

Audit Committee

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are (among others) to review
and supervise the financial reporting process of the Group, review the
effectiveness of internal audit function, and oversee the audit process and
the audits of the financial statements of the Group. Meetings of the Audit
Committee shall be held at least twice a year.

As at 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee comprised three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Richard Antony
Bennett, Mr. Chan Shing Fat Heron and Mr. Chan Siu Shan Sam. Mr.
Chan Siu Shan Sam is the chairman of the committee. All members of the
Audit Committee possess in-depth experience in their own profession. At
least one of the committee members possesses appropriate professional
qualifications in finance and accounting and meets the requirements of
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020, the Audit
Committee held one meeting to review the interim results of the Group for
the six months ended 30 June 2020 with recommendation to the Board
for approval.

Going forward, the Audit Committee will hold meetings at least twice a year
to comply with its terms of reference.

Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are (among others)
to make recommendations to the Board regarding the candidates to fill
vacancies on the Board, review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors. Meetings of the Nomination Committee shall be held at least
once a year.



R2020F 128310 RE L ERBEESTEE
EREBEEEURMBE L IEHNITEERIchard
Antony Bennettfe A e RER EE S o REB LS
LEGERE-

EFECRM—BEFESER (EFY
Z(EBER) ABREABRMERERES
TERNBERRGZE LIRSHMR - EFEZ T
{EBERRE » AARERIERET MBI
PR AEZ TR S EEEBE T LUR
EAEEBRHERRIEHER  IRFZER > &
ARBBERETRRERESFEZ b BT
BREENRINEZRFENZ FFXER KA
MR FlR UEF R BB B IRBE
R~ B AR REEIRA - EEE Z T EBIERTR
RE BRERENRBELZRHEFTES TN
ek BERFTEEREANBRERAIHNES SN
REVE R R E B EIRAE(F o

EXEGT M —RERIRREER (IRBHER)) ©
ZHREEHPFRLESREANER BLE
BSEEREREREFREARFRANEF K
R URBZRMMEEEGRRER WER) 12
LRREREF IR RIEFAT

a. RIEEEA AR RBRRE N ER A

5| (BEBAERLETRIAEEE

5) R2ERATNERE XN RER

B URREAPI R ES RN ER

(BEEE R &k B mats

M) o EHEREABERE e A

B BEN RS UK RETESEHE
BANFBRERT]

ERERRS
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

As at 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee comprised the
Chairman of the Board, Mr. Yu Weijun, and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Richard Antony Bennett and Mr. Chan
Shing Fat Heron. Mr. Yu Weijun is the chairman of the committee.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the objective and approach to achieve and
maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance its effectiveness. The
Board Diversity Policy provides that the Company should endeavour to
ensure that the Board members have the appropriate balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives that are required to support the
execution of the Group’s business strategy. Pursuant to the policy, the
Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of
a number of factors, including but not limited to professional experience,
skills, knowledge, gender, age, cultural background, education, ethnicity,
length of service, personal integrity and time commitments of the
proposed candidates. The Board Diversity Policy also provides that the
ultimate decision is based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board which will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

The Board has also adopted a policy to nominate directors (the
“Nomination Policy”). The purpose of this policy is to set out the
procedures for nominating candidates for Directors, the procedures
and criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee in selecting and
recommending candidates for Directors, and the follow-up procedures
for considering and approving, as appropriate, nominations made by the
Board and, where applicable, Shareholders. The nominating procedures
are as follows:

a. To assess the qualifications, skills, knowledge, ability and
experience of candidates, and the time and attention that may
be spent in performing the duties of Directors in accordance with
the common law, legislation and applicable rules, regulations
and guidelines (including, but not limited to the Listing Rules
and guidelines on the Board) and by referring to the relevant
professional knowledge and business experience of the Company,
as well as the qualifications that candidates may bring to the Board
(including qualifications, skills, experience, independence and
gender diversity);

—EDEER
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b. To assess the personal ethics, integrity and reputation of the
candidate (including, but not limited to, conducting appropriate
background checks and other verification procedures on the
candidate);

C. With reference to the Board Diversity Policy (to be revised from
time to time), to consider the structure, number and composition
of the Board at that time (including but not limited to skills,
knowledge, balance of experience and diverse perspectives that
is in line with the Company’s business requirements) and the
Company’s corporate strategy, and take into account the benefits
of the diversification of Board members and the contribution that
candidates may bring to the Board;

d. To consider the factors of Board succession planning and the
long-term needs of the Company;

e. In the case of a candidate for an independent non-executive
Director, assess (i) the independence of the candidate by
reference to (among other things) the independence criteria set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; and (i) code provision A.5.5
of the CG Code and the guidelines and provisions relating to
independent non-executive Directors contained in the guidelines
on the Board; and

f. To consider any other factors and matters that the Nomination
Committee may consider appropriate.

The Board shall consider the recommendation of the Nomination
Committee and make a decision on whether the nominated candidate is
eligible for appointment as a Director.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020, the
Nomination Committee held one meeting and performed the following
duties:

reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board; and

ii. reviewed and proposed the adoption of the Nomination Policy.

In carrying out the above review, the Nomination Committee accepted that
despite the lack of gender diversity, the composition of the Board satisfies
the Board Diversity Policy taking into account of the business model of the
Group and the backgrounds and experience of the current Directors. The
Nomination Committee will continue to review the Board Diversity Policy
from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.
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Remuneration Committee

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are (among others)
to review, determine and make recommendations to the Board on
the policy and structure or the remuneration payable to the Directors
and senior management and making recommendations on employee
benefit arrangements. The Remuneration Committee has adopted
the model under code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management. Meetings of the
Remuneration Committee shall be held at least once a year.

As at 31 December 2020, the Remuneration Committee comprised one
executive Director, namely Mr. Yu Weijun and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Shing Fat Heron and Mr. Richard
Antony Bennett. Mr. Chan Shing Fat Heron is the chairman of the
committee.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020, the
Remuneration Committee held one meeting to assess and review in
respect of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management of
the Group.

Remuneration of the Directors and Senior Management by Band

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the annual
remuneration of the senior management (including all executive Directors)
by band for the year ended 31 December 2020 are as follows:

A

Number of individuals

AR 07t E AR %1,000,0007T
AE#1,000,0017cE
A EE#2,000,0007T

BE2020F 12A31IEFEREF 2 i sr 5%
RiRE M REMEEL2.

RMBO to RMB1,000,000 10
RMB1,000,001 to RMB2,000,000

0

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Risk Management Committee

The primary duties of the Risk Management Committee are (among
others) to monitor the Group’s exposure to sanctions risks and to oversee
its implementation of the related internal control procedures. Meetings of
the Risk Management Committee shall be held at least twice a year.

As at 31 December 2020, the Risk Management Committee comprised
one executive Director, namely Mr. Yu Weijun and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Richard Antony Bennett and Mr. Chan Siu
Shan Sam. Mr. Yu Weijun is the chairman of the committee.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020, the Risk
Management Committee held one meeting to review the effectiveness of
the risk management system of the Company.

Going forward, the Risk Management Committee will hold meetings at
least twice a year to comply with its terms of reference.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The total fees paid or payable to the Company’s resigned and current
auditors, for services rendered in respect of the year ended 31 December
2020 are set out below:
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Audit services 2,656
Non-audit services — taxation service 8

Total 2,664

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for presenting a clear,
balanced assessment of the Group’s performance and prospects and
preparing the financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
Group on a going-concern basis.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
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Audit Qualification

As disclosed in the paragraph headed “Basis for Qualified Opinion” in the
Independent Auditor's Report on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020, the auditor of the
Company, KTC Partners CPA Limited, expressed a qualified opinion on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 (the “Audit Qualification”).

The matters which gave rise to the Audit Qualification related to the
payments made to various professional and consultancy services (the
“Concerned Transactions”).

Our auditor was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
satisfy themselves about (i) the validity, business rationale, commercial
substance and classification of the Concerned Transactions that led to
the recognition by the Group of the purported professional, advisory
and consultancy service fees of approximately RMB18,603,000 as legal
and professional fees expenses included in administrative expenses
recognised in consolidated profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2020 and (ii) whether any of the parties involved in the Concerned
Transactions were related to the Group or related parties of the Group.

Our auditor was of the view that there was certain limitation in the work
conducted by our independent advisor, Messrs. DLA Piper Hong Kong
(the “Advisor”). The limitations of the independent investigation were
described in the announcement of the Company dated 28 January 2022,
including the refusal of some interviewees to attend any interview by way
of video conference or telephone call with the Advisor. In addition, our
auditor was of the view that certain part of the work of the Advisor was not
backed by sufficient supporting documents and the management of the
Company was unable to provide the auditor with sufficient documentary
evidence to corroborate the explanations about the business rationale and
commercial substance of the Concerned Transactions.

At the Board meeting held immediately after the meeting of the Audit
Committee held on 22 April 2022, the Audit Committee reported to and
discussed with the Board on the Audit Qualification. The Board provided
response to the Audit Qualification and the Audit Committee concurred
with the management.

The management and the Audit Committee have the following opinions on
the matters which gave rise to the Audit Qualification.

—EDEER
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As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 30 June 2021,
the independent investigation committee has appointed the Advisor to
conduct an independent investigation and prepare an investigation report
in respect of the audit issues discovered by the Company’s former auditor.

Key findings of the independent investigation are summarised in
the announcement of the Company dated 28 January 2022. Upon
consideration of the independent investigation report, the Board has
resolved to implement the recommendations suggested by the Advisor as
remedial actions.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 31 March
2022, the Company has appointed BT Corporate Governance Limited (the
“Internal Control Advisor”) to conduct an independent internal control
review and prepare an internal control review report. The internal control
report was yet to be published and the management shall make further
announcements on the maijor findings, recommendations and remedial
actions taken by the Company as and when appropriate.

The Board including the Audit Committee are of the view that the Audit
Qualification have been duly dealt with given that the amount relating
to the Concerned Transactions had been recognised in the profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the remaining amounts
from the Concerned Transactions were refunded or repaid to the Group
subsequently after the year ended 31 December 2020.

In the circumstances, the Company expects that the Audit Qualification on
the Concerned Transaction will be removed in next year's audit except for
the effect on comparability of corresponding figures.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor's Report on pages 87 to 89 of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining and ensuring effective
implementation of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group. The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing their
effectiveness to safeguard the Shareholders’ interest and the Company’s
assets. However, these systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate risk of failure in business operations, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. The Group has implemented an effective internal control system
which includes a defined management structure with clear lines of
responsibility, limits of authority, proper procedures for income and
expenditure, monthly review by the executive Directors of management
reports on operations and financials, regular business meetings between
executive Directors and the core management team and periodic review of
the Group’s financial results by the Board.

The Audit Committee reviews regularly the effectiveness and adequacy of
the Group’s internal control system which includes financial, operational
and compliance mechanism and risk management functions in order
to identify, evaluate and manage risks and take appropriate measures
to avoid or mitigate those risks that could adversely impact the Group’s
business activities. The review also includes the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function. The review process consists of, amongst
other matters, assessment and implementation of material control issues
identified by an independent external auditor during the statutory audit.

In January 2022, the Company has engaged an independent consultant
to perform an internal control review on the Group's overall corporate
governance environment and selected operation cycles in order to assist
the Board to assess whether the Group can provide reasonable basis and
has established sufficient procedures, policies and monitoring measures to
enable Directors to make appropriate assessment of the Group'’s financial
status and prospects.

The work approach of the review conducted includes the following:

(i) Through consultation and discussion with management and
key process owners to obtain a thorough understanding of the
corresponding processes and the existing procedures, policies
and monitoring measures to identify major control risks within the
Group;

—EDEER
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(ii) Assess whether the main procedures, policies and monitoring
measures currently in place can meet the compliance
requirements defined in the Listing Rules, especially concerning
Chapters 14 and 14A;

(iii) Perform walk-through and compliance tests on the main
procedures, policies and monitoring to verify the effectiveness
of the design and operation of the Group’s internal control
mechanism; and

(iv) Following completion of the review, the independent consultant
makes appropriate recommendations for strengthening the
effectiveness and/or efficiency of the Group's relevant procedures,
policies and monitoring measures.

In the year under review, no material issues in the Group's internal
control system have been identified in the reviewed areas and the
findings of the review have been reported to the Audit Committee. The
independent consultant also performed a follow-up review on the remedial
actions undertaken by the management of the Group on the control
risks identified during the internal control review conducted. The Board
considered that the risk management and internal control system was
adequate and effective.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
FOR THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside
information should be announced as soon as reasonably practicable when
it is the subject of a decision.

The Board has implemented a “Policy on Handling and Dissemination of
Inside Information” setting out the procedures and internal controls for
guiding the Group's officers and employees in handling confidential and
price-sensitive inside information. It ensures that inside information of the
Group can be disseminated to the public promptly in accordance with the
applicable laws and regulations.

Below is a summary of the key provisions of the Policy:
(i) Directors and employees must follow the reporting channels for

disclosing the inside information and take reasonable care to
safeguard the confidentiality of all inside information;
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(ii) The Directors are empowered to take appropriate actions to ensure
compliance with the disclosure requirements including issuing
announcements and making a request to the Stock Exchange for
a trading halt in case the Company is facing an unexpected and
significant event; and

(iii) Directors and employees of the Group must not deal in the
Company’s securities when they are in possession of unpublished
inside information.

The Group also keeps Directors and employees informed of the latest
regulatory updates on disclosure requirements of inside information.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board communicates with the Shareholders and investors through
various channels. The Board members meet and communicate with
Shareholders and investors at annual general meetings and other general
meetings where the Shareholders can obtain better understanding
of the business and operating performance of the Group. Corporate
communications (such as interim and annual reports, notices, circulars
and announcements) are sent to the Shareholders in a timely manner and
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code stipulates that the issuer should have
a policy on payment of dividends and should disclose it in the annual
report.

The Company adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) in
June 2020 which sets out the guidelines to distribute dividends to its
Shareholders. Under the Dividend Policy, the Shareholders are entitled to
receive dividends that the Company declares. The declaration of dividends
is subject to the discretion of the Board and may require the approval
of the Shareholders, and the Company may change the Dividend Policy
in the future. There is no assurance that the Company will be able to
distribute dividends of such amounts or any amounts in every year or any
year in the future.
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The Board may recommend a payment of dividends in the future
after taking into account the Group’s operations and earnings, capital
requirements and surplus, general financial condition, contractual
restrictions, capital expenditure and other factors which the Board may
deem relevant at such time.

Any declaration and payment as well as the amount of the dividends will
be subject to the constitutional documents and the Companies (Jersey)
Law 1991, including the approval of the Shareholders, if required.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Xu Huijuan, a joint company secretary and the Board secretary, is
primarily responsible for equities management and company secretarial
matters of the Group.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company also
engaged Mr. Sin Chi Yuen Edward, a manager of Gladson Secretaries
Limited, a company secretarial service provider, as a joint company
secretary to assist Ms. Xu to discharge her duties during the period from
the Listing Date to 31 December 2020. His primary contact persons at the
Company are Mr. Yu Weijun, an executive Director and the Chairman of
the Board, and Ms. Xu Huijuan.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, Ms. Xu Huijuan and Mr. Sin
Chi Yuen Edward have undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training respectively in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 9.3 of the Articles, an extraordinary general meeting
(the “EGM”) shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
members of the Company holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the company secretary at the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong, which is presently situated
at Unit 2406, 24/F., Strand 50, 50 Bonham Strand, Sheung Wan, Hong
Kong, for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business clearly specified in such requisition with
reasons therefor and signed by the requisitionist(s).
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If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Enquiries by Shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send written enquiries to the Company for
the attention of the company secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong. The Company will not normally deal with verbal or
anonymous enquiries.

Putting Forward Proposals by Shareholders at Shareholders’ Meeting

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to put forward proposals at a
general meeting under the Articles or the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991.
If Shareholders wish to do so, they may request to convene an EGM as
described above and specify the proposals in such written requisition.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

On 23 October 2019, the Company has adopted the amended and
restated Articles which took effect from the Listing Date. No changes have
been made to the Articles since the Listing Date. An up-to-date version
of the Articles is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange respectively.

By order of the Board

Yu Weijun

Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 22 April 2022
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China New Energy Limited

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Introduction

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “Report”)
summarizes the initiatives, plans and performance of China New
Energy Limited (the “Company”) and together with its subsidiaries,
collectively (the “Group”) in the Environmental, Social and
Governance (the “ESG”) aspects, and illustrates the sustainability
of business activities in these aspects.

Reporting Scope, Criteria and Reporting Period

This Report was prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the “ESG Reporting
Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”). All the information contained herein reflects
the performance of the Group in environmental protection and
social responsibility from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020
(the “Reporting Period” or “FY2020"). This Report has complied
with all the “Comply or Explain” provisions set out in the ESG
Reporting Guide and included the disclosure of environmental
Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”). The Group will publish
an annual Report on a regular basis, which will be available for
public inspection at any time, so as to continuously enhance the
transparency of information disclosure.

The scope of the Report covers the KPIs data of the Group’s main
operating activities: mainly in a Guangzhou office and processing
plant, to provide integrated services including engineering design,
equipment manufacturing, installation and commissioning and
subsequent value-added maintenance for the core system of
ethanol production system in the ethanol fuel and alcoholic
beverage industries in the PRC. For equipment installation section,
the works are completed by approved contractors who are not
employees of the Group and do not contain relevant data.

The details of the Group’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the “Corporate Governance Report” section of the annual
report 2020.
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Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality Assessment

The Group believes that a strong relationship built with its
stakeholders is a key driver of its business success. It maintains
close communications with various stakeholders (including but
not limited to investors and shareholders, customers, contractors,
subcontractors, suppliers, employees, government and regulatory
bodies as well as communities, non-governmental organizations
and the media) through different channels. The Group’s
communication channels with the key stakeholders are through
meeting, emails, teleconferences, interviews, trainings annual
and extraordinary general meetings and annual reports with the
stakeholders during the Reporting Period to help refining the
Group’s ESG strategies and reporting.

Contact us

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on its ESG approach
and performance. Please give your suggestions or share your
views with us via email at zkty@zkty.com.cn

ENVIRONMENT

The Group, as a clean energy system marketer, provides excellent
R&D capability and innovation-oriented business philosophy in the
ethanol fuel and alcoholic beverage industry. During the business
operations and management, the Group takes environmental
protection as the core issue. In order to control environmental
management and minimize the impact of the business operations,
the Group has formulated relevant environmental management
policies and reduced environmental footprints through effective
use of resources and adoption of environmentally-friendly
technologies, enhancing employees’ environmental awareness
and complying with relevant laws and regulations at the same
time.

—EDEER
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China New Energy Limited

ENVIRONMENT (continued)

Aspect Al: Emission

The major exhaust gas and greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions
of the Group comes from, among others, gasoline consumed
by vehicles, business air travel by employees and the electricity
consumed by processing facilities and corporate offices. With the
goal to reduce energy consumption and carbon emissions, the
Group has formulated relevant rules and regulations for a sound
and effective management of energy consumption, GHG emission,
as well as discharge of domestic waste and sewage and other
pollutants. The Group strictly complies with the Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC, the Water Pollution Prevention and
Control Law of the PRC, the Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, the Water
Pollution Control Ordinance (“Cap.358 of the Laws of Hong
Kong”), the Waste Disposal Ordinance (“Cap.354 of the Laws
of Hong Kong") and other laws and regulations concerning
environmental protection.

Air emissions

The exhaust gas generated by operation of the Group mainly
comes from transport vehicles for employees and guests. The
gasoline consumptions also cause air pollutants to be emitted.
The treatment methods and emission reduction measures are as
follows:

° Optimizing operating procedures for increasing the loading
rate of vehicles and lowering the idle rate;

° Turning off the engine when the vehicle is not in use;
° Conducting regular maintenance and repair of vehicles to

effectively reduce fuel consumption, which further reduce
carbon emissions and exhaust gas emissions;

° Selecting unleaded gasoline with low sulphur content as
fuel: and
o Planning journey or carpool in advance to avoid single-

passenger car trips.
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ENVIRONMENT (continued)

Aspect Al: Emission (Continued)
GHG emissions

The main sources of the Group’s GHG emissions were direct
emissions from the mobile combustion sources (“Scope 1”),
indirect emissions arising from the emissions related to acquired
electricity (“Scope 2") and other indirect emissions from business
air travel, general waste and paper consumption (“Scope 3”).

The Group promotes energy saving and emission reduction
initiatives while strengthening environmental management.
Employees are encouraged to participate in green operation,
which aims at mitigating the impact of GHG emissions. In order
to minimize environmental pollution associated to vehicle use,
the Group monitors and regulates fuel consumption, conducts
routine maintenance on vehicles, and encourages employees
to take public transport. Moreover, site visits and seminars were
often needed due to business nature, the Group also encourages
employees to make use of teleconferencing or videoconferencing
systems for reducing carbon footprint caused by business air
travel.

Sewage emission

The Group strives to conduct sewage treatment processes
properly to avoid polluting other natural resources. The sewage
discharged by corporate offices and the processing plant during
the daily operations will be discharged into the municipal sewage
pipe network to the regional water purification plant. The Group
continues to stay vigilant on the use and application of modern
technologies and installations to improve the performance in this
regard.

—EDEER
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China New Energy Limited

ENVIRONMENT (continued)

Aspect Al: Emission (Continued)
Waste emission

Due to the Group’s business nature, no significant number of
hazardous wastes has been generated and only limited non-
hazardous wastes has been generated during the Reporting
Period. Non-hazardous wastes such as metals, plastics, paper
and general waste are properly classified into recyclable waste
and non-recyclable waste, and are stored in designated collection
areas. The collected recyclable waste is then periodically recycled
by the waste collector. The Group identifies and classifies waste,
centrally stores it, and disposes of it in a unified manner. The
persons in charge will dispose of waste in a timely manner and
endeavour to maintain environmental sanitation around them.

In addition to actively reduce waste in the processing plant,
employees in the offices are also encouraged to develop a “green
lifestyle” to minimize waste. Posters are posted everywhere in the
canteen, gently reminding employees to order the right amount of
food to avoid wasting food.

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with relevant
laws and regulations relating to air and GHG emissions, discharge
of waste into water and land, and generation of non-hazardous
waste. The Group did not violate any environmental protection
laws or regulations of the region where it operates, nor was it
subject to significant fines, non-monetary penalties and litigation
relating to environmental protection.
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ENVIRONMENT (continued)

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

Gasoline and electricity are the major types of energy consumed
by the Group throughout its daily operations. The Group has
developed rigorous policies for the use of resources to control
the conservation of energy, water and raw materials, in order to
improve the efficiency of resource utilisation, reduce waste and
promote recycling.

Energy Consumption

Notices and reminders on energy saving are regularly issued to
staff to raise their energy saving awareness, including:

° Monitoring and regulating the fuel consumption, conducts
routine maintenance on vehicles;

° Using high energy-efficiency for equipment;
° Adopting technology to simplify processing;

° Switching off all electronic devices during lunch hours and
when leaving office;

o Setting computers on energy saving modes;
° Using energy-saved light bulbs and tubes; and
° Making good use of telecommunication system and video

conferences to replace arranging business trips.

—EDEER
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ENVIRONMENT (continued)

Aspect A2: Use of Resources (Continued)
Water Consumption

During the Reporting Period, there was no major problem about
sourcing water that is fit for use in its operations. Due to the nature
of the operations, water consumption mainly arises from the
daily use of water by the employees at the offices during working
hours. The Group regularly reminds its employees to conserve
water resources through notices and reminders. To reduce water
consumption, they are reminded to:

Control flow from tap and avoid turning it to the full;

° Turn off tap when applying soap;

° Avoid flushing unnecessarily; and
° Avoid wasting water in upflow water dispenser.
Paper Consumption

The Group is committed to a paperless operation, constantly
encouraging all employees to reduce paper usage through
duplex printing, paper recycling and frequent use of electronic
information systems for material sharing or internal administrative
documents. Reusable paper products, such as envelopes, are
properly recycled whereas the Group limits the use of disposable
paper products, such as paper cups and paper towels, wherever
possible and appropriate during the Group’s operations.

Use of Packaging Materials

The Group’s packaging materials of equipment manufacturing,
installation and maintenance for the ethanol production system
and the daily offices usage mostly come from suppliers and
contractors. Hence, the total consumption of packaging materials
is not considered as a material topic in the Group’s use of
resources. In addition, the Group encourages suppliers and
contractors to produce as little waste as possible by choosing
recyclable packaging materials and reusing packaging materials
whenever possible.
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ENVIRONMENT (continued)

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group emphasizes corporate social responsibility and has
devoted massive resources in environmental protection initiatives
to reduce negative impacts on the environment and natural
resources caused by the Group’s business activities. The Group
has complied with all environment-related regulations and
international standards. It is obligated to take responsibility for
the environmental and natural resources of the local community
with the adopted measures including applying new eco-friendly
technology and practices for processing facilities to reduce the
consumption of non-renewable resources such as petrol, water,
electricity and reduce their associated greenhouse gas emissions
and minimising waste generation in daily operations through
reduction, recycling and recovery.

Noise Control

Despite the use of only a few heavy machinery during the course
of the Group’s business operation, work plant would nevertheless
create noise. To minimise the level of noise generated, processing
facilities are inspected regularly to ensure that they remain in
optimal conditions. Meanwhile, the Group has adopted sound-
proofing designs and structures in the construction of processing
facilities. To comply with the industrial standards for noise pollution
and minimize the impact of its noise, noise-control measures have
also been taken on the processing plant or any equipment that
creates high levels of noise.

—EDEER
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A. ENVIRONMENT (continued)

Summary of Environmental KPIs as follows:

B # F202081 %
EHH ltem Unit FY2020
BERHBEN Air emissions
—AEEEYINOX) — Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) AT kg 5.6
—IRE(EEY(SOx) — Sulfur Oxides (SOx) N 0.1
—FERIY(PM) — Particulate Matter (PM) AFT kg 04
BERBBHN GHG emissions
—ERAEREN EE) — Direct GHG emission (Scope 1) — petrol 0 — | bk 226
FUHEFE (Unleaded) consumption tonnes CO2-e
—EEREREHR EE2) — Indirect GHG emission (Scope II) - Mg — S {Eh% 273.0
BJIHFE electricity consumption tonnes CO2-e
—Hth B RER BTN — Other Indirect GHG emission (Scope 11) 0 — | bk 108.6
(BE[E3) BT ER — Air travel, general waste, tonnes CO2-e
—REEYMFI B Paper consumption
BERBENES Total GHG emission Mg — A% 404.2
tonnes CO2-e
BEELRSEEAREWE? Total Intensity per million RMB in revenue? & tonnes 038
EEKBEK Sewage emission
—EK — Sewage RPN 5,863
cubic meter
BELRSAEARBIGEE Intensity per million RMB in revenue? TR 11.2
cubic meter
BEYIHER Waste emissions
—BEEY — Hazardous wastes® RIER N/A RER N/A
—mEEY — Non-hazardous wastes
> 4 > Paper B kg 896
BEERSEEARBNRRE? Intensity per million RMB in revenue? N 17
> —fR IR > General waste N 1,100
ZERSERARENR G Intensity per million RMB in revenue? AFr kg 2.1

50 China New Energy Limited
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IRIE @ A. ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

B #HZE202081 5
HH ltem Unit FY2020
BETRBFE Energy consumption
—5H — Petrol (Unleaded) L 8,360
BELRSHEARBKGRH Intensity per million RMB in revenue? FL 16.0
—B — Electricity FREF kWh 433,056
EERSERARE @ Intensity per million RMB in revenue? FEEF kWh 830.3
FEkE Water consumption
—HERK — Domestic water 37 55K cubic meter 5,863
PEREREEARBEWE Intensity per million RMB in revenue? 375 5K cubic meter 112
BAEMEHE A Use of Packaging Materials? RER N/A T NA

= Note:

1. RERARIREEIR_ETtHREES 1. GHG emission data are presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalence
5> W2 E (BIRERER) ttRERIZTFT with reference to the requirements of, including but not limited to, the
REtRFEERTREESTE 2 (RE Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard
RIERETRTE | PESHHEREITE) published by the World Resources Institute and the World Business Council
B2 PR T 38 2 (RIR R R IR S RTE for Sustainable Development, the Reporting Guidance on Environmental
S RAPEBHBRAT TN 2017547 KPIs ((IRIZRARAEKISZERISS|)) published by the Stock Exchange
FERRERS)PRERE ; and the 2017 Sustainability Report published by CLP Power Hong Kong

Limited;

2. RIBERB ZAEBRKBRAAZARKE 2. During the Reporting Period, the total revenue of the Group was
521,561,0007T © RMB521,561,000.

3. R EHE AEBTBESETAETELE 3. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not produce significant
L4 hazardous waste; and

4. RIS NEER BFEAS BEMEL 4. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not consume significant

amount of package materials.

T EEEFER
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SOCIAL

Employees are the most valuable asset to the Group. The Group
protects employees’ rights and interests, cares for their health and
safety, improves their work conditions and explores opportunities
for better career development.

Employment and Labour Practices
Aspect B1: Employment

The Group strictly adheres to the local labour laws and
regulations where it operates, including the Labour Law of the
PRC (the “Labour Law”), the Labour Contract Law of the PRC
(the “Labour Contract Law”), the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485 of the laws of Hong Kong) by
participating in the Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), the Minimum Wage Ordinance
(Cap. 608 of the laws of Hong Kong), the Employment Ordinance
(Cap. 57 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “EQ”), the Employees’
Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282 of the laws of Hong Kong)
and other laws and regulations by offering competitive wages,
medical insurance, disability and invalidity coverage, maternity
leave and other compensation to the employees.

The Group offers competitive remuneration, promotional
opportunity, compensation and benefit packages to attract
and retain talents such as making contributions to the social
security fund and the housing reserve fund for staff. The Group
has established the Remuneration Committee to review the
remuneration of the Directors. For general employees and
management, remuneration is reviewed annually on a basis taking
reference from market trends, employee qualifications, experience
and performance. During the Reporting Period, the Group had
total of 103 employees in which 95 employees was working as
full-time staff and 8 employees as temporary staff. All employees
are from different provinces in the PRC, Hong Kong and UK. The
annual turnover rate was zero.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Aspect B1: Employment (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the employee statistics (in %) of the
Group are summarized by gender, age and level as follows:

Employee Statistics In %
By Gender

Male 79
Female 21
By Age

<30 12
31-50 76
>b0 12
By Level

Senior Management 9
Mid-level 19
Entry 72

Employment Communication

Performance appraisal is an essential platform for the
management and frontline staff to evaluate their performances
and voice their expectations to the Group'’s future development.
Workload of employees is also reviewed and adjusted during
appraisals to avoid overloading.

To raise employees’ sense of belonging, the Group organises
celebratory activities during festivals such as Chinese New Year,
Mid-Autumn Festival and Christmas. Regular lunch gatherings
also foster interactive communication and create harmonious
relationships among employees. The Group will continue to
organize various recreational activities to strengthen bonds among
employees, for example, in order to celebrate the successful listing
of the Group in Hong Kong, the management arranged a company
trip for all employees from 20 to 25 August, 2020.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations in respect of
human resources.

—ZE_EEER
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SOCIAL (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Aspect B2: Health and Safety

Employees’ health and safety has always been the Group’s top
priority. The Group strictly observes the Labour Law, the Work
Safety Law of the PRC, the Fire Control Law of the PRC, the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509 of the
laws of Hong Kong). In terms of processing facilities, employees
may potentially cause operations that have a significant impact
on health and safety when using equipment. The Group has
specifically certified the Work Safety Standardization (Level 3
enterprise) which was issued by Huizhou Safety Production
Association, to provide guidelines and policies to govern a
safe working environment. The health and safety affairs will
be delegated to designated staff responsible for reviewing and
updating the manuals and procedures on respectively a quarterly
and an annual basis.

Prevention and Control Measures for COVID-19 Epidemic

In order to strengthen the prevention and control of the
COVID-19 epidemic caused by the novel coronavirus infection,
the Group reduced the gathering of personnel, which effectively
blocked the spread of the epidemic, and better protected the
lives and health of employees. It has taken relevant prevention
and control measures under the guideline issued by the local
governments including but not limited to the Work Guidelines
for the Prevention and Control of New Coronary Pneumonia in
Organizations, Enterprises and Factories Resuming Production
and Resuming Production (Second Edition) published by the
Epidemic Prevention Group of Guangdong New Coronary
Pneumonia Prevention and Control Command Office, and the
Guidelines on Labour-related Matters Arising from Severe Acute
Respiratory Syndrome for employers and employees issued by the
Hong Kong Labor Department; the management also distributes
notices to various departments and organises “COVID-19
Responding Team”. The content includes organization, planning
and implementation of epidemic prevention plans, responsible
for employee health information collection and reporting, external
information reporting (including government and property
management departments), hazard information early warning, and
temperature monitoring of employees, anti-epidemic information
propaganda, disinfection of office areas, procurement and
distribution of anti-epidemic materials, assistance for personnel
rework difficulties, vehicle arrangements, etc. The Group ensures
physical health of employees and a safe workplace and prevents
disruption to all operations.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Aspect B2: Health and Safety (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not encounter
any severe injuries or casualties. There was only 1 employee
who sustained work injury for more than 7 consecutive days.
The Group did not record any accidents that resulted in death
or serious bodily injury, did not pay any reimbursements or
compensations to the Group’s employees due to such accidents,
and was not aware of any major violations against laws and
regulations related to employees’ health and safety.

Aspect B3: Development and Training

All new employees are required to attend orientation training
and 1SO9001: 2015 management standard training to ensure
employees are aware of the Group’s values, polices and goals
and to ensure employees understand their roles in the Group.
At the Group’s processing facilities, all workers are trained and
have the necessary skills and knowledge before starting work.
The management encourages employees to formulate their own
training objectives that will equip or improve themselves with the
skills and knowledge necessary for their jobs such as Intellectual
Property Protection training. A total of 20 hours training courses
was conducted in the Reporting Period. In average, 58% of the
employees was trained with an average training hour of 3 hours.
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China New Energy Limited

SOCIAL (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

The Group complies with the Labour Law of the PRC, the
Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour of the PRC,
the EO and other laws and regulations with respecting to the
employment of youths under 16 years of age and their legal rights.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not find any major
violations of child labour or forced labor to affect its operating
activities.

The Group strictly prohibits the use of any child and forced labour
in its operations. All new employees are requested to provide
true and accurate personal information when they join the Group
for the recruitment staff to stringently verify their information
including, among other things academic certificates, identity card
and hometown information. The Group has a comprehensive
recruitment process in place to check the education and
previous working experience of every candidate, as well as a
formal reporting process to handle any exceptional cases. It also
conducts regular checks to guard against child or forced labour
in its operation. The probationary period or labour contract of
any employee who uses false information will be terminated
immediately. To ensure health and safety of staff, forced labour
is strictly prohibited and no staff can start working before the
completion of the relevant training.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)

Aspect B4: Labour Standards (Continued)
Equal opportunity

The Group puts effort in ensuring equal opportunities to be given
to employees in respect of recruitment, training and development,
job advancement, and compensation and benefits. The employees
are not discriminated against or deprived of such opportunities
on the basis of gender, ethnic background, religion, colour,
sexual orientation, age, marital status, family status, retirement,
disability, pregnancy or any other discrimination prohibited
by applicable laws in the PRC and Hong Kong. To eliminate
workspace discrimination, if employees are treated unfairly or feel
discriminated against by action or speech, employees can report
directly to the management. The management will investigate into
the reported case and take corresponding stringent disciplinary
actions after verification. Employees can also report directly to the
Equal Opportunities Commission.

Operating Practices
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

The Group supports the reduction in emission of GHG and will
prioritise the use of local suppliers possessing the same conditions
as by non-local counterpart. The total number of suppliers and
contractors are 154 companies which are all local and come from
the PRC and Hong Kong.

The Group adheres to fair and transparent operating practices
through the adoption of internal policies which set out the
selection and assessment procedure for suppliers and contractors.
Furthermore, while selecting the suppliers or subcontractors,
it avoids engaging questionable environmental practices. The
Group maintains an approved list of suppliers and service
providers. The potential suppliers and contractors must fulfill the
assessment criteria before they are put on the approved list, and
the criteria include, among others, price, quality, reputation in the
industry, financial performance, delivery time, services as well as
commitment to environmental and social responsibilities.
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China New Energy Limited

SOCIAL (continued)

Operating Practices (Continued)
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
Product and service complaints

The Group values the importance of providing quality core
system of ethanol production system and integrated services to
customers. The Group requires the quality management to be
based on the 1ISO9001:2015 certification standard, aiming to
continuously improve its quality control system and improve the
level of product manufacturing and service management. During
the Reporting Period, the total number of 30 systems were sold
and there was no request for recall or complaint.

Intellectual Property Protection

During the Reporting Period, the Group had registered 1
trademark in Hong Kong and it had also submitted 17 patents
registration applications in the PRC and 1 patent registration
application in Brazil. Moreover, the Group is the owner of 34
patents which are material to the business and have 4 domain
names. In order to commit to protecting intellectual property rights,
the Group set Patent Management Measures (Revised in 2018)
guidelines to ensure the protection of business data and prevent
unauthorized disclosure of sensitive information to third parties.
Policies and procedures in place are regularly reviewed and
updated to adhere to the latest local laws and regulations, such as
the Patent Law of the PRC, the Trademark Law of the PRC, and
the Patents (Amendment) Ordinance 2016 of Hong Kong etc.

Confidentiality

Confidential information includes all knowledge of the Group
affairs, secrets or information of the Group. This includes but not
limited to affairs, secrets and information relating to the scope
of business, personnel, operation, policies, strategies, clientele,
contracts and financial position. All employees acknowledge and
warrant not to disclose the above information, within and after the
period of employment, by signing the employment contract.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices (Continued)
Aspects B7: Anti-corruption

The Group commits to managing all businesses without undue
influence and has regarded honesty, integrity, and fairness as its
core values. All Directors and employees are required to strictly
follow all applicable laws on prohibiting corruption and bribery
of the PRC and Hong Kong and the Group's policy to prevent
potential bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. Gifts
or entertainment from persons dealing with the Group are not
allowed unless it is in the normal course of Company business or
approved by the Board. All conflict of interest shall be avoided and
declared to the management or Director when it exists. The Group
has whistleblowing policy concerning faults in financial reporting,
misconduct and corruption. When suspicious case is reported, the
Group undergoes independent investigation on the case.

During the Reporting Period, there are no concluded cases of
corruption brought against the Company or its employees.

Community
Aspect B8: Community Investment

The Group believes that it is important to take social responsibility
and give back to the community with practical actions. During
the COVID-19 epidemic, in order to alleviate the shortage
of disinfectant alcohol in major hospitals and major service
departments in Guangdong Province, the Company donated 7
tons of 75% medical disinfectant alcohol, and had our executives
sending those materials to 17 hospitals, Traffic Control Bureau of
Guangdong Police Department and other frontline departments in
Guangdong Province.

The Group also encourages its subsidiaries and employees to
participate in social charity and fundraising activities, including
visits to nursing homes, orphanages, and blood donations, to
convey their message of community care. The Group believes
these engagements will not only improve the employees’ moral
standards and personal character, but will also deliver the
message of care and love to those in need.
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China New Energy Limited

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

GROUP REORGANISATION/DELISTING FROM
AIM AND LISTING IN HONG KONG

The Company was incorporated in Jersey, Channel Islands on 2 May 2006
as a public company with limited liability under the Companies (Jersey)
Law 1991. The Shares had been admitted to trading on AIM of London
Stock Exchange Group plc since 23 May 2011 under the stock code
AIM: CNEL. The Group had undertaken reorganisation arrangements
in preparation for the listing on the Stock Exchange. For details of the
Group's reorganisation, please refer to the section headed “History,
Reorganisation and Corporate Structure” in the Prospectus. On 15 July
2020, the Shares were successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange by way of global offering (the “Global Offering”) and delisted
from AIM.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group
is principally engaged in the provision of ethanol production system
technology integrated service in the ethanol fuel and alcoholic beverage
industries in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”).
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company are set
out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, and assets and liabilities of the Group for the
years ended 31 December 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 is set out on
page 228 of this annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as well as a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31 December
2020 and an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business can be found in the sections headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 8 to 16 of this annual report. An analysis of the
Group’s performance during the year under review using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the Financial Highlights on page 5 of
this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are a number of potential risks and uncertainties which could have
a material impact on the Group’s performance and could cause actual
results to differ materially from expected and historical results. The Board
monitors risks on an ongoing basis and has implemented appropriate
procedures and processes to manage and mitigate the adverse
consequences of such risks. The principal risks are as follows:

Uncertainties in the promotion of ethanol fuel

The main sales driver for new projects continues to be the 13th Five
Year Plan for Renewable Energy Development, and the policy related to
the new nationwide ethanol mandate announced in September 2017,
pursuant to which the mandatory use of ethanol fuel would be promoted
to the entire country by 2020. This demonstrated the intention of the
PRC government to develop the ethanol fuel industry by significantly
expanding the ethanol fuel production capacity. However, the nationwide
usage of ethanol fuel might increase the feedstock price in the future,
which could cause the government to adjust the policy. In addition, it is
generally difficult to predict whether or when the Company will secure new
contracts, as it may depend on a number of factors, such as the actual
business needs of the potential customers, market conditions, financing
arrangements and government policy.
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China New Energy Limited

Order book and contract backlog

Whilst the Group has a strong order book and contract backlog, the
projected revenue amounts might not be able to result in actual revenue
or translate into profits and therefore are not indicative of the future
results of the operations of the Group. Contract backlog figures represent
the estimate of the total contract value of work which remain to be
completed pursuant to the terms of the outstanding ethanol production
system technology integrated service contracts. The contract value of a
project or other transaction represents the amount the Group expects
to receive as at the relevant date. However, such backlog figure is
based on the assumption that the relevant contracts will be performed
in full in accordance with their terms and schedule. Since the contract
may be subject to cancellations or change of order or schedule by the
counterparty or other force majeure which may affect the progress of the
project, such changes to any one or more sizeable contracts could have
substantial and immediate effect on the backlog of the Group, and could
reduce the amount of backlog and revenue and profit that it can actually
generate and put pressure on our working capital.

Accounts receivable and progress payment from customers

The Group may experience delays or defaults in recognising trade
receivables and progress payments from its customers. For the ethanol
production system technology integrated service projects, project owners
typically make progress payments to the Group with reference to the
percentage of work completed at specific milestone dates. In accordance
with the contracts entered into between the Group and its customers,
once the service project reaches a certain stage as specified in the
relevant contract, the Group will be paid a portion of the contract value on
a progressive basis. The milestone stages of payment generally include
(i) the signing of the contract; (ii) before delivery of the equipment to the
project site of the customer; (iii) after completion of installation of the
equipment and issuance of project completion report; and (iv) the expiry
of the defect liability period, which is generally 12 months from the date
of project completion report issued by the customer. From time to time,
the Group may be required to commit cash and other resources to the
projects prior to reaching a payment stage to cover certain expenses
for the projects. There is a risk that the customers do not fuffill their
contractual obligations pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
contracts and will fail to make full and timely payments to the Group.
Delays in progress payments by the customers may significantly increase
the working capital needs and thereby affects the liquidity of the Group,
and would also adversely affect the financial condition and results of
operations of the Group.
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Research and development

As part of the business strategies, the Group continues to focus on
research and development to strengthen its design and engineering
capability. Advanced biofuels using cellulose as feedstock have been
touted as the next step beyond the corn-based ethanol. However,
cellulosic ethanol is more difficult to produce than grain ethanol because
it uses the inedible and irregular parts of the plants. Cellulosic ethanol
production also requires the in-house development of new technologies.
The Group may be unsuccessful in researching and developing such
new technologies. The success of the Group’s business is therefore
dependent upon its ability to continuously develop, in a timely manner,
new technological applications through research and development and
introduce new solution designs to cater to the customers’ requirements.
The Group may be required to invest extra time and resources to develop
new technological applications for solution designs in order to satisfy
changing requirements of the customers.

Competition

The Group operates in a competitive industry and it may not be able to
maintain an edge over its competitors. There are other providers of ethanol
production systems operating in the market who may possess more in-
depth experience, expertise, technical know-how and financial ability
to capitalise on pricing strategies and other services to gain an edge in
the competition. There can be no guarantee that the competitiveness of
its competitors will not improve or that the Group will be successful in
expanding its market share against its competitors or expanding into new
markets. Hence this could adversely affect the Group’s business, financial
condition and operating results.

The Group's financial instruments and financial risk management
objectives and policies are set out in note 38 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2020 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 90 to 93 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the distribution of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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RESERVES

Details of the changes in reserves of the Group and the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 94 and notes 35 and 43 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s distributable reserves consist of share premium and
retained earnings. As at 31 December 2020, distributable reserves of the
Company amounted to approximately RMB74million (2019: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL
OFFERING

The net proceeds from the Global Offering after deducting underwriting
commissions and related expenses were approximately HK$20 million. As
at 31 December 2020, approximately HK$15 million out of net proceeds
had been used in accordance with the use of proceeds set out in the
Prospectus as further described in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles”) or the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991
which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to
existing Shareholders.



TERRRMERS

HE2020F12A31HIEFE  AEA R AT LN
THEER(HARIH ERENAI81% RAZ P RIIHERE
#91549% ° B A B 7 A BB (EH R h4R
IRIBRERVA940% > MIER AL FE R 1F BB A (S
28% -

EFUHAMERHBANERRER (BEFF
¥R B TRMNABEAEIS% I L) R AEER
BEARERRMEETHEES E k-

BFMEZETERR

REER R HEE B EBBHE LA
&I AER RSN T ERFHDE - NEE S
BIRPEAFES BESEEESE AR F
RIEEERB R EERRY OEHEEREAE
) BTELUIRMEIIFENE R RRE WA
& o

EREZHEER FERAFRBLENEY
NRIZ-HERERRSE]

EXEEHREG
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, sales to the Group's five largest
customers amounted to approximately 81% of the total sales and sales to
the largest customer accounted for approximately 49%. Purchases from
the Group's five largest suppliers amounted to approximately 40% of the
total purchases and purchases from the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 28%.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the total
number of issued Shares) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers, business associates
and the local community are key stakeholders of the Group’s success.
The Group strives to achieve corporate sustainability through engaging
employees, providing quality services to customers and collaborating
with business associates (including suppliers and contractors) to deliver
sustainable products and services and support the local community.

For more detailed information, please refer to the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” on pages 42 to 59 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December 2020
and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Weijun (Chairman)
Mr. Tang Zhaoxing (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Richard Antony Bennett

Mr. Chan Shing Fat Heron
Mr. Chan Siu Shan Sam

(appointed on 15 July 2020)
(appointed on 15 July 2020)

All existing Directors including Mr. Yu Weijun, Mr. Tang Zhaoxing,
Mr. Richard Antony Bennett, Mr. Chan Shing Fat Heron and Mr. Chan
Siu Shan Sam shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out pages 17 to 24 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors regarding his independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers each of them being independent.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts or appointment letters,
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Group were entered into or
subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no contract of
significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a
controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined in the Listing Rules,
the “Controlling Shareholder”) or any of its subsidiaries during the period
from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020.

ARRANGEMENTS FOR DIRECTORS TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
below, at no time during the period from the Listing Date to 31 December
2020 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of an
acquisition of Shares or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate, and neither the Directors nor any of their spouses or children
under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for securities of the
Company or had exercised such right.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to which the Company or any related company
(holding companies, subsidiaries, or fellow subsidiaries) was a party and
in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020.

—ZE_EEER
Annual Report 2020

67



EE A
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ESNBFEBIEDR

R _Em BEAEE2020FE12831 H LB KRB E
REREBH BimE SRR ERIEE B
A (EF&R EmRA) PEMREAERZER
BRI AR (B BRI R MPNER
AR MR EE A I e B A F]

mERe

EESFRERX

7t £ BEAZE2020F 12831 HHA M B E AR
SR ARBRARERFTASFERBUER
AEE EEMNEED AREABRERS E
EFFRBE RS AR IR S ERE M EZE
SRV REEREEAREFERNBESERN
FMRBENEFRSHBEEERPEPIRE

68

China New Energy Limited

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020 and
up to the date of this report, none of the Directors or the Controlling
Shareholders or their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
is interested in any business which competes or may compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group nor any conflicts of
interest which has or may have with the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020 and up
to the date of this report, the Company has in force indemnity provisions
as permitted under the relevant statutes for the benefit of the Directors
(including former Directors) of the Company. The permitted indemnity
provisions are provided for in the Articles and in the Directors and officers
liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential liability
and costs associated with legal proceedings that may be brought against
such Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ")) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors and chief executive of
the Company were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be recorded in the register therein, or were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as

follows:
MBI EFE © Long position in Shares:
EEREEEIT
e B,/ #mEtE iR & B st REBAOESLE
Approximate
% of the issued
Capacity/ Number of share capital
Name of Director Nature of Interest Shares Total of the Company
REHREE R EEER (atl)
Mr. Yu Weijun Interest in controlled corporation
(Note 1) 99,012,168 99,012,168
Ba#EBA
Beneficial owner 3,070,352 3,070,352
102,082,520 17.31%
BIKEEE REEBER (E22)
Mr. Tang Zhaoxing Interest in controlled corporation
(Note 2) 48,000,000 48,000,000
EnEBA
Beneficial owner 3,070,352 3,070,352
51,070,352 8.66%
Richard Antony Bennett4t4E BELEBA
Mr. Richard Antony Bennett Beneficial owner 3,908,099 3,908,099 0.66%
“ETEEFR
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Notes:

I These 99,012,168 Shares were held by Tewin Capital Holding Limited (“Tewin
Capital”) which was wholly owned by Mr. Yu Weijun. Mr. Yu was deemed or taken to
be interested in the same block of Shares held by Tewin Capital for the purpose of the
SFO.

2. These 48,000,000 Shares were held by Tonzest Capital Holding Limited (“Tonzest
Capital”) which was wholly owned by Mr. Tang Zhaoxing. Mr. Tang was deemed or
taken to be interested in the same block of Shares held by Tonzest Capital for the
purpose of the SFO. On 9 October 2020, 48,000,000 Shares have been pledged by
Tonzest Capital in favour of an independent third party as a security of a loan in the
amount HK$1,500,000.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, so far as is known to
the Company, none of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which the
Directors and chief executive of the Company were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein;
or were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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EmkXE

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

202012831 H » BEEFA > FHA L (EIE  As at 31 December 2020, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
EEYANBETBTHAL) RIRH AR persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had
S BRI S RIS IRBISEXVERS$E28K3  interests or short positions in Shares or underlying Shares which would
EBRME S A A B R B AP R » SRt AA  fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
TIRIEE 5 R RSB SE3368 B FFEMESE  provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the

AR Eka

register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to the section 336

of the SFO:
_ EEAT
ML 4B REtE FRisRR IR AR 8L BEITREMA%
Approximate
% of the issued
Number of share capital
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest Shares Held of the Company
Tewin Capital ERmBEA Witl) 99,012,168 16.79%
Beneficial owner (Note 1)
ERHELT Ff@ess (Wa21) 102,082,520 17.31%
Ms. Tan Fenggiao Interest of spouse (Note 1)
Tonzest Capital BREA AN W:2) 48,000,000 8.14%
Beneﬂmal owner (Note 2)
BRELT ffBm (Wit2) 51,070,352 8.66%
Ms. Zeng Fanghua Interest of spouse (Note 2)
Best Full Investments Limited BEEBEA A (W323) 48,000,000 8.14%
Beneficial owner (Note 3)
REEEE TEAEER (1E3) 48,000,000 8.14%
Mr. Liang Hongtao Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 3)
mEUL Fofdtgm (frat4) 48,000,000 8.14%
Ms. Han Jing Interest of spouse (Note 4)
Kapok Capital Management Limited BmEA A (55) 44,652,107 7.57%
Beneficial owner (Note 5)
PRI 2+ TEE R (5E5) 44,652,107 7.57%
Ms. Chen Wai Ling Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 5)
Jojo Global Investment Limited Enla A Wie) 32,100,000 5.44%
Beneficial owner (Note 6)
EMERL REEEER (Ete) 32,100,000 5.44%
Mr. Jiang Xinchun Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 6)
EmEAA 3,070,352 0.52%
Beneficial owner
FHZ L BBt (W527) 35,170,352 5.96%
Ms. Wang Yan Interest of spouse (Note 7)
“ETEEFR
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China New Energy Limited

Notes:

Ms. Tan Fengqiao is the spouse of Mr. Yu Weijun, the Chairman and an executive
Director. The interests of Mr. Yu Weijun in the Company comprised (i) 99,012,168
Shares held by his wholly owned corporation, Tewin Capital; and (i) 3,070,352
Shares held by Mr. Yu directly. Ms. Tan Fengqiao was deemed to be interested in all
the Shares in which Mr. Yu Weijjun was beneficially interested for the purpose of the
SFO.

Ms. Zeng Fanghua is the spouse of Mr. Tang Zhaoxing, the Chief Executive Officer
and an executive Director. The interests of Mr. Tang Zhaoxing in the Company
comprised (i) 48,000,000 Shares held by his wholly owned corporation, Tonzest
Capital; and (ii) 3,070,352 Shares held by Mr. Tang directly. Ms. Zeng Fanghua was
deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Tang Zhaoxing was beneficially
interested for the purpose of the SFO.

Best Full Investments Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Liang Hongtao. Therefore, Mr.
Liang Hongtao was deemed or taken to be interested in 48,000,000 Shares held by
Best Full Investments Limited for the purpose of the SFO.

Ms. Han Jing is the spouse of Mr. Liang Hongtao. Ms. Han Jing was deemed to be
interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Liang Hongtao was interested for the purpose
of the SFO.

Kapok Capital Management Limited was wholly owned by Ms. Chen Wan Ling.
Therefore, Ms. Chen Wan Ling was deemed or taken to be interested in 44,652,107
Shares held by Kapok Capital Management Limited for the purpose of the SFO.

Jojo Global Investment Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Jiang Xinchun. Therefore,
Mr. Jiang Xinchun was deemed or taken to be interested in 32,100,000 Shares held
by Jojo Global Investment Limited for the purpose of the SFO.

Ms. Wang Yan is the spouse of Mr. Jiang Xinchun. Ms. Wang Yan was deemed to be
interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Jiang Xinchun was interested for the purpose
of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no other person (other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company whose interests are set
out in the section headed “Directors” and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above)
had, or were taken or deemed to have interests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions of the Group are set out
in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company confirms that in relation to the related party transactions
during the year ended 31 December 2020, it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Tewin Capital and Mr. Yu Weijun, Tonzest Capital and Mr. Tang Zhaoxing,
and Jojo Global Investment Limited and Mr. Jiang Xinchun (collectively,
the “Covenantors”) has each entered into a deed of non-competition
dated 16 June 2020 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) in favour of the
Company (for itself and for the benefit of each of its subsidiaries).

The Covenantors have confirmed that they have fully complied with the
terms of the Deed of Non-Competition. The independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and written confirmation
from the Covenantors, and confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, all
the undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition have been complied
with by each of the Covenantors since the Listing Date and up to the date
of this report.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Group is set up to award employees
and Directors based on their performance, qualifications, competence
displayed and market comparable companies. A remuneration package
typically comprises salary, contribution to pension schemes and
discretionary bonuses relating to the profit of the relevant company. The
remuneration of the Directors is recommended by the Remuneration
Committee and is decided by the Board, having regard to the prevailing
market practice, the Company’s remuneration policy and the employee’s
seniority, experiences and their duties and responsibilities with the Group.
The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (as defined in
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” of this report) as an incentive
arrangement for eligible employees. The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
expired on 16 October 2020, and the Company would look for substituting
arrangement as incentive for the employees.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out in note 3
to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” of this
report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group
or subsisting at the end of or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2020.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the pre-IPO share option scheme (“Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”) pursuant to the resolutions passed by the Board on
17 October 2017 which was valid and effective for a period of 3 years.
The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to provide long-
term incentive for the Directors and senior management, and employees
of the Company and its subsidiaries. Under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, the Board may grant an option to any employee of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries. The maximum number of Shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
issued share capital of the Company immediately before the adoption of
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (i.e. 49,125,635 Shares, representing
approximately 8.33% of the issued Shares as at the date of this report).
The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme to each eligible person in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the number of Shares in issue as at the date of grant unless
approved by the Shareholders in general meeting.

The Board can determine the exercise price of the options for the
allotment and issue of the Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme at their discretion so long as the exercise price is not lower than
the nominal value of the Shares. No amount shall be paid by an employee
for the grant of an option under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. An
option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme and the relevant option certificate at any time during
the exercise period subject to the provisions of early termination thereof,
save that no option may be exercised more than 3 years after it has been
granted. All options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
were vested on the date of the relevant grant which have been exercisable
from the relevant grant date until the day immediately before the third
anniversary of the relevant grant date. Further details of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme are disclosed in notes 34 and 35(d) to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, no share options were outstanding under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. During the period from the Listing Date to
31 December 2020, 38,786,855 options were exercised, 513,653 options
were lapsed and no options were granted or cancelled.

The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the
date on which the share options were exercised during the period from the
Listing Date to 31 December 2020 was HK$0.365 per Share.

—EDEER
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RIEER AR ERERESTEE HAVEERME  The movements in the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
R _Emf BHIE20205F 12831 HWRIESZ;R80  Option Scheme during the period from the Listing Date to 31 December

T~ o= 2020 are shown below:—
BRERE
Number of share options
142020 felke felke Rl
SEENLHER REHRS B BRE Bz HBR%y 128318 b=k NS (hicdH
iz
As at the Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed As at Date of Validity Exercise
Name o category Listing during during during during 31 December grant of period of price of
of participant Date the period the period the period the period 2020  share options  share options  share options
GBP
per share
#rES
Executive Directors
REGLE 3070352 - (3070,352) - - - N0R017 17102017 - 0015
Mr. Yu Weijun 1711012020
ErELE 3070352 - (3070,352) - - - N0R017 17102017 - 0015
Mr. Tang Zhaoxing 177102020
BUjEES
Independent Non-executive
Director
Richard Antony Bennett? 3,070,352 - (3,070.352) - = - 1710017 170002017 - 0015
Mr. Richard Antony Bennett 171012020
gt 9,211,086 - (9,211,056) - - -
Sub-fotal
it
Others
EHEEE 8,436,709 - (8436,709) - - - DN0R0L7 17102017 - 0015
Senior Management 177102020
£8 21,652,743 - (21,139,090 = (b13,653) - 7N0R017 177102017 - 0015
Employees 1771012020
gt 30089452 - (8575719) - (5136%3) -
Sub-fotal
st 39,300,508 - (3878,8%) - (513,683) -
Total

76 China New Energy Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

To the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group has complied with
the relevant environmental and occupational health and safety laws and
regulations in China and we did not have any incidents or complaints
which had a material and adverse effect on the business, financial
condition or results of operations of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2020.

For more detailed information about the Group’s environmental policies
and performance for this financial year, please refer to the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” on pages 42 to 59 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is subject to various laws and regulations including the
Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 of the Jersey, Channel Islands, the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
Business Registration Ordinance (Chapter 310 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
etc. The Group has put in place internal controls to ensure compliance of
the same. In addition, as the Group carries out business activities in China,
compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable
PRC laws, rules and regulations which have significant impact on the
Group. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations are
brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant operation units
in the Company and subsidiaries from time to time.

As far as the Board is aware, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has
a significant impact on the business and operations of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

T EEEFER
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EBE -HEsErl4a~~25 ™ PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF

k2

LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

B FiHEAREE2020F12831H1E» &AFI8,  Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
HEAIWBASEMEES - HEBRIZATIE  redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities since the Listing Date
il EiE8ss o

REFTFRETRE

and up to 31 December 2020.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

RIEAAB O ER ABERKMESAE > Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
HEAERAE AABERE LMRAISIBAAR  within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual report,
DR A BB TIRAN25% 2 AR TR & © at least 25% of the Company's total issued share capital is held by the

public under the Listing Rules.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF THE
DIRECTORS

R AT EhiRBISE 13518115 EEERI>Z Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange,

EEhEFIuT the changes in information of the Directors are set out below:
EEEs SEFE
Name of Director Details of changes
REBERE WH2022F1 A2l HREEMNEXERERMBERAE ERMBIOFIESFZZPM L
™) B IENITES
Mr. Yu Weijun He resigned as an independent non-executive director of Guangzhou Startec Science and

Richard Antony Bennettst 4

Mr. Richard Antony Bennett

Technology Co., Ltd.* (B2 2R RDBRAT]), the shares of which are listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, with effect from 21 January 2022.

W 20214E1 H28H EEEAGetech Group ple (EAASE :GTC) (ERRMD MRS
FRB L) NEFERIFNTES -

He was appointed as a chairman and non-executive director of Getech Group plc (stock
code: GTC), the shares of which are listed on the London Stock Exchange, with effect from
28 January 2021.

b EXFriREEEsN  EEMER BRI LR Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be
BIZ1351B(IMETZB TR o

/8
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disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

* For identification purpose only
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AUDITOR

On 7 January 2022, KTC Partners CPA Limited was appointed as the
auditor of the Company by the Board to fill the causal vacancy following
the resignation of PricewaterhouseCoopers and to hold office until the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 have been audited by KTC Partners CPA Limited. A resolution to
re-appoint KTC Partners CPA Limited as the independent auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Yu Weijun
Chairman
Hong Kong, 22 April 2022

—ZE_EEER
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KTC Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants (Practisi

ng)

MESEEBRARLE

BIZHETIR S
2China New Energy Limitedi@ 58
(PR EFA B I ARAE)

REER

EEBZ TSN EFEIE227E A FEChina New
Energy Limited (MEAF)) REHRB AT #fs
MEE£E)) NiRa RS P E1EF2020
FI2B3HWNGREMBR IR B EZ B IEF
ERNGEERX GoBEakEME2EmKE
R xEERERRMMTERERER UK
IREMBRERME BRI EGHBRBE-

g =

BEERR BEEZREFRERRNEE—M

PREIEN A RER BN ZFREGHBRERE

BB BREZER] ((RIRMFBRSER)
HEMAE#RET SEEIN2020F128
BIRMGREMBR N KRB EZB L FERER
BMBRERGERERE LEBREER
EMRGIRYIR B BRI A it

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of China New Energy Limited
(incorporated in Jersey with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China New
Energy Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 90 to 227, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described
in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Room 617, 6/F., Seapower Tower, Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road, Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Akt

Tel & 3%: (852)2314 7999
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

Payments for various professional and consultancy services

The auditors which were originally engaged by the Company to act
as auditors of the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Predecessor
Auditors”) resigned as auditors with effect from 28 June 2021. The
Predecessor Auditors had raised concerns (the “Audit Issues”) over
certain payments of a total of not less than RMB18,603,000 (equivalent
to HK$21,995,000) paid by the Group to various service providers (the
“Service Providers”) for various professional and consultancy services (the
“Concerned Transactions”). The Audit Issues in relation to the Concerned
Transactions included the commercial substance and business rationale
for engaging the Service Providers to provide such services shortly
after the listing of the shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited on 15 July 2020 and for prepaying the entire
contract sum in full, and whether there was any relationship between
certain of the Service Providers with the Group and its management.
The Independent Investigation Committee formed by the Company has
engaged an independent professional advisor (the “Advisor”) to conduct
an independent investigation on the Concerned Transactions. The Advisor
completed its investigation and issued an independent investigation report
dated 17 January 2022.

—ETEER
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China New Energy Limited

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (continued)

Payments for various professional and consultancy services (Continued)

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy
ourselves about the validity, business rationale, commercial substance and
classification of the payment transactions that led to the recognition by the
Group of the purported professional, advisory and consultancy service fees
of approximately RMB18,603,000 as legal and professional fees expenses
included in administrative expenses recognised in consolidated profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 and whether any of the parties
involved in the Concerned Transactions were related to the Group or
related parties of the Group as there were certain limitation in the Advisor's
work as stated in the Advisor's independent report. The limitations of
the independent investigation were described in the announcement of
the Company dated 28 January 2022, including the refusal of some
interviewees to attend any interview by way of video conference or
telephone call with the Advisor. In addition, certain part of the work of
the Advisor was not backed by sufficient supporting documents and the
management of the Company was unable to provide us with sufficient
documentary evidence to corroborate the explanations about the business
rationale and commercial substance of the Concerned Transactions. There
were no alternative audit procedures that we could perform to satisfy
ourselves as to whether these professional, advisory and consultancy
services fee expense of approximately RMB18,603,000 and the related
disclosures thereof in the consolidated financial statements were free
from material misstatement. Any adjustments that might have been found
necessary may have a significant effect on the fair presentation of the
consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020, including the classification
and related disclosure in the consolidated financial statements of the
expenses or losses arising from the Concerned Transactions.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our qualified opinion.
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A ESTEIA KEY AUDIT MATTERS

RSBt RIERIRIEE SN E L 534%  Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,

KT EMBFRRNBFEAEEMNSEIEE  were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial

LSRR ESETESMEmME (EARES)  statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the

ERHEERRETREN MBS AEHZE  context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,

FIERHEBNRER and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

FASRE T EIE
Key Audit Matter

WRCEEERMERGRERE

ENFIRIEMBRESRE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Revenue recognition for ethanol production system construction contract

B2 $ SRR M EES ©
Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

B E2020F12A31HIEFE > E£EBJELEERA
BREREE =R ARS519,683,0007T BRI X8

FE s RS o

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s revenue

of RMB519,683,000 was derived from ethanol production

system construction contract for which revenue is recognised

over time.

EEAERIERARESTEEMAITHNER &
Our procedures performed to address this key audit matter
included:

Tﬁﬁﬂ‘%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ&m&lﬁﬁ%%LX&TE%ZE%I
ERRER R 2 S E R AIRRIZES
Obtained an understandmg of the key controls over
management’s review and approval of project budgets
and estimates of revenue recognition from ethanol
production system construction contract;

HEIEERESIEB A 7 REE N EE KRR
SRR ;

Discussed with management and the respective project
teams to understand the progress of the projects and
relevant contract terms;

—ETEER
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AT EIE @

RSB EE (8
Key Audit Matter (Continued)

ROEBEERRERSEEREE (&

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

EENEHNARIERRESSEE (@
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Continued)

Revenue recognition for ethanol production system construction contract (Continued)

EEBCERLERGERSRMSENEEELERE
MR ENRSRIEBE NENEEIVEERD c ZEE T K
BARYET R Gt - ZEENRE SEERETEANS
EFMTEHMN B AR LA 2 2 EEEREHAFRA
EXNESRNAEEREERGFREANE DT
The Group recognises revenue from its ethanol production
system construction contracts based on progress made
towards complete satisfaction of its performance obligation
under contracts. This basis involves significant judgements
and estimates. The progress is measured based on
the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation, by reference to the contract costs
incurred up to the end of reporting period as a percentage of
total estimated costs for each product in the contract.

EERRER—HRRNSEFEEH ERAEEERM
STTERLIE B PR IOER T A AN B e AR B2 A I T > LUFEE 52
B B 72 b o BRI 2E BRI T #R &5 AR R 58 o

We considered this as a key audit matter because
management applied significant judgements in estimating
the remaining cost to complete the projects in order to
determine the percentage of completion and thus the
revenue to be recognised for the reporting period.

84 China New Energy Limited

IR E EZHEH E20205F12831HIEFEEAER
BERA UZFEERERZ MR EEEBR
AL AR E R ;

Tested, on a sample basis, the project costs incurred
during the year ended 31 December 2020 to supporting
evidence including purchase agreements, materials
receipt notes and labour cost records;

ERERERBESINERRAKREEERIER
PR S B9 FE SE 5T A B9 FE M 14 > ST SE Al IR B B 51 A%
A

Evaluated the estimated cost to complete the project by
considering the actual costs incurred subsequent to the
year end, and the accuracy of management's historical
estimation of the project costs;

BMEEERH R RAEERE=RE LM
THRENSENEES  SiEEETHEBEERNER
Enl sy &

Checked, on a sample basis, the settlements from
customers and third-party evidence to evaluate progress
towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation, including final customer confirmation of
acceptance when a project is completed; and

ZHEIEEHEE2020F12831H IEFErFEEN
ERMAMGETERABE DN S WREZA
DEEER T E SRR

Checked management’s calculation of percentage
of actual costs incurred up to the year ended 31
December 2020 to total estimated costs, and
recalculated the revenue recognised based on the
percentage.

7 BRCEBREERMERSFE XA AR

BRI BEAK

We found the key assumptions used in revenue recognition
from ethanol production system construction contract were

supported by the available evidence.
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AT EIE @

FEEEE (B
Key Audit Matter (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

EEMNEHNARERRBESEE @
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Continued)

B S REIAR BB AR &R EERETG

Impairment assessment of trade and bills receivables and contract assets

FE2 RS T IRERMEE21 ~ 23/538(b) EEAEERARETEEMNTHNEREE .
Refer to notes 21, 23 and 38(b) to the consolidated financial ~ Our procedures performed to address this key audit matter
statements. included:

B EWAHIBERERZEEBEUREREER20205F125
31HBYABRE A AR #8243 ,860,0007T » 122020512831 H
BB EAREE A AR 125,421,0007T ©

The gross trade and bills receivables and contract assets
amounted to RMB243,860,000 as at 31 December 2020,
with total loss allowance of RMB25,421,000 as at 31
December 2020.

EEEGRRESRENR BRAKBER T KBRESRE
ZRBR2HTEEZREFEREREEURERE
ENEREEEERE TERHEEHER &
EEEZRARENRE - TREZXAERBNMERERARK
MABTEENEREEBE UASERIAR R AAHE
MRERFETAE - FTILARERAERR > SEEZRE
NARZEELERR - 2ERSBEER TERBEER
1B EE o

The Group assesses expected credit loss allowances of
trade and bills receivables and contract assets using the
risk parameters including historical default rates, forecast
economic conditions and expected credit loss. When
measuring expected credit loss, the Group considers
the ageing of the balances, the nature and credit profile
of different customer base, credit loss incurred for the
customers in the past, and adjusts by considerations such as
current conditions and forward looking factors. In assessing
forward looking factors, the Group considers factors including
economic policies, macroeconomic indicators, industry risks
and changes in customers’ conditions.

TRHEBEENMEE R RUEERERERUARE
[FE AR ER BTN ;

Obtained an understanding of the key controls over
management’s assessment of the impairment of trade
and bills receivables and contract assets;

TEEEBRANELEROE EFst Rk FREER
BRI B R E BN R R E SR IZAIKE ;
Assessed the historical default rates applied by
management, considering the nature and credit profile
of different customer base, the historical levels of
defaults;

BRESERERE TERMBER FHHE R
RRBEEEMETPERNAREERE ;
Assessed current conditions and the forward looking
factors considered by management in the assessment
by referencing to macroeconomic, industry and market
information;

RHREEZEEZRRIEBEREWERAREE
BEHEEENRERHEMREEEER ; &
Tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing
of the trade and hills receivables and contract assets to
invoices and other supporting evidence; and
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FEESFEER @

RSB EE (8
Key Audit Matter (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

EENEHNARIERRESSEE (@
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Continued)

B B RHRIAREWREUR & EEENRESE (8

Impairment assessment of trade and bills receivables and contract assets (Continued)

EERNEFRERERBREREUAREGEEENH
ETER

BEffER—HRREFE HDEREERER
TERHE -

R EEZHFEAREBNERGEE
Tested, on a sample basis, settlement made by the
customers subsequent to year end.

We considered this as a key audit matter because

management applied significant judgements in the
impairment assessment of trade and bill receivables and

contract assets.

HthFEI18

REEEHE2019F 12831 H L FEMR ST
BRES LS 20U Z SR
RERNEETER

Hth&E#
BADEERH MDA E - HE O

FRETISRFHRANER ERNREREHE
BERKRE SIS E BRI EERE

EEHGEMBREANBERETIAHERMSE
k EFTAHZFEMBEREREATARN

EHRIT U BERERNES BENER
BHEMER rﬁtLﬁEF‘ EREMER
EMBHRARNBEEEERELRF
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EERREZRBEFEREREREUREREERETH
PRV RA SRR T BRI fik o

We found the key assumptions used in impairment assessment
of trade and bills receivables and contract assets were
supported by the available evidence.

OTHER MATTER

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019 were audited by another auditor who expressed an
unmodified opinion on those statements.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that are of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

KTC Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

Chow Yiu Wah, Joseph
Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number PO4686
Hong Kong, 22 April 2022
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RERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

HZE2020F12831HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2020

et 20204 20194
AR%FT AER®TFIT
Note 2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
e Revenue 5 521,561 398,558
SHE B2 Cost of sales (388,845) (289,141)
EF Gross profit 132,716 109,417
HE REHE X Selling and marketing expenses (8,799) (8,617)
TR Administrative expenses (52,493) (27,700)
FEREEBEEN TN Impairment losses under expected
ERSTE > f0RREE D] credit loss model, net of reversal 10 (16,211) (3,555)
EHAhUg A Other income 7 2,350 1,836
Hitham — 328 Other gains — net 8 751 2,409
R Operating profit 58,314 73,790
RS Finance income 9 45 49
SR Finance costs 9 (1,415) (1,384)
A TS AN AN 558 Finance costs-net (1,370) (1,335)
FRERISIR AT F] Profit before income tax 10 56,944 72,455
FriS8fmss Income tax expenses 11 (12,580) (13,287)
EATEE AEM Profit attributable to owners
FERiEFH of the Company for the year 44,364 59,168
AATEE AFE(EEFIF  Eamnings per share for profit
SREHN USSR attributable to owners of
ARBTERT the Company (expressed
in RMB per share)
SREARRF Basic earnings per share 15 0.088 0.133
SRS SR Diluted earnings per share 15 0.080 0.128
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REiRm R HEthEER R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZE2020F12831HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2020

20204 20194F
ARBFT ARBETFTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FERiEH Profit for the year 44,364 59,168
Hith2m (558 k&= Other comprehensive (loss)/income
O] SE BT AR m Y EH ltemns that may not be reclassified
to profit or loss
— AT EAEMEEWE - Change in the fair value of financial
NEmEEQTFTEED assets at fair value through other
(H0pxRIRIE) comprehensive income, net of tax (145) 13
B GEE T 7 4E E R a9 E H Items that may be reclassified
to profit or loss
— BB ERERR — Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations 145 (238)
FRHMPEEE (O0RTIE)  Other comprehensive loss for the year,
net of tax - (225)
EATEE AEML Total comprehensive income
FREHENAERE attributable to owners of the Company
for the year 44,364 58,943
—E_DEEFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

1R20205E12831H As at 31 December 2020

Kzt 20204 20194
ARBFT AR¥EFTT
Note 2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBIEE Non-current assets
Y2~ R B Rk Property, plant and equipment 16 14,710 11,589
EEE Intangible assets 17 19,847 18,252
FREEE Right-of-use assets 18 5,150 6,281
R—EBEABNKRE Investment in an associate 19 - =
BN EAEMEEmW  Financial assets at fair value 20
SRS E through other comprehensive
income 4,845 5,015
RIETRIRE A Deferred tax assets 29 6,479 4,327
51,031 45,464
MENEE Current assets
=78 Inventories 24 5,970 3,358
B ZEWEIEREWESE  Trade and bills receivables 21 74,598 94,628
HhEWERIE R FEFFIE  Other receivables and 22
prepayments 186,409 110,688
SREE Contract assets 23 143,841 118,108
BIRHIRITER Pledged bank deposits 25 - 2,321
RITHE R IR E Bank balances and cash 25 37,322 26,466
448,140 355,569
mENAE Current liabilities
B E=IA Trade payables 26 85,685 114,755
HAthES =18 Other payables 27 78,236 72,916
SN Contract liabilities 28 20,226 15,140
IRITE™R Bank borrowings 30 11,172 18,941
AR Convertible notes 32 - 11,847
HEESE Lease liabilities 33 1,075 1,073
FE{SIRIE Tax payable 46,335 33,040
242,729 267,712
MENEERE Net current assets 205,411 87,857
MEERRSEE Total assets less current liabilities 256,442 133,321
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REMBIRER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

7202012831 H As at 31 December 2020

W&t 20204 20194
AR¥FT AER®FIT
Note 2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

ETHER Non-current liabilities
IRITE™N Bank borrowings 30 9,500 =
HESE Lease liabilities 33 1,932 2,889
IEIEUTA Deferred income 31 2,400 =
EIETRIB B (A Deferred tax liabilities 29 - 2
13,832 2,891
BERE Net assets 242,610 130,430

BARRKEE Capital and reserves

[N Share capital 34 1,762 1,444
B Reserves 35 240,848 128,986
Mg Total equity 242,610 130,430

BI0E227/E 2 ix A M BHREREIN2022F48
NAKESEGMERRETZETRAUTES
AREE !

The consolidated financial statements on pages 90 to 227 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 April 2022 and
are signed on its behalf by:

REE
Yu Weijun
E=E

Director

&K
Tang Zhaoxing
BE

Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

f& s Hihi# REEF szt
AR®TT AR®TT AREBTT ARETT

(H$5E34) (Bf$5£35)

Share Other Retained

capital reserves earnings Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

(Note 34) (Note 35)
¥2019%1H1H At 1 January 2019 1,541 67,828 1,657 71,026
FEREF Profit for the year = = 59,168 59,168
Hith2mEEE Other comprehensive loss = (225) = (225)

FRZ2@E (&) Total comprehensive (loss)/

W 48%a income for the year = (225) 59,168 58,943
S T L TR R Transfer to statutory reserves = 7,498 (7,498) =
MR AERESN Share-based payment expenses

B = 461 = 461
SEiE EE A7 AR D Cancellation of treasury shares (97) 97 = =

(97) 8,056 (7,498) 461
122019 12H31H At 31 December 2019 1,444 75,659 53,327 130,430
¥2020F1H1H At 1 January 2020 1,444 75,659 53,327 130,430
FEPm A Profit for the year = = 44,364 44,364
HfhemEE Other comprehensive loss = = - -
FRE2HENHELEEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - = 44,364 44,364
B LG Transfer to statutory reserves = 8,108 (8,108) =
M h AERESN Share-based payment expenses

e - 948 - 948
BITRRAD Issuance of shares 182 72,965 — 73,147
BITIRIDFE(E R Z AAS  Transaction costs attributable to

issue of shares - (21,700) = (21,700)

AR ERER AR,  Convertible notes converted to
shares 52 10,333 - 10,385

IEER A AREESH Exercise of the Pre-IPO Share
ST Option Scheme 84 4,952 = 5,036
318 75,606 (8,108) 67,816
#2020%F12H31H At 31 December 2020 1,762 151,265 89,583 242,610
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RMERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EHZE2020F12H31HEEE  For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

HiaE 20204 20194F
ARBFT ARBETFTT
Note 2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
REFHHRERE Cash flows from operating
activities
& Frm) /FiigRsE Cash (used in)/generated from 39@a)
operations (36,990) 24,935
BETEH Income tax paid (1,414) (545)
BEES (FrA) Net cash (used in)/generated
FRiSIRE/$%E from operating activities (38,404) 24,390
RETEHRERE Cash flows from
investing activities
BEME BERRE Purchases of property,
plant and equipment (6,764) (7,526)
EERTEE Purchases of intangible assets (2,667) (6,192)
HEYE - BEK Proceeds from disposal of
KBTS IIE property, plant and equipment 10 =
SERANTESTA Investment in financial assets
HihemK=mm at fair value through other
TREE comprehensive income - (5,000)
KREFEFTAREFE Net cash used in
investing activities (9,421) (18,718)
—E_DEEFR
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AT RER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#HZE2020F12831HLEFEE  For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

20204 20194F
ARBFT AR®EFT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
RMEEBHERE Cash flows from
financing activities
BEFE Interest paid (1,370) (1,335)
RITER PSR Proceeds from bank borrowings 27,882 23,060
AR RIS IIE Proceeds from convertible notes - 10,606
BEEIRITE™NR Repayments of bank borrowings (26,151) (10,659)
BITRRADFRSAE Proceeds from issues of shares 73,147
1TIERERGEPTIS IR Proceeds from exercise
of share options 2,655 -
HENRNASI D Principal elements
of lease payments (955) (842)
ElEakap =t Repayment to related parties - (1,949)
BITRMD FE(L R Z AR Payment for transaction costs
INEN attributable to issue of shares (17,602) (4,098)
ERIRIRTTER Decrease/(increase) in pledged
B () bank deposits 2,321 (1,091)
MEEEFRSIRE 38 Net cash generated from
financing activities 59,927 13,692
& RIS ZEEWEM Net increase in cash and
FEE cash equivalents 12,102 19,364
FYIREKRITEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 26,466 6,358
RERIBEEEYN Translation differences on
HMEERR cash and cash equivalents (1,246) 744
FRAERAEEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year 37,322 26,466
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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China New Energy Limited (MZ~/A ) R4
EPABAR 20065528 1527 B35
ML AARBRAE - HFMEE
i1 *Queensway House, Hilgrove Street, St
Helier, Jersey, Channel Islands, JE1 1ES e Zs/2A
BRR D E B201 165823 EN BIEIRE
MHAM) R EEEE -

12020578158 » AARRMPENER
BMERZAARATERMII LT > F
B ARARRMDERAERETHRT

AT RERIFT LRI B 8202144
BlEEEEFES-

ERBB/REERAE ENB AR E
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BATAR GRS
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BYTHREEHE o

1

(Al amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)
GENERAL INFORMATION

China New Energy Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
Jersey on 2 May 2006 as a public company with limited liability
under the Jersey Companies Law. The address of its registered
office is at Queensway House, Hilgrove Street, St Helier, Jersey,
Channel Islands, JE1 1ES. The shares of the Company have been
listed and admitted to trading on AIM since 23 May 2011.

The shares of the Company were successfully listed on the Main
Board of Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 15 July 2020,
and on the same day, the shares of the Company in AIM was
delisted.

The Company’s shares listed on the Stock Exchange have been
suspended for trading since 1 April 2021.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of ethanol
production system technology integrated service in the ethanol
fuel and alcoholic beverage industries in the People’'s Republic of
China (the “PRC").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
Yuan (“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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China New Energy Limited

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDINGS (“IFRSs”)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting and the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2020 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to IFRS 9,

IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Amendments to IAS 1
and IAS 8

Definition of Material

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendment to IFRS
16 Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions.

Except as described below, the application of the Amendments
to Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting and the
amendments to IFRSs in the current year had no material impact
on the Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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IR A IRR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDINGS (“IFRSs") (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8
Definition of Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8
for the first time in the current year. The amendments provide
a new definition of material that states “information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a specific
reporting entity.” The amendments also clarify that materiality
depends on the nature or magnitude of information, either
individually or in combination with other information, in the context
of the financial statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments in the current year had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of
a Business

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments clarify that while businesses
usually have outputs, outputs are not required for an integrated set
of activities and assets to qualify as a business. To be considered
a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include,
at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

The amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of replacing any missing inputs or
processes and continuing to produce outputs. The amendments
also introduce additional guidance that helps to determine whether
a substantive process has been acquired.

—_ZE_EEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 00 China New Energy Limited

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDINGS (“IFRSs") (cContinued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of
a Business (Continued)

In addition, the amendments introduce an optional concentration
test that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. Under the optional
concentration test, the acquired set of activities and assets is not
a business if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of
similar assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude cash
and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting
from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. The election on whether
to apply the optional concentration test is available on transaction-
by-transaction basis.

The amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group but may impact future periods should the
Group make any acquisition.

Impacts on application of Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and
IFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year. The amendments modify specific hedge accounting
requirements to allow hedge accounting to continue for affected
hedges during the period of uncertainty before the hedged items
or hedging instruments affected by the current interest rate
benchmarks are amended as a result of the on-going interest rate
benchmark reform. The amendments are relevant to the Group
given that it applies hedge accounting to its benchmark interest
rate exposures.

The amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDINGS (“IFRSs") (Continued)

Impacts on early application of Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-
19-Related Rent Concessions

The Group has applied the amendment for the first time in
the current year. The amendment introduces a new practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to assess whether a Covid-19-
related rent concession is a lease modification. The practical
expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 that meets all of the following
conditions:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

° any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

° there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same way
it would account for the changes applying IFRS 16 Leases if the
changes were not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease payments. The
related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven
or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit
or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

The application of the amendment had no impact to the opening
retained earnings at 1 January 2020.

—_ZE_EEER
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(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDINGS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 9,
|AS 39, IFRS 7,
IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendmentst
Reference to the
Conceptual Framework?
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 20215

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2*

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-currentt

Disclosure of Accounting Policies!
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDINGS (“IFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective: (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Amendments to

|FRS Standards

Amendments to |AS 12

Definition of Accounting Estimates!

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to IFRS
Standards 2018-2020?

Deferred tax related to assets
and liabilities arising from
a single transaction!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.
ZETEER
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(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDINGS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
other new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

The amendments:

° update a reference in IFRS 3 Business Combinations so
that it refers to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued by International Accounting Standards
Board in March 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”)
instead of the International Accounting Standards
Committee’'s Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced by the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
September 2010);

o add a requirement that, for transactions and other
events within the scope of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets or IFRIC 21 Levies, an
acquirer applies IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 instead of Conceptual
Framework to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a
business combination; and

° add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not
recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDINGS (“IFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS
16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —Phase 2 relate to the
modification of financial assets, financial liabilities and lease
liabilities, specific hedge accounting requirements and disclosure
requirements applying IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
to accompany the amendments regarding modifications and
hedge accounting.

° Modification of financial assets, financial liabilities
and lease liabilities. A practical expedient is introduced
for modifications required by the reform (modifications
required as a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and made on an economically
equivalent basis). These modifications are accounted
for by updating the effective interest rate. All other
maodifications are accounted for using the current IFRSs
requirements. A similar practical expedient is proposed for
lessee accounting applying IFRS 16;

o Hedge accounting requirements. Under the
amendments, hedge accounting is not discontinued solely
because of the interest rate benchmark reform. Hedging
relationships (and related documentation) are required to
be amended to reflect modifications to the hedged item,
hedging instrument and hedged risk. Amended hedging
relationships should meet all qualifying criteria to apply
hedge accounting, including effectiveness requirements;
and

—_ZE_EEER
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(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDINGS (“IFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (Continued)

° Disclosures. The amendments require disclosures in order
to allow users to understand the nature and extent of risks
arising from the interest rate benchmark reform to which
the Group is exposed to and how the entity manages those
risks as well as the entity’s progress in transitioning from
interbank offered rates to alternative benchmark rates, and
how the entity is managing this transition.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures deal
with situations where there is a sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. Specifically,
the amendments state that gains or losses resulting from the loss
of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business in a
transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is accounted
for using the equity method, are recognised in the parent’s profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in
that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting
from the remeasurement of investments retained in any former
subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture
that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair value are
recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or joint
venture.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDINGS (“IFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance
on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date for classification of liabilities as current
or non-current, which:

° specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-
current should be based on rights that are in existence
at the end of the reporting period. Specifically, the
amendments clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle
the liability within 12 months; and

(ii) if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are
met at the end of the reporting period, even if the
lender does not test compliance until a later date;
and

° clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer
of the entity's own equity instruments, these terms do
not affect its classification as current or noncurrent
only if the entity recognises the option separately as an
equity instrument applying IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

In addition, Interpretation 5 was revised as a consequence of the
Amendments to IAS 1 to align the corresponding wordings with no
change in conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December
2020, and the related terms and conditions stipulated in the
agreements between the Group and the relevant lenders, the
application of the amendments will not result in reclassification of
the Group’s liabilities as at 31 December 2020.

—ETEER
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDINGS (“IFRSs") (cContinued)

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments specify that the costs of any item that were
produced while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management (such as
samples produced when testing whether the relevant property,
plant and equipment is functioning properly) and the proceeds
from selling such items should be recognised and measured in the
profit or loss in accordance with applicable standards. The cost of
the items are measured in accordance with IAS 2 Inventories.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

The amendments specify that, when an entity assesses whether
a contract is onerous in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, the unavoidable costs
under the contract should reflect the least net cost of exiting from
the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any
compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it. Costs of
fulfilling the contract include incremental costs and an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (for example, an
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant
and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

The amendments are applicable to contracts for which the
Group has not yet fulfilled all its obligations as at the date of initial
application.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDINGS (“IFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-
2020

The annual improvements make amendments to the following
standards.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of assessing whether
modification of terms of original financial liability constitutes
substantial modification under the “10 per cent” test, a borrower
includes only fees paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or
the lender on the other's behalf.

IFRS 16 Leases

The amendment to lllustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS
16 removes from the example the illustration of reimbursement
relating to leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to
remove any potential confusion.

IAS 41 Agriculture

The amendment ensures consistency with the requirements in
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement by removing the requirement
in paragraph 22 of IAS 41 to exclude taxation cash flows when
measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value
technique.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable and
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income and convertible notes
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 16,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or
value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices

included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The significant accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial

statements of the Company and entities controlled by the

Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts

and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

—_ZE_EEER
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1 1 2 China New Energy Limited

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line
with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investment in associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associate
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group'’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

—_ZE_EEER
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1 1 ll- China New Energy Limited

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment in associates (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated
to any assets, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good and service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.



IR A IRR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B AERPIN FRESEEMNA AR TIT) (Al amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

EEMBRRENEER
FEFHERK @

RKEEFAENZHE (8

TR Wkt 2 5 R SBRRE S R SUIR TS
BB S

GREEEAEENAT A BED M
SRR TS W VBRI RER (18] R Al 2 SR A%
) - WARRE R F5 3R 5 2 A 595k &
TTRERTE - 1B IR E A EEIX
BB ERER) BMRERIH
A R BR R R

GRaFEErEREEEBE IR
B (RERWEBIE) MAR S 58
BRI AR

HERENARNEREERERER
BBEEEEARKRZS

REBERNEEFZEHN (BEDEX
Z181%)

BTN -—BENEEZEWME
FEERBESBUEBEERTZE
BAORESBISE.

ERRBENEEZAEEmIREZE
VEBRENRBRETE - ZEBSIEE
EEREBM P K EKGER MR
ZER B EBTIEREER 5
B ERBEERMET A UERR
DEEEMNENEEZRZERAIRKR
AEE AR PR AGE T RS A
BESESER-

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct goods or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to consideration,
i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including
allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance obligations,
the Group allocates the transaction price to each performance
obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at contract
inception. It represents the price at which the Group would sell
a promised good or service separately to a customer. If a stand-
alone selling price is not directly observable, the Group estimates
it using appropriate techniques such that the transaction price
ultimately allocated to any performance obligation reflects the
amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to the
customer.

—_ZE_EEER
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1 1 6 China New Energy Limited

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on input method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of the Group's efforts or inputs
to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation,
that best depict the Group'’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

Revenue recognition on performance obligations for contracts
with customers

The Group recognises revenue from the following major source:

Provision of ethanol production system technology integrated
service

The Group is engaged in the provision of ethanol production
system technology integrated service in the ethanol fuel and
alcoholic beverage industries. Revenue is recognised when control
over the asset has been transferred to the customer. Control of the
asset is transferred over time if the Group'’s performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date. The equipment has generally no alternative use for the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date due to contractual restrictions and
the interpretation of the applicable laws that apply to the contract.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Revenue recognition on performance obligations for contracts
with customers (Continued)

Provision of ethanol production system technology integrated
service (Continued)

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation is measured based on the Group’s efforts or inputs
to the satisfaction of the performance obligation, that is, the
actual costs incurred up to the end of the reporting period as
a percentage of total estimated costs for each product in the
contract.

The Group generally offers 12 months warranties for its product.
The Group recognised retention money as contract assets as
the Group'’s entitlement to the consideration was conditional on
satisfactory completion of the warranty period. The retention
money will be recognised as trade receivables at the end of
warranty period.

The Group does not recognise the warranty service as a separate
performance obligation in a single contract as the warranty service
is assurance type, and the Group's obligation to repair or replace
faulty products under the warranty terms is recognised as a
provision.

—_ZE_EEER
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1 1 8 China New Energy Limited
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(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception, modification date
or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of offices and staff dormitories that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption for
lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

° any lease payments made on or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;
and

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Except for those that are classified as investment properties,
right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities other than adjustments to lease
liabilities resulting from COVID-19-related rent concessions in
which the Group applied the practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS 9 and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments). After the commencement date, lease
liabilities are adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

—_ZE_EEER
Annual Report 2020 1 1 9



R RN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RSB BERBIN FTEEERE A ARETT)

3 ﬁ-‘?A MR A REBER

$t = D‘I-E&Eﬁ (&)

HE (@
FEEEBEMA (B

HEEXK

BRRFTER EEREER e mAERE
HERTEREE 25150 IR
TER AEBRRAEER R —RE

BEEARK

. ZIRECEBILINER —BNZE
TEAERIE ERERNILUB AR S

e

. SAIEEERRE BN EEEE
ENEERAHENERER
LD RBEE KB RMEZ
ERERFHNENEERE-

FAARIFR—RBEBHEARNEEE
MmE AEEEEBERAERENE
AR E ST RE IR R AR I B ST E ™
B RBEEEERNEAENER

BE&fRe

FEBZBHARERAREEFLARR
AR SR ENENTEETE S
R -BEXENENESHER D h—
Bz ZEzaIMEE I EE R D By - 2
SESREAEHRONELERERK
IR E DR EBERREEREH

PRREBLEEREEESD

1 2 0 China New Energy Limited

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications

Except for COVID-19-related rent concessions in which the Group
applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for a lease
maodification as a separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease madification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
COVID-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has elected
to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether the change
is a lease modification if all of the following conditions are met:

° the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same
way it would account for the changes applying IFRS 16 if the
changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease payments. The
related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven
or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit
or loss in the period in which the event occurs.
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1 22 China New Energy Limited

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates
at the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of foreign currency translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that require a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those asset, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognizes as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that
the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to
profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives
of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another IFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset. A
liability is recognised as benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries and annual leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.
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(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments granted at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to accumulated losses.

Share options granted to service providers

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the goods
or services received, except where that fair value cannot be
estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the date the
entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the service.
The fair values of the goods or services received are recognised as
expenses (unless the goods or services qualify for recognition as
assets).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from (loss)/profit before taxation because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investment in subsidiaries and
associate, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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1 2 6 China New Energy Limited

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of each reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12
“Income Taxes” requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation
on right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the principal
portion of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
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(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred. An internally-generated
intangible asset arising from development activities (or from the
development phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and
only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future

economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure (Continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there
is any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication
that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets are estimated individually.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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1 30 China New Energy Limited

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets (Continued)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash generating unit when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
established. The recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit or group of CGUs to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant
cash-generating unit or group of CGUSs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the carrying
amount of a group of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of CGUSs, with the recoverable amount of the group of
CGUs. In allocating the impairments loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro-rata to the other assets of the unit or the
group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of CGUs)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a
group of CGUS) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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1 32 China New Energy Limited

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories comprised of raw material, work-in-progress and right
to returned goods and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal
operating capacity. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with IFRS
15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

@) Financial assets

() Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

—ETEER
Annual Report 2020

133



REMBRRIE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B EREBIN FRESEEENA AR TT) (Al amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

3 FEHMBTEHRREZEER 3  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
FEFHHER® CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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POLICIES (Continued)

ERTE (&) Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) ZTHEE (& (a)  Financial assets (Continued)
(i) THEENTEREE (i) Classification and subsequent measurement of
FrE (&) financial assets (Continued)
FE TIRENSREE Financial assets that meet the following conditions
HER AT ESTAEME are subsequently measured at fair value through
i (B2 A ET AR other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

fh=mEuE) 518 ¢

J REIFRXUEE K& . the financial asset is held within a business
W& N IRE R model whose objective is achieved by both
EAENNER selling and collecting contractual cash
BRFENE M flows; and
BE; &

. BHBRRRIERE . the contractual terms give rise on specified
BHREELENRE dates to cash flows that are solely
TME AT A AT payments of principal and interest on the
KERKEBER principal amount outstanding.

EHFE o

FrEEMEMEERES All other financial assets are subsequently

BAFEAEB @R measured at FVTPL, except that at initial

ERVREREMEE recognition of a financial asset the Group may

28 MRAKRELIERF irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes

EEE > INIERRINER in fair value of an equity investment in other

FEERR SR S 2R E3 comprehensive income if that equity investment

SREF A HPTERNZERS is neither held for trading nor contingent

BHPRERNIARE consideration recognised by an acquirer in a

Bl A< S5 [ AT R AT A 3 28 business combination to which IFRS 3 Business

EREMEER R 2% Combinations applies.

RALE AT ENEEBSE

o
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
@) Financial assets (Continued)

() Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition, it is a part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate
a financial asset that is required to be measured
at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.

—_ZE_EEER
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3 2$A MIZRRENEZER 3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
FEFHHER® CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

EMITAE @ Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) ZTHEE & (a)  Financial assets (Continued)
(i) BHEAHFEUA (i) Amortised cost and interest income

M E U AR ERF =X Interest income is recognised using the effective
% ILE B IS S R AN 5T interest method for financial assets measured
EZERBEERSEFIE subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
AT 53848 B PR A 2 is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
BREREENREALEE to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
S8 EEREAEES /W except for financial assets that have subsequently
ENETREERIN (BT become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
X) cEBEAEER assets that have subsequently become credit
ERNEREEMS  FIE impaired, interest income is recognised by
UATE B N —ER S HE R applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
BB ERFERAR cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
S RNE ARV H AN T period. If the credit risk on the credit impaired
R fEERENERT financial instrument improves so that the financial
BENEERRBAINE asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
B ESREEFNBHIRE is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
BRE BETEETE to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
HIREERENRSIEEY from the beginning of the reporting period following
RERS B A ZE eI =Rl the determination that the asset is no longer credit
BENRMARZEEDF] S impaired.

NG
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EEMBEHRRENE®RER 3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

FEFHERK @ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

T A (&) Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) ZTHEE (& (@)  Financial assets (Continued)
(i) EEBENFEGFAR (i) Equily instruments designated as at FVTOCI

thEE Wz #E e TR

AT EF AR MEEU Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
DR TEREHRE subsequently measured at fair value with gains
AT ES = AAFE and losses arising from changes in fair value
BEEEN NG KER recognised in other comprehensive income and
EHEMEE W E RS accumulated in the financial assets at FVTOCI
TWiER A E AR ME reserves, and are not subject to impairment
‘Rz EHEERERN assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not
KEt BERBEETRES be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
o EHERAKER equity investments, and will be transferred to
Rt m s SER T EE accumulated losses.

MOEERm MEEE
ERFTEIR

R A E U E RS B BIRER Dividends from these investments in equity
W R ZERR TAERK instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
BENRERIBm P the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
PRIENR S BERETE IR [EIER 7 established, unless the dividends clearly represent
LB A o iR B 5T AR a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
PREAMKAIEER ° Dividends are included in the other income line

item in profit or loss.

—_ZE_EEER
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

@)

Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on
financial assets at amortised cost which are
subject to impairment under IFRS 9. The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

@) Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade and bills receivables and contract assets.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually
for debtors with significant balance or collectively
using a provision matrix with similar credit risk
characteristics based primarily on the debtors’
aging profiles.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognizes lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or
risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

—ETEER
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(B EREBIN FRESEEENA AR TT) (Al amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

3 2$A MIZRRENEZER 3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
FEFHHER® CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

ERTE (&) Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) ZTHEE & (a)  Financial assets (Continued)

(iv) ZHEERE & (iv)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
EEREAE L Significant increase in credit risk
REMEEERBESBEY In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
IETE S LATR AR _E B significantly since initial recognition, the Group
AEERKRS B SR T compares the risk of a default occurring on the
BHIRBAE R R financial instrument as at the reporting date with
PR HAER T AY the risk of a default occurring on the financial
BRI EREITLE instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
8o PREH LB TE T4 B » In making this assessment, the Group considers
rEEEERSIERAIE both quantitative and qualitative information that
BEXRFNEEREHEE is reasonable and supportable, including historical
B BiREFRRENEA experience and forward-looking information that is
B AT A TMEFHY available without undue cost or effort.
ElEES=
AR ML EERE In particular, the following information is taken into
BEANELFAR > AEE account when assessing whether credit risk has
BERUTEN ! increased significantly:

. SR T BN (W . an actual or expected significant
B) HABEET deterioration in the financial instrument’s
RERZ AKX external (if available) or internal credit
TREE ; rating;

o EERRINEE T . significant deterioration in external market
SERRIREE indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
BlnEEH ZE K increase in the credit spread, the credit
B EH N EEAE default swap prices for the debtor;
EENEIER
AIELEF;

1 ZI-O China New Energy Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

Financial instruments (Continued)

@)

Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse

change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that result in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

—_ZE_EEER
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(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

@) Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group). Irrespective of the above, the
Group considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

@) Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

mERAEHE o the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
FZERAER or contractual reasons relating to the
B8 7R B IR borrower’s financial difficulty, having
HERBINKER granted to the borrower concession(s) that
BREE AT E the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;
MATEHMIBER
TAEEHBE
2
EE NI 1 o it is becoming probable that the borrower
EETEME will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
TREA ; 5 reorganisation; or
%R E E R B o the disappearance of an active market for
AEN AT ST that financial asset because of financial
EThig e difficulties.
WEEEER Write-off policy
EEERNETRZHFR The Group writes off a financial asset when there
AR E R A 2 B i is information indicating that the counterparty is in
ERIREIRY R EE 2 B (I severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
URZHFEBHEIE prospect of recovery, for example, when the

EARERF MBS
FEWGRIRM & > =8R8
BEmER  URFER
%) FEBEME TR
BE - RipAEEUEEIE
FitEEERER (B
F) » BRI RIE AT
Bl B SR BT - #iEHE
BRA& LERESR (R 1R UK
[EIRR IR fE s P EEST o

counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised

in profit or loss.
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(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

@) Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default

occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial

recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables and
contract assets are considered on a collective basis
taking into consideration past due information and
relevant credit information such as forward looking

macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when

formulating the grouping:

Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by

management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk

characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised

cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables and contract assets, where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a

loss allowance account.

(v) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the assets expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or

loss.
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(B EREBIN FRESEEENA AR TT) (Al amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

3 FEHMBTEHRREZEER 3  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
FEFHHER® CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

ERTE (&) Financial instruments (Continued)
(b) ZTHEEREZ (b)  Financial liabilities and equity
(i) DB EFE T (i) Classification as debt or equity
BEEEEGETARES Debt and equity instruments are classified
NZHz EEESRMEaE either as financial liabilities or as equity in
KR T B2 €085 accordance with the substance of the contractual
=N EIR arrangements and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.

(i)  #mITH (i) Equity instruments
@ T AR —(EEEE An equity instrument is any contract that
RN EatRZEE evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
A RIFER 2 ERS entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
NoEBFE Tz m T instruments issued by the group are recognised at
BT RS RUE R E R the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
TR AHESR

(i)  EHEE (i) Financial liabilities
FiE R 8 BB All financial liabilities are subsequently measured
A R BRI Z A at amortised cost using the effective interest
NEEETAEB @ T U method or at FVTPL.
2o
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
(b) Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
(i) Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial liability is (i) contingent consideration
of an acquirer in a business combination to which

HKFRS 3 applies, (ii) held for trading or (iii) it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of repurchasing it in the near
term; or

° on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio

of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative, except for a derivative
that is a financial guarantee contract
or a designated and effective hedging
instrument.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
(b)  Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
(i) Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability
held for trading or contingent consideration of
an acquirer in a business combination may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise;
or
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
(b) Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
(i) Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

o the financial liability forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group’s documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that
basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and IFRS 9
permits the entire combined contract to be
designated as at FVTPL.
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3 ﬁ-?A MIZRRENEZER 3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
FEFHHER® CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

EMITAE @ Financial instruments (Continued)
(b) ZTHEEREZ & (b)  Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
(i)  EHEE (&) (i) Financial liabilities (Continued)

AT ES AIBmIER Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)
a8E®
”‘”]LEA?':*%$§@$E§H\ For financial liabilities that are designated as
BmtEmlNERas at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair
BENEE lgﬁ“?‘ﬁhﬁxﬁl value of the financial liability that is attributable
NEMEBELATEEHE to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
Bt AR EmEmE ) bR recognised in other comprehensive income,
JEE Efh e U e R REER unless the recognition of the effects of changes
BEEERREENTE in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
SELEHIEABRTNE income would create or enlarge an accounting
sHEE B A BRANIT mismatch in profit or loss. For financial liabilities
S TEZEREBE Bl that contain embedded derivatives, such as
AARES) M REE convertible bonds, the changes in fair value
REM2E ST IRIE of the embedded derivatives are excluded in
B bR ARNTTET R determining the amount to be presented in other
ZATFEEH sHEE comprehensive income. Changes in fair value
EERBERZ ATEE attributable to a financial liability's credit risk that
FREMEEWREER are recognised in other comprehensive income
BEEAZENDEEE are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss;
o MERIEERSRE instead, they are transferred to accumulated losses
ERFERE Rt upon derecognition of the financial liability.
DU tE A st ENE/ME Financial liabilities at amortised cost
B
TRaE (BRESEN Financial liabilities including trade payables,
B~ EME R FUE A other payables and borrowings are subsequently
) HBRBEEHZEE measured at amortised cost, using the effective
DUBSHR AT E interest method.
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IR E TR R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
(b) Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
(i) Financial liabilities (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or oss.

(iv) Convertible loan notes

A conversion option that will be settled other than
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Group’s own equity instruments is a conversion

option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and
derivative components are recognised at fair value.
In subsequent periods, the debt component of the
convertible loan notes is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The derivative
component is measured at fair value with changes

in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible loan notes are allocated to the debt
and derivative components in proportion to their
relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to the
derivative component are charged to profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the debt
component are included in the carrying amount
of the debt portion and amortised over the period
of the convertible loan notes using the effective

interest method.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue from provision of ethanol production system
technology integrated service in the ethanol fuel and alcoholic
beverage industries is recognised over time when the Group's
performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date. The Group cannot change or
substitute the product or redirect the product for another use as
the product is tailor made to each customer’s needs and thus the
product does not have an alternative use to the Group. However,
whether there is an enforceable right to payment depends on the
terms of contract and the interpretation of the applicable laws
that apply to the contract. Such determination requires significant
judgments. In assessing whether the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for its contracts, the Group has performed an
assessment on the contractual terms as well as any legislation
that could supplement or override those contractual terms, and
conducted an evaluation of any existence of circumstances
that could restrict the Group to enforce its right to payment for
specific performance. Management uses judgments to classify
contracts into those with right to payment and those without the
right. Management will reassess its judgments on a regular basis
to identify and evaluate the existence of any circumstances that
could affect the Group's enforceable right to payment and the
implication on the accounting for contracts.
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4 FARETHIEIREEFE 4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
ERZMNEERRE @ AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

FEF & st B SR Y = E HI B (8) Critical judgements in applying accounting policies (Continued)
W zs ST (2 Revenue recognition (Continued)

KERE2ENRREBHATEZETEOE The Group recognises revenue over time by reference to the
EREERR WG ZEE T IRIEASE progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
BB NN ETENSENE A BT obligation at the reporting date. The progress is measured
R WBEHERSHERMEENS based on the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
AR EENPE ERNEFTE A performance obligation, by reference to the contract costs incurred
B o REE AT AR AR TEEE 14 LA up to the end of reporting period as a percentage of total estimated
KRikEE T2 BITEARBIIEUS costs for each product in the contract. Significant judgments
EENERMER SEEHERHAET X and estimations are required in determining the completeness of
{5t o AR 2R HA R B AS 1 51 B & B AT SE & the estimated total costs and the accuracy of progress towards
NEERBHWmEEFE FMEH £ complete satisfaction of the performance obligation at the reporting
it 5B - AN B B FRIA R AR B R K 2 date. Changes in cost estimates in future periods can have
LA R (QNaE FR) SRS EMEY T1E o effect on the Group’s revenue recognised. In making the above

estimations, the Group relies on past experience and work of
contractors and, if appropriate, surveyors.

P E5 % i 25 79 B 7 16 e 1 2 Capitalisation and amortisation of internal development costs

ERAEIRER  REEFMEERE The Group capitalises costs incurred on development projects
EXNREAERN CABREEE FHMhE as intangible assets when recognition criteria are met. Significant
EREZENANER TS G5 2R judgment is involved in assessing whether the criteria set out
HEMNZE > BIF518 B IR H R MR AR in the accounting standards required for capitalisation of such
EF) Y AT BE 1 MU B IR R AN TE costs have been met, including the likelihood of the project
WA B EEFE N EREE R delivering sufficient future economic benefits, and whether costs,
ERFIE - AERE R RFEFERFRA including employment costs, were directly attributable to relevant
BT ERNM - BEAEEEFEH projects. The Group starts to capitalise research and development
FE Al S BETTIL A E A B B7F expenditure upon patent application. Notwithstanding that the
EEBENAEERSR  BWRLFIhET Group has used all available information to make this estimation
BASEAEME BIERCR AT SEM B and judgment, inherent uncertainty exists and the capitalised
S o costs may have to be expensed if there are significant changes

from previous estimates.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies (Continued)

Capitalisation and amortisation of internal development costs
(Continued)

Capitalised development costs are amortised from the point at
which the asset is ready for use on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The Group reviews the estimated useful
lives of the assets semi-annually. The amortisation expense for
future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes on the
useful lives from previous estimates.

Development cost not yet ready for use, which are capitalised as
intangible assets are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Assets that
are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. Impairment assessment requires
the use of judgment and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
both the carrying value of intangible assets and the impairment
charge in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Impairment of trade and bills receivables and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECL for trade and
bills receivables and contract assets in addition to the specific
provisions. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns.

ZETEER
Annual Report 2020 1 55



IR EMESRARIE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RSB BERBIN FTEEERE A ARETT)

RS HE R Est A E 4

4

ERZHNETERE @

At FRERZNEERE (&)

EBESERTBEREREGEREREE
HBE (&)

BB RIERERERU R EREE
IREHBES AR EAEERE D
H-oRBEEARMRENERTIR
B I REARBRN SR E Z R
BERERREBEEARBEBNREERS
B Al > FEER > BHBURIER
RREENRREERREREREER
BENSEBILUE

BEERETENTERELHRE
R AE BB HEBNRIRE B HRERE
fes AR EE R SR (5 B 51848 B o IO ST AT
EERERE AEEEEHNAZREER
BER RREEER TERBRKEER
B e

HESEREQNX RAKER LKA
HEE IR BRIt G —IRE
EEE - RHREEBRENTEZZIR
BRIEAKERTESTE - REER
L= E RIS SR R BRI TER
AR AR T E RN HRNEIREN
B - BRAAEEE 7 BUGRIR K& EUR
REUKGREBEENTERESBRER
PARE B F5 R MY 5E38(b) P R

RIREN K MR BB R EKRIFE
BEEERERBEBEFIRANEERR - Z
SFEFPNEPAEEBERNENR T EFZ
BUBREC T E W BB MR R P A
ZEFEHERFAEFRUMENALT
BRI EILH ZF & A FH100%87 8
e

1 56 China New Energy Limited

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

Trade and bills receivables and contract assets have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past
due. The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and
have substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade and
bills receivables for the same types of contracts. The Group has
therefore concluded that the ECL for trade and bills receivables are
a reasonable approximation for the loss rates for contract assets.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. In assessing forward looking factors, the Group
considers factors including economic policies, macroeconomic
indicators, industry risks and changes in customers’ conditions.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECL is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECL is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECL on the
Group’s trade and hills receivables and contract assets is disclosed
in Note 38(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

State-owned enterprises and non-state-owned enterprises are
deemed to have different credit risk based on experience of
defaults and write offs. ECL for these customers is based on aging
where there are no known disputes. Customers in liquidity issues
relates to those who may be disputing invoices or in bankruptcy
and so 100% provision is made against these debtors.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment of intangible asset — internal
development costs

Intangible assets are stated at costs less accumulated amortisation
and impairment, if any. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’'s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators that may
affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of
value in use, the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and
(3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. Changing the assumptions selected by
management to determine the level of impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value used in
the impairment test.

Based on the management's assessment, no impairment was
recognised on the intangible assets — internal development costs.
Please refer to Note 17(a) for details of the impairment test.
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5. W= 5. REVENUE
(0] BEFRa# A4 (0] Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers
EY et iR 7R Types of goods or services
20204 20194F
ARETT ARET T
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
IRHEEIRES Provision of construction services
— OB BRI — ethanol production system
L EIRTS technology integrated services
IR T Ethanol fuel industries 422,573 347,184
BB TZE Alcoholic beverage industries 97,695 45,080
Hith Others 1,293 6,294
st Total 521,561 398,558
TH M) TR B 2B “Others” mainly refers to revenue generated from projects
TZAERIER EE AU relating to medical and industry of ethyl acetate.
W o FESRPFT - Timing of revenue recognition:
20204 20194F
ARETT ARET T
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
beisdin Over time 519,683 396,534
RN At a point in time 1,878 2,024
521,561 398,558
(i) PEFERENRGRENE (i)  Transaction price allocated to the remaining unsatisfied
BHRXSER: performance obligation for contracts with customers:
NEEBERBEIRMFEIRE RS The Group has applied the practical expedient in
155 F 121N BT 5 AR paragraph 121 of IFRS 15 to its sales contracts for
BRERMBCEEERGMER provision of ethanol production system technology
BB ZIHESH AL HE integrated service such that the above information does
BAEEAEETERTTEMRR not include information about revenue that the Group will
TAstHEA—FHER 2 511 be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining performance
TRIBREART R A AR obligations under the contracts that had an original
mE R} expected duration of one year or less.
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SEER 6 SEGMENT INFORMATION
BEEBERETIELZAREBRIK Management has determined the operating segments based on
SEERE NI FERERKEAES the reports reviewed by the chief operating decision maker, who
PDEEBEBRMHEEDHNRIB-EE is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
KERAREBEW AR AR ATNEITE of the operating segment. The chief operating decision maker has
EL been identified as the executive directors of the Company.
AEEFER R R BRBEE T The Group is principally engaged in the provision of ethanol
RECELEERAFINFEEGRE - 512 production system technology integrated services in the ethanol
R EBRESEREA—EDIET fuel and alcoholic beverage industries. Management reviews
Bz UEHB TR E RIEL AR the operating results of the business as one segment to make
At RABRMITESIRAEE—ED decisions about resources to be allocated. Therefore, the executive
EBFRFA 7E B BE M TR SR o W K FRPIT TS directors of the Company regard that there is only one segment
AR A ETE RS Ao M EE&T(E which is used to make strategic decisions. Revenue and profit
M TESREHVFEM © before income tax are the measures reported to the executive
directors for the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment.
ME &R Geographical information
REBRE B PTEMEI D BINEE B UL The amount of the Group’s revenue from external customers
B BRI NERFTR © broken down by location of the customers is shown in the table
below.
20204 20194
ARETT AR®FTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FRE] PRC 511,873 379,852
e Myanmar 7,723 622
REEHT Russia - 187
Efe Indonesia 1,704 14,601
HME=R Other countries 261 3,296
st Total 521,561 398,558

20204 2019412831 H » A~EEERIFT
BIEREEEHIMUIRE -

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, all of the non-current assets
of the Group were located in the PRC.
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6 THEH@® 6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
BREERFRMEN Information about major customers
HEEFEELAEBEANTI0% A LN Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing
PG over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as follows:

202045 20194
AR®TT AR®TT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEA! Customer Al 256,933 -
= EB! Customer B! 85,142 144,785
ERC? Customer C2 N/A FER 121,322
Z D2 Customer D2 N/A REH 48416
ZEE Customer E - 42,071
342,075 356,594
2 EEAREFBAMILHIRIHAT] o L Customer A and Customer B are related companies of each other.
2 HEFE U & M A AN S @A 2020612831 2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total
H I FEARRERII10% ko revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.
7 HA 7 OTHER INCOME
20205 20194
AR®TT AR®EF T
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEELT N Subsidy income 2,350 1,836
AW A BIE BN M A B IR AV Subsidy income mainly represented government grants provided
BNEAHAI T RIERPENTIFRIE to the Group for its support and award to innovative and growth
Bh - B B B A AR M R B W B B RE R enterprises. The grants were unconditional and were recognised
ABUA © as income when received.
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H {th Uy 2 /5 88 8. OTHER GAINS - NET
2020 20194
ARETT AR¥FT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
S REE Contract assets written off (2,752) =
I [E]iZ R Recovery of bad debts 3,270 =
FER (5518 W 358 Exchange (losses)/gains, net (1,409) 744
HEYZE -BERREN Losses on disposal of property,
518 plant and equipment (179) (206)
AR EENATE Fair value gains/(losses) on
W (6518) convertible notes 1,462 (1,241)
HERSENKE Gains on disposal of right to
returned goods - 3,099
Hih Others 359 13
751 2,409
B 75 U A B2 B 2 9  FINANCE INCOME AND COST
202045 20194
AR#ETT AR¥TT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
BIFEIRA Finance income
BEIREEEMNESREEMNF]  Interest income from financial
BUWA assets held for cash management
purposes 45 49
78 779N Finance costs
IRITERH B Bank borrowings interest expense (1,184) (1,095)
HEaENSRX Lease liabilities interest expense (231) (289)
(1,415) (1,384)
AR ER Finance costs — net (1,370) (1,335)
—E_TFEFR
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10 PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax has been arrived at after charging

2020 2019
AREFT ARETT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ETRME (BRESHH) Staff costs (including directors' remuneration)
ITE Fie AR HEMETR Salaries, wages, bonuses and other benefits 16,260 13,062
BEEEINMER Contribution to pension scheme 1,739 1,324
DRHAERNAR Share-based payments 948 461
18,947 14,847
B REFEEEAL Less: Capitalised in intangible assets (2,529) (2,166)
16,418 12,681
HALUTHEEE Amounts included in
—SHERA — Cost of sales 2,934 1,685
—HEREHEY — Selling and marketing expenses 4,220 4,100
—{THRX — Administrative expenses 9,264 6,89
TRERBEMA Costs of engineering services 63,295 52,256
EREME R EER Raw materials and consumables used 315,941 229,855
MEBERRERE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 3,454 2,188
FREEETE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 1,131 1,131
E EESHE Amortisation of intangible assets 1,072 722
T RIER AR ESE (0EE) © Impairment losses, net of reversal recognised on:
—BRREKFIE — Trade receivables 4,773 801
—GREE — Contract assets 3,928 2754
—H e IE - Other receivables 7,510 =
16,211 3,565
FATHRASNEE Amounts included in administrative expenses:
ERREBEER ([ Legal and professional fees (note) 20,488 1,305
ZEEmE B Auditors' remuneration 2,656 1,584
1553 Listing expenses 17,482 11,665
eI Research and development costs 4,466 1,158
0z Note:

HIGERREEERAKK18,603,0007T (2019
F 1 |) > RABRSTRBEEREBREE2020F
12831 B I F AR G M B SRR BEMA 2 B
(TRIEZEET)) B SR FE R AARY (MERAZZ
1) B2 LREEMAE (RESRE M) BN
FEE (FEZER) ~ARERRSNEZER
BHER2020F7 B 15B A AR RNV EBHM SRS
FIERAR LHBRAAZERBRMHBREZS
RBUKRBANEHEOSENHETEREEE
B URETRBRUEEASER LA SER [
REFEEARFR AABRINBUFAEEZE R
BEEE—RBUEEER ((ZER) HEARS
EITBIAE - R EEREBET AR
20221 B17E MBI AT RS - ARBIATE
BERNFBEHNA AT B IER2022F1 52801

S
N=E
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Regarding legal and professional fees of approximately RMB18,603,000 (2019:
Nil), the auditors which were originally engaged by the Company to act as auditors
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended
31 December 2020 (the “Predecessor Auditor”) had raised concerns (the “Audit
Issues”) over these payments to various service providers (the “Service Providers”)
for the professional and consultancy services (the “Concerned Transactions”). The
Audit Issues in relation to the Concerned Transactions included the commercial
substance and business rationale for engaging the Service Providers to provide such
services shortly after the listing of the shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited on 15 July 2020 and for prepaying the entire contract sum in
full, and whether there was any relationship between certain Service Providers with
the Group and its management. The Independent Investigation Committee formed
by the Company has engaged an independent professional advisor (the “Advisor”) to
conduct an independent investigation on the Concerned Transactions. The Advisor
completed its investigation and issued an independent investigation report dated 17
January 2022. Details of key findings of the independent investigation are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 28 January 2022.
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IR A IRR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

11 FRfSMEAX 11 INCOME TAX EXPENSES
20205 20194
AR¥TT AR®EFTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
BIHEATRIA ! Current tax:

FRE b 2EPT1S R PRC Enterprise Income Tax 14,709 11,862
IEIEFRSHE (R Fix Deferred income tax (credit)/expense (2,129) 1,425
RSz 4a%8 Total income tax expenses 12,580 13,287

ERAFER Hong Kong profits tax

REEFSRMARE SERERERN
BE2BE BB TEN IU8.25%m M K&
o BB E B AT 2 L16.5%89
DRSO

AR AEBRNWALIEREBELE
TREER B EREBRIBEIEL &E
(20194 : #H) o

BINFRIFIR

KABIRIRIOIF ZFAE A RAIE 2R
EEMMIIAARBIRAS - SARFEM
B ARNARRIEEAERR B4t
B IEEFE SPTEME (19619F) (&1&
) MEmNEmMRBEEERALEEE
B oA NBREAENMENMNERT
D2

PEEEMRSR

AEE B EME QTN B A ERER
PSR s 5 IR ¥R B 220205 K22019F
12B31 B IEFERITER s R 1EA)
RfhsHERR ST B RIRERT R

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million
of profits of the qualifying group entity is taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million are taxed at 16.5%.

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as the
Group’s income neither arises in, nor is derived from, Hong Kong
(2019: Nil).

Overseas income tax

The Company was incorporated in Jersey as a public company
with limited liability under the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. The
Company is regarded as resident for tax purposes in Jersey and
on the basis that the Group is neither a financial services group
nor a utility group for the purposes of the Income Tax (Jersey)
Law 1961, as amended; The Company is subject to income tax in
Jersey at a rate of zero per cent.

PRC enterprise income tax

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of the operations
of its subsidiaries in mainland China has been calculated at the
applicable tax rate on the estimated assessable profits for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 based on the existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

—ETEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RSB BERBIN FTEEERE A ARETT)

FRisiEX @

PEEEMER (@

11

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

11

RFET2008F 1B 1B EMRFEARHE

MEIE2EFTS

% (MEZEFRISE) -8

AR R At E B ERE R B EFTSIRM
R525% » (BERPHRITTHE R A
PRAE] (MFRRRTT) IR2016F AR E e A
MEMBATE ) > IREE20205 52019
F12A31H L FEREF BRG]
15%Z BB EFISMRE 112020528
198 » P RR TR B XM EEER
H2019F12B2REEE@E A INSERIHF

BT

RIBEPERERIRFAEE B MBI —IFH
2R > B2008F#E » R EMEZERIEE
BN EEHZEERERIR E A Ry R
FRIMEEREEENCERAEER
B0%RIIRIER T o RIBE P EE SRIRFAE R
12018598 A fmBIATIR B RIEER » 88
SMRIERRUE & B B A BI50%18
MNE75% > B2018F E2020F 434 (B4R

) ©
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INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

PRC enterprise income tax (Continued)

The enterprise income tax rate applicable to the group entities
located in mainland China is 25% according to the Enterprise
Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “EIT
Law”) effective on 1 January 2008 except Guangdong Zhongke
Tianyuan New Energy Science and Technology Co Ltd (“Zhongke
Tianyuan”), which was qualified as “High and New Technology
Enterprise” in 2016 and was entitled to a preferential income tax
rate of 15% on its estimated assessable profits for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019. On 19 February 2020, the filing
of Zhongke Tianyuan’s renewal of the High and New Technology
Enterprise qualification for another 3 years starting from 2
December 2019 was completed.

According to a policy promulgated by the State Tax Bureau of
the PRC and effective from 2008 onwards, enterprises engaged
in research and development activities are entitled to claim
an additional tax deduction amounting to 50% of the qualified
research and development expenses incurred in determining its
assessable tax profits for that year. The additional tax deduction
has been increased from 50% of the qualified research and
development expenses to 75%, effective from 2018 to 2020,
according to a new tax incentives policy promulgated by the State
Tax Bureau of the PRC in September 2018 (“Super Deduction”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

PRC withholding income tax

According to the EIT Law, starting from 1 January 2008, a
withholding tax of 10% will be levied on the immediate holding
companies outside the PRC when their PRC subsidiaries declare
dividend out of profits earned after 1 January 2008.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the

profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

20204 20194
ARMETF T ARETTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000
PRI A AT Profit before tax 56,944 72,455
BEBTEMERNETEN Tax at the applicable enterprise
FRIE 1 25% (20194 : 25%) income tax rate: 25% (2019: 25%) 14,236 18,114
WEBABMEEENTE Effect of different tax rates
of subsidiaries (376) (5,017)
RERAIRLERIBESEN Effect of tax losses and temporary
MIBEIE R TR AN E difference not recognised
as deferred tax assets 320 320
FRUWBRME > AR Expenses not deductible for
tax purposes 204 139
B EE S B RVEB AR Super deduction of research and
development expenditure (990) (269)
Hih Others (814) =
12,580 13,287
—E_DEEFR
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(B EREBIN FRESEEENA AR TT) (Al amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

12 EERTETHASISE 12 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS
RIEEA E AR R BB QRO E Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year,
NEREEREETHASMESUWT : disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

B E20205F 12831 H IEFEREE09E The remuneration of each director for the year ended
FEHINUOT - 31 December 2020 is set out as follows:
IE Fg
TEAREM &EEHE  URGA
fig &Rl Mt ERNHE st
ARETT AREFT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Salaries,

wages,  Contribution
honuses and to pension  Share-based

Fees  other benefits scheme compensations Total
4 Name RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BiTES Executive directors
SERLE Mr. Yu Weijun - 594 - 42 636
BRELE Mr, Tang Zhaoxing - 494 14 42 550
BIERTES Independent non-executive directors
Richard Antony Bennettz £ Mr. Richard Antony Bennett 181 - - Iy) 223
BERLE Mr. Chan Shing Fat Heron
(1202078156 (Appointed on 15 July 2020)
EZH) 49 - - - 49
BOLEE Mr. Chan Siu Shan Sam
(1202078150 (Appointed on 15 July 2020)
EZH) 49 - - - 49
279 1,088 14 126 1,507
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(B AERPIN FRESEEMNA AR TIT) (Al amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

12 EFRFETHAEMSE

)

B E2019F12A31H L FERESME
HHU0T

12 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

The remuneration of each director for the year ended
31 December 2019 is set out as follows:

IE fie
THIREM  BEEd5HE Dl
ik &l miER  ERDES i
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT
Salaries,

wages,  Contribution
bonuses and topension  Share-based
Fees  other benefits scheme  compensations Total

4 Name RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

BTEE Executive directors

SERLE Mr. Yu Weijun - 39 - 51 430

BkELE Mr. Tang Zhaoxing = 376 33 51 460

BiEHTES Independent non-executive directors

Richard Antony Bennettc £ Mr. Richard Antony Bennett 179 = = 5l 230
179 795 33 153 1,120

EXBRRAITEEHEEEARE
BEANE RAEBREHRHENREN
Bl

EXBTRBBLIFRITESEMERRE
ERAI AR EERHIREHIME -

FRBEERESNEUREREER
#BNEYZHE

BE017FI2A3HIEFE A TEER
BANGBRES MBS AERR
HAIRFSEIRIE A RE - BRI IBE AR
BRI ERERMIEE35(d)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which the directors waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, certain directors were
granted share options in respect of their services to the Group
under the share option scheme of the Company. Details are set out
in note 35(d) to the consolidated financial statements.

—_ZE_EEER
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RSB BERBIN FTEEERE A ARETT)

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

13 2 &% 13 EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
FR AEBRELRSHMA T BIE2A The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
INBES (20194 | 22 ESR) » HEBN include 2 directors (2019: 2 directors) of the Company, details of
SEBEN EXHIEEI2 c I FiF T =% whose emoluments are set out in note 12 above. The emoluments
(20194 : =%) ALRVEENIOT : paid to the remaining three (2019: three) individuals are as
follows:
20204 20194F
AREBTT AR®EFT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
TITE FHE TEAK Salaries, wages, bonuses
HhaF) and other benefits 1,262 801
EETIEIVMERR Contribution to pension scheme 37 86
MR A ERB TR Share-based payments 92 113
1,391 1,000
ANEEGR T AT BNBI AT EE - The emoluments of these remaining individuals of the Group fell
within the following bands:
20204 20194
2020 2019
HoNEE Emolument bands
2 %] ,000,00078 7T Nil to HKD1,000,000
(FEER AR 15915,0007T) (equivalent to RMB915,000)
(20194 : AER1&880,0007T) (2019: RMB8&80,000) 3 3
14 KRR 14 DIVIDENDS

FR2020%F > B A A A B B A IR K
[ BEIRFHEEREARE > B %EiHHEEE
TMESDRKMEMARE (20194 :

7.

1 68 China New Energy Limited

No dividend was paid, declared or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during 2020, nor has any dividend
been proposed since the end of the reporting period (2019: Nil).
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(B AERPIN FRESEEMNA AR TIT) (Al amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

15 EKEF 15 EARNINGS PER SHARE
a) EREXEF (@)  Basic earnings per share
20204 20194
ARBTT AR®EFTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
KABHEB ANEL A Profit attributable to owners
of the Company 44,364 59,168
BEETEERMMETIH Weighted average number of
(F52) ordinary shares in issue
(thousand shares) 504,524 444 448
SRELREF Basic earnings per share 0.088 0.133
(b) ESRE#ESERT (b)  Diluted earnings per share
20204 20194
AR®BTT AR®F T
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
KABEB AR Profit attributable to owners
of the Company 42,902 60,409
EEITZERNNEFITE Weighted average number of
(FRD ordinary shares in issue
(thousand shares) 534,454 471,402
SR#ERH Dilutive earnings per share 0.080 0.128
(c) sEEREBRFIFAZTIHK ()  Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earnings
per share
20204 20194
ARETT AR®EFTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FREEER T Diluted earnings per share
Bt EESRERRT Profit from continuing operations
HAA B EEERTT attributable to the ordinary equity
BAELFELSE holders of the Company used
FriS &) in calculating basic earnings
per share: 44,364 59,168

CBY) /10 - eI PR =g (Less)/add: fair value (gains)/loss

ANFEE W) B8 on convertible notes (1,462) 1,241
ARt ESRE SR Used in calculating diluted
earnings per share 42,902 60,409
—E_DEEFR
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RSB BERBIN FTEEERE A ARETT)

15 EREZF @

(d)

15 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

B BRRGMEFE9H (d)  Weighted average number of shares used as the
denominator
2020%F 20194
AREBTT AR¥FT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
STEESREARFBEAIE  Weighted average number of
DB E BRI ordinary shares (thousand shares)
FHE (TR used as the denominator in
calculating basic earnings
per share 504,524 444,448
STEESREERAN Adjustments for calculation of
HEE diluted earnings per share:
RIEBXRAMREER Share options granted under the
BRI EN Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
FERE (F19) (thousand shares) (note i)
(Ha#i) 17,118 5,979
AR ERE (F5) Convertible notes (thousand
(B &tii) shares) (note i) 12,812 20,975
STEEREERAFAIE  Weighted average number of
DN EBREBEES ordinary shares (thousand shares)
BIGINETFESE (FIR) and potential ordinary shares used
as the denominator in calculating
diluted earnings per share 534,454 471,402

Mati

F20178E 10517 » ZREEE#214139,300,508
DEERIEE S A EEEER SR ESH R
HI R - 57 1535 2 B 1EE34(v) »

RRIBRIEEITRBHIREBET TR
B RS ABIEI T Ak RA R A AE IR IR 2\ T 18

(BRIRHI BT BT 2 IR-FII T 5 (B 15
TE) BITHIR B 2 F BB ETRINE
B - BREXEFIFFZHINEABERT
RIGHE A 5t B REEEF R EED

B P IE ISR o
Mzt

R BRI 20195258 Ke20195F 25
15H E775,250,000;8 77 %%6,250,000:8 70
B912% AT 1R R Z 1% 5% 1B 58 2 RIT2F32
B AR 15 B 1T AR E IR
EEF BT ETER ©
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Note i

On 17 October 2017, the Group granted 39,300,508 share options for the
long-term incentive of directors and senior employees of the Group. For
details, please refer to Note 34(iv).

The number of shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise
of the share options less the number of shares that could have been issued
at fair value (determined as the average market price per share for the
period before exercise) for the same total proceeds is the number of shares
issued for no consideration. The resulting number of shares issued for
no consideration in basic earnings per share is included in the weighted
average number of ordinary shares as the denominator for calculating
diluted earnings per share.

Note i

The Company issued 12% convertible notes for HKD5,250,000 and
HKD6,250,000 on 8 February 2019 and 15 February 2019 respectively.
For details, please refer to Note 32. Convertible notes are included in the
determination of dilutive earnings per share from their date of issue.
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RS BERBIN FTESEEMBARETT)

16 % KBk

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BF HoRtE R0 AE st
ARETT AR®TT AREBTR ARETRT ARETT
Office Motor

Buildings  equipment  Machinery vehicles Total

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(D% COST
RR2019F1818 At 1 January 2019 5,772 974 9,807 8,004 24,557
RE Additions - 116 7410 - 7,526
HE Disposals - (310) (2,071) - (2,381)
12019128311 At 31 December 2019 5,772 780 15,146 8,004 29,702
hE Additions - 47 4,466 2251 6,764
HE Disposals - (37) (1,824) (1,739) (3,600)
12020128311 At 31 December 2020 5,772 790 17,788 8,516 32,866
ZEHRE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
RR2019F1818 At 1 January 2019 4267 727 5,425 7,681 18,100
FREE Provided for the year 133 82 1,863 110 2188
HE Disposals = (295) (1,880) = (2,175)
120195128311 At 31 December 2019 4,400 514 5,408 7,791 18,113
FNEE Provided for the year 133 67 3,035 219 3454
HE Disposals - (33) (1,810) (1,568) (3,411)
12020128311 At 31 December 2020 4533 548 6,633 6,442 18,156
IREfE CARRYING VALUES
12020128311 At 31 December 2020 1,239 242 11,155 2,074 14,710
12019128311 At 31 December 2019 1372 266 9,738 213 11,589

“ETTEFR
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16

M= BB Rz @

MERBERESE  RAEMGS IR
FH GNT) DEEAE GDRRETIRE
18 :

PR 5% 104
A 5E 104
N4 3E5F
S5 206F

BEENFAREBERIEAFHESRS
HIRE TS REBER R

StAGRB @ RAE BB MR BN
ENT:

16

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Machinery 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-10 years
Office equipment 3-5 years
Buildings 20 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment has been charged
to the consolidated income statements as follows:

20204 20194

ARETT ARETTT

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

TR Administrative expenses 153 67
tHE RS Cost of sales 3,189 2,007
THE R EHAY Selling and marketing expenses 112 114
3,454 2,188

120204 220194125 31 H AR EAR B4
# N 151,239,0007t % A K 51,372,000
TR F BN BRI E RS EEERE
R (EE30)

1 72 China New Energy Limited

Buildings with a total carrying amount of approximately
RMB1,239,000 and RMB1,372,000 as at 31 December 2020
and 2019 respectively were pledged as collateral for the Group’s
borrowings (Note 30).
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RS BERBIN FTESEEMBARETT)

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

mIEE 17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
BiTR®
ERE G H=EF e HERE st
ARETR ARETT ARMTR ARETT ARMTR
Self-
Computer  developed Development
software patents  Trademarks costs Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(D% COST
RR2019F1818 At 1 January 2019 60 7,392 1,374 6,093 14,919
RE Additions - - - 6,192 6,192
EREET Transfer to patents = 1,001 = (1,001) -
12019128311 At 31 December 2019 60 8,393 1,374 11,284 21,111
hE Additions = = = 2,667 2,667
EETER Transfer to patents = 9,176 = (9,176) -
12020128311 At 31 December 2020 60 17,569 1,374 4775 23,778
s AMORTISATION
RR2019F1818 At 1 January 2019 60 2054 23 - 2137
FREE Provided for the year - 585 137 - 722
12019128311 At 31 December 2019 60 2,639 160 - 2,859
FNEE Provided for the year = 935 137 = 1,072
12020128318 At 31 December 2020 60 3,574 297 - 3931
fREE CARRYING VALUES
12020128311 At 31 December 2020 13,995 1,077 4775 19,847
RR2019%12H31H At 31 December 2019 - 5,754 1214 11,284 18,252
“ETTEFR
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17

ETEE @

REBRAESEN T HRBEHEER
FHARNETLEE | ERRUBIAE
RBERNREEER IR EEERBE
REERETREMS - BARRBEITHERN
SN R ERERNREARERKE
RERE -

17

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life
using the straight-line method over the following periods: The
useful life of computer software is best estimated based on the
asset’s conditions and management'’s past experience. The useful
life of trademarks and self-developed patents is determined in
accordance with relevant laws and regulations.

B 105 Computer software 10 years
5 105 Trademarks 10 years
BiTHRZENER] 10204 Self-developed patents 10-20 years

B EENBHEG AGSR@RIEE
PRASBATERAS

(@) HRFAIB)AEEIRER A RER

TR AR B RBIR A
BEAENEEZRR

Amortisation of the intangible assets is included in cost of
sales and administrative expenses in the consolidated income

statements.
(a) Impairment tests for development costs not yet available
for use

The following table sets out the key assumptions for
impairment tests for development costs not yet available

for use:
20204 20194F
2020 2019
Y e SR R (%) Revenue annual growth rate (%) 5.00 20.08
TEEEF(%) Budgeted gross profit (%) 15 30
REAIZ R (%) Long term growth rate (%) 2.5 25
TR ARG IR ZE(%) Pre-tax discount rate (%) 18.2 13

1 74 China New Energy Limited
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(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Impairment tests for development costs not yet available
for use (Continued)

Management has determined the values assigned to each
of the above key assumptions as follows:

° Revenue annual growth rate (%): Average annual
growth rate over the five-year forecast period.

o Budgeted gross profit (%): Based on past
performance and management's expectations for
the future.

° Annual capital expenditure: Expected cash costs
in the cash generating unit. This is based on
the historical experience of management, and
the planned refurbishment expenditure. No
incremental revenue or cost savings are assumed
in the value-in-use model as a result of this
expenditure.

o Long term growth rate (%): This is the weighted
average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows
beyond the budget period. The rates are consistent
with forecasts included in industry reports.

° Pre-tax discount rate (%): Reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant industries and the countries
in which they operate.

Impact of possible changes in key assumptions

The recoverable amount is significantly above the
carrying amount of the development costs. The directors
and management of the Company have considered
and assessed reasonably possible changes for the key
assumptions and have not identified any instances that
could cause the carrying amount of development costs to
exceed its recoverable amount.

—_ZE_EEER
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18 ERHEEE

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

18 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

FHELM HEmE
(B&E)) (B &£ i) st
AR¥TT ARETT AR¥TT
Leasehold Leased
lands properties
(Note (1)) (Note (ii)) Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
#R2019%F1H1H At 1 January 2019 2,608 4,804 7,412
TeEER Depreciation charge (83) (1,048) (1,131)
1¥2019%12H31H At 31 December 2019 2,525 3,756 6,281
TeEER Depreciation charge (83) (1,048) (1,131)
#2020%F12H31H At 31 December 2020 2,442 2,708 5,150
20204 20194
AR®T T AR¥TT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
MBS Gt AR Interest expense
(included in finance cost) 231 289
BRIEEYEEAAENRESY  Expense relating to short-term leases
GTATTEMAR) in respect of leased properties
(included in administrative
expenses) 109 134
HEIRESMH4ERE Total cash outflow for leases 1,296 1,252

Bzt - Notes:

(1) FE A E E A P E FF (F 5 A7 B 1 A (1) It represents the Group’s ownership interests on leasehold land held for
BT BP9 FFEAFA10Z50 own use in the PRC, with remaining lease term of between 10 and 50
ZFo years.

(ii) FREFEE  AEFG R EEAEHAE (ii) For both years, the Group leases offices and staff dormitories for its
RETEZ fri] U HE S49092E R operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of 1 to 5
751254 (20194 © 1Z254F) » WWHER K years (2019: 1 to 5 years) without extension and termination options. In
AR I ZEEFEE o R EETE AR R 51 1 Al 157 determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable
HOIR = Z 0% » N EE B fEFH S 4909 E Z il B period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the
JE B 3 B 1T & FAIBIHIR ° period for which the contract is enforceable.

(iii) FR2020F 12531 HEREAR B BN R B (i) Right-of-use assets with a total carrying amount of RMB2,442,000 as at 31

2,442,0007T (20194 : A B #2,525,000
TT) BB IE B = B IE 5 K E BN
B9 (H15£30)

1 76 China New Energy Limited

December 2020 (2019: RMB2,525,000) were pledged as collateral for the
Group’s borrowings (Note 30).
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(B AERPIN FRESEEMNA AR TIT) (Al amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

19 R—HBEARINKE 19 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

20204 20194
AR¥TT AR®EFTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
BN Cost - 1,700
FEEFRTR B 518 Share of post-tax loss - (1,700)
IRERE Net book value - —
201912831 B — = A B 9% Nature of investment in an associate as at 31 December 2019:
BitE .
=RV
BRaE B IZ3th 25 B B HA il BHEAR FRA RELE A STERE
Place and date of
establishment/ Registered/ Proportion of Measurement
Name of entity incorporation paid-in capital ownership interest method
Jilin Tianshun Bio-chemical The PRC, Registered and 34% Equity
Technology Co Ltd 15 August 2013 paid-in capital of
RMB5,000,000
EMEXRIBEER FRE - HEMEEHER 34% A
BRAE 2013488 15H ARE
5,000,0007%
20205125308 » EME RIBEERIEE On 30 December 2020, bankruptcy liquidation of Jilin Tianshun
BIRABSERNEFE Bio-chemical Technology Co Ltd. was completed.
REE N —BEE AR R I There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in
WAREE an associate.
ZEZZEFR
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RSB BERBIN FTEEERE A ARETT)

20

21

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

BMAFEAHMEMEU 20 FINANCE ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

mAEREE

120205 f20196F 12831 B » " EEHRE
R—RR R M IIRIE EHATIA
SXEPEEMM A RATRI2.08%M
8 I FEE  BASE B AI#IE
AR FESR RN R AT EF AR
themEm (AT ES ARMEER
) RS RAE B D RRHESD o L R TRBSIE IR
BERTEERRIEDEEAIEE-

BREE A TEFRERRRVER
I HYEE38(C) °

BRAFESARMERRENEMEE
DN

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group invested in 2.08%
equity interests in an unlisted company incorporated in the PRC,
Inner Mongolia Zhongneng Biotechnology Co., Ltd., which is not
held for trading, and which the Group has irrevocably elected at
initial recognition to recognise in the financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) category. This is
a strategic investment and the Group considers this classification
to be more relevant.

Information about the methods and assumptions used in
determining fair value is provided in Note 38(c).

The financial assets at FVTOCI are denominated in RMB.

BoEWHIEREWEHE 21 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
20204 20194
ARETT AR®TFIT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
B EWEIE R Trade and bills
FEWEE—5=7 receivables — third parties
—8=5 — third parties 90,092 105,752
o BREWRIEREIRER  Less: Allowance for credit losses
EEEERG of trade and bills receivables (15,494) (11,124)
B EWRIEREWEZEFE  Trade and bills receivables — net 74,598 94,628

1 78 China New Energy Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B AERPIN FRESEEMNA AR TIT) (Al amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

21 BSEWHIBRLEIRESE 21 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

€=
RIFEEZ RN E ZRRTIERERE An ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables based on invoice
¥ FOBRRERE BERBR DT ! date (net of impairment losses) is as follows:
202045 20194
AR®T T AR¥TT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
R—FR Within one year 58,051 80,880
—EmE One to two years 12,398 8,315
“E=F Two to three years 4,143 5,433
=EEPUE Over three years 6 =
74,598 94,628
20205 201912831 H » EZ FEURR As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, trade and bills receivables
BEREWERUAREE are denominated in RMB.
120205612831 H > A E#36,100,00075 As at 31 December 2020, trade receivables of RMB36,100,000
(20194 | &) NE ZEWFTEEIRIHR(E (2019: nil) was pledged as security for the Group’s bank
AAREEIRTEIER (IEE30) © borrowings (Note 30).
BRAE 5 TR & RN E R E TG Details of impairment assessment of trade and bills receivables are
BUREIEE L MIEE38(b) 0 set out in Note 38(b).
—E_TFEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RSB BERBIN FTEEERE A ARETT)

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

22 H{hERHIEKRTE(IHRIE 22 OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENT

HAEWRRIE KRB RIEF IR T -

Details of other receivables and prepayments are as follows:

20204 20194F
AREBTT ARET T
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
JPE Ut R B 75 =3B (W EE()) Amounts due from related parties
(note (1)) 356 -
RiITEE R AREER Amounts due from directors related
RSB mERESN to the exercise of the Pre-IPO Share
EXEE] Option Scheme 412 =
RITEE X AEZERMBEBIRE  Amounts due from employees related
BNl E= R to the exercise of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme 1,969 -
CERIRRL RS R B RE R Prepayment for equipment of ethanol
2 IEE R EEMNIE fuel construction and alcoholic
(Br&L i) beverage construction projects
(note (i) 109,156 22,650
B R AR Prepayments related
FE{I™IE to listing expenses - 8,710
KiEGE Tendering deposits 220 460
FEUS% <& > JFRB (B aE0i)) Deposits receivables, net (note (jii) 71,508 78,000
Hth» J$ %8 Others, net 2,788 868
186,409 110,688
0} ZEE I R E RIZE (1) The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable
KiEE on demand.
(i) B EANIBISC I ER KB (i) The amounts represent the prepayment for equipment

(iii)

EAM R IBEH IR R R -
HiGI e ag i 3 B L b5t
AsfFE

R IZ 15 PERIETT & AT
AR G FEELEYFRIE B IRA E] K
B 1BZHE IR IR A B (V6978
B 775173 A B #78,000,000
7T (2019 : A R H78,000,0007T)
R A B HE1,000,0007T (20194 -
#) WP AR T RIES
RUB)FFIRIE - By E20205F 12531
H 1L F BT R IEETRAIN BRI
7,492,0007T; (20194F * %) o

1 80 China New Energy Limited

(i)

of ethanol fuel construction and alcoholic beverage
construction projects, which will be recognised to
inventories when the delivery and the instalment of such
equipment is completed.

Deposits receivables represents up-front payments for
guaranteeing performance of the contracts to Inner
Mongolia Zhongneng Biological Technology Co., Ltd of
RMB78,000,000 (2019: RMB78,000,000) which will be
returned upon the project completes and to Xin Jiang
Botai Energy Co., Ltd of RMB1,000,000 (2019: nil) which
will be returned upon the project initiates. Impairment
losses of approximately RM7,492,000 was recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B AERPIN FRESEEMNA AR TIT) (Al amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

HihEURIERFa(d%IE 22 OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENT

G=) (Continued)
HhpE R IE R A RUER L NS5t Other receivables and prepayments are denominated in:
f&:
20204 20194
AR®T T AR¥TT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
NG RMB 183,854 104,410
g GBP 2,555 47
ET usSD - 585
BT HKD - 5,646
186,409 110,688
H i EUWEIE 2 R BT s B & 5 Details of impairment assessment of other receivables are set out
38(b) ° in Note 38(b).
—E_DEEFR
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RSB BERBIN FTEEERE A ARETT)

23 SREBEE

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

23 CONTRACT ASSETS

20204 20194
AR®BTT AR®EF T
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

R SAA RN Contract assets relating to
EREE construction contracts 153,768 124,107
B EE R Less: Loss allowance (9,927) (5,999)
HEEE—FE Contract assets — net 143,841 118,108

R2019F181R  REENTENR/A
ES588,465,0007T ©

GREETEZRAAERKEETMAM
KRBT RRERAENERN  RESE
BER AR F A ERBYRIRKRIRMIE °
EERRNNASESRTE SREER
BEREESEUWRIR AR TEEEH
REEREEBHANRZEEREES
R WAEBRBEDEARBEE

BREEELMNT, BN AEB N ERS
GBRENMERERZARHEZ RS R
{EsHEF B MYEE38(0) °

As at 1 January 2019, contract assets amounted to approximately
RMB8&8,465,000.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the
rights are conditioned on the Group’s future performance. The
contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional. The Group classifies these contract assets
as current because the Group expects to realise them in its normal
operating cycle.

Contract assets have increased as the Group has provided more
services ahead of the agreed payment schedules for service
contracts. Details of the impairment assessment are set out in
Note 38(b).

24 =8 24 INVENTORIES
20204 20194
ARETT AR®EFTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
JE AR Raw materials 174 226
SRETHEES Work-in-progress for standard parts 5,796 3,132
5,970 3,358

1 82 China New Energy Limited




IR A IRR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B AERPIN FRESEEMNA AR TIT) (Al amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

25 RITHBKRIAE 25 BANK BALANCES AND CASH
20205 20194
AR¥TT AR®EFTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
RIT R FEIRE Cash at bank and on hand 37,322 28,787
B BIRRIRITER Less: Pledged bank deposits - (2,321)
37,322 26,466

RITASERIZ N T0.02%E0.30% (20194F :
0.02%Z%0.30%) I HFIERET S

REZE2020FE12831H L EEAE AR
IRTTIERNE > FR20205F 12831 H R T
1730 (20194 : AR #52,321,0007T) BT
EARERIBITHERBIER (F5E30) ©

IRITRFRRERUATERSE

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.02% to 0.30% (2019: 0.02% to 0.30%).

No bank deposits as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB2,321,000) was pledged as security for the Group's bank
borrowings upon settlement of the relevant bank borrowings
during the year ended 31 December 2020 (Note 30).

Cash at banks and on hand were denominated in:

20205 20194
ARETT NSl S
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR (Bat) RMB (Note) 26,978 25,648
BT HKD 10,246 433
TR§E GBP 60 -
=TT uSD 32 379
Hth gk Other currencies 6 6
37,322 26,466

HizE - Note:

AR IR IR I R T B SME BRI

IRTTAERR R EARIRIRTT R 2 BB FT(E
SHIBERMIEE38(b) °

Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations.

Details of impairment assessment of bank balances and pledged
bank deposits are set out in Note 38(b).

—_ZE_EEER
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RSB BERBIN FTEEERE A ARETT)

26 B EAMRIE

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

26 TRADE PAYABLES

20205 20194

ARETT AEB¥FT

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

= AN E O] Trade payables 85,685 114,755

20205 K20195E12H31 H » 1R#5E2%
HA B2 5 FE (SR BERYBREES DA T ¢

=2
>~

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the ageing analysis of trade
payables based on invoice date was as follows:

202045 20194

ARETT AR®TFIT

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

DR —& less than one year 72,665 94,965
1ZFE24F 1-2 years 8,249 8,800
2F3F 2-3 years 857 3,438
3FEE over 3 years 3,914 7,552
85,685 114,755

ANEBR20205F KR2019F 12831 BN E

ZRMNTEANUAREE-

27 HthFEFIA

The Group's trade payables as at 31 December 2020 and 2019
were denominated in RMB.

27 OTHER PAYABLES

20205 20194
AREFT AR¥FT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE(TIBETR VAT payable 60,371 47,562
HhpE(SsIE R et & A Other payables and accruals 16,733 24,141
BRIE Wages payables 826 787
ETEERIE (M52) Amounts due to directors (Note) 306 426
78,236 72916

Hiat - Note:

JENTAIE S FILIT BERICEIEE

1 84 China New Energy Limited

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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(B AERPIN FRESEEMNA AR TIT) (Al amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

27 HthEAFRIE @ 27 OTHER PAYABLES (Continted)
HEMEAZIBRU TESEHE - Other payables were denominated in:
20204 20194F
AREBTT AR®EFTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
— AR - RMB 73,356 67,947
—B7T — HKD 4,768 3,075
I - GBP 112 1,798
—3=7T - USD - 96
78,236 72,916
28 SMR&E 28 CONTRACT LIABILITIES
20204 20194
AR®BTT AR®FTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
BESHBERN Contract liabilities relating to
aRAaE construction contracts 20,226 15,140
WL EGE G A E B IWEIZE When the Group receives a deposit before the production activity
AR ERIFHRIIELESREE  BEE commences, this gives to contract liabilities at the start of a
MEBEREE 2 W mBakE &3 contract, until the revenue recognised on the relevant contract
b o REB—MRINIBE RSB exceeds the amount of the deposit. The Group typically receives a
U ER15% E30% 2 ¥t M iR iR T1E 15%-30% deposit on acceptance of construction services orders
BUARTUEN15% E30% 2 #2 & ° 122019 and 15%-30% deposit before construction work commences. As
FIAIH caRAaENEENA AR at 1 January 2019, contract liabilities amounted to approximately
21,028,0007z ° RMB21,028,000.
“ESEER
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(B EREBIN FRESEEENA AR TT) (Al amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

28 ARI&E®w

TRBTRINE E 20206 %2019412831
HItFERINEAGESEEEEMN
Wa 38 MUK ER R B 220204 522019
FI2A3HIEFEEBITHNBOERS

28 CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued)

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 relates to carried-
forward contract liabilities and how much relates to performance
obligations that were satisfied in the year ended 31 December

R ER s RE 2020 and 2019.
20205 20194
ARETT ARH¥FT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
REY A ERBEEGERN Revenue recognised that was included
B in the contract liabilities balance
at the beginning of the year 15,140 21,028

29 RIERIBEBE, QA&

() EEREBEREE

29 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(i) Deferred tax assets

RERRIBEEDMU T - The analysis of deferred tax assets is as follows:
202045 20194
ARETT AR¥FT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
EICFRIBE E - Deferred tax assets:
—BRBEI2ER%E — to be recovered after more than
el 12 months 4,904 2,569
— 1218 B U [E] — to be recovered within 12 months 1,575 1,758
6,479 4327
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(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

29 IREIMIEEE &fEw 29 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES
(Continued)
@) IRIERIBEE (& (i) Deferred tax assets (Continued)
IR TS EEEEU T - The movements on the deferred tax are as follows:
20205 20194
AREFT AR®FIT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
KA At beginning of the year 4,327 5,752
REZEPtA GORBR) Credited/(charged) to profit or loss 2,129 (1,425)
SFAEMEEWE Credited to other comprehensive
income 23 -
RER At end of the year 6,479 4,327

B ZE 20205 K 20195128318 1k
FENELEREEEZS LK
st RE—RF R A& N AVAEER

The movements in deferred tax assets for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax

HEEH) w0 jurisdiction, are as follows:
BATE
ST AHA
BIRRE  EHER  EBERA & HE 2EkE st
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
Bad debt Deferred
provision Accruals income Inventory Lease FVTOCI Total
BERBEE Deferred tax assets RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
20191818 At 1 January 2019 2,862 1,662 - 1,228 - - 5,752
ekl |3 Charged to
profit or loss (293) 65 - (1,228) 31 - (1,425)
12019 At 31 December 2019
12831 2,569 1,727 - - 31 - 4,327
120201818 At 1 January 2020 2,569 1,727 - - 31 - 4,327
RIBEFFA Credited to profit or loss 2335 (580) 360 - 14 23 2,152
12020 At 31 December 2020
128318 4904 1,147 360 - 45 23 6,479
“ETTEFR
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(B EREBIN FRESEEENA AR TT) (Al amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

29 REREEE HE® 29 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(Continued)
(i) BEERBEEE (i)  Deferred tax liabilities
B E20205 2019512831 H LE The movements in deferred tax liabilities for the years
FENRLEREBESEES (X ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, without taking into
R E—MRFE R AR AR ER consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax
HEEH) TN jurisdiction, are as follows:
BATE
=F A E At
2ERE
AR®BTT
FVTOCI
RIERIEAE Deferred tax liability RMB’000
12201918 1H At 1 January 2019 =
REMEmEWE 0k Charged to other
comprehensive income 2
K2019%12H31H At 31 December 2019 2
1202018 1H At 1 January 2020 2
SFAEMEmEWE Credited to other comprehensive income 2)
R2020E12H31H At 31 December 2020 =
(iii) FMIAEE (iii)  Tax losses
2020 20194
AREFT AR¥FT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
WHERFREFRIBEEZE  Unused tax losses for which
HRERRIBEE no deferred tax asset has
been recognised 2,588 2,766
BB EER Temporary differences calculated
METERE R EEE at applicable enterprise
income tax rate 647 692
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(iii)

(iv)

RS BERBIN FTESEEMBARETT)

RIEMIBEE, B8R w@

mmsiE (&

REEAMRIEEIETS AN TR
MEBATEL MZARNRAR
R A B BEEE AL FEERFRUA o

IR A IRR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

29 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES
(Continued)

(iii)

Tax losses (Continued)

The unused tax losses were incurred by a subsidiary
located in the PRC that is not likely to generate taxable
income in the foreseeable future. Their respective expiry

HEBEMmBIRW T dates are as follows.
20204 20194
ARETT AR®EFTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
20204 2020 - 1,456
20224 2022 29 29
20234 2023 1,281 1,281
20245 2024 1,278 -
2,588 2,766
KRB GRFELE (ivy  Unrecognised temporary differences

20204 20194
AREBTT AR®EFTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

BURFESRIERRIBE S Temporary difference relating to

HN—EHBARKRE investments in a subsidiary for
BRANE R ZRE - which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised:

—RDEERF] — Undistributed earnings 147,053 50,055

1120204 K% 20194128531 H » F
MRTREREEETERT
SHRMIEARAE (HERE
A7l BERDEEF D& H
# NR18147,740,0007c ;e A R 5
50,055,0007¢ > fid {73 IR B 321 >
AZARN IR FERINM - ERINE
IRy 72 SR 7 71 (B S hE SDARAERR
BaE RERS A EHIESR
by B AT D IR - E B TR
AEIH] BRI IkZ F it o

Zhongke Tianyuan and Guangdong Boluo Tianyuan
Jiuneng High Technology Engineering Co Ltd (“Boluo
Tianyuan”) have undistributed earnings amounting in
aggregate to RMB147,740,000 and RMB50,055,000
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 respectively, which,
if paid out as dividends, would be subject to tax in the
hands of the shareholder. An assessable temporary
difference exists, but no deferred tax liability has been
recognised as the parent entity is able to control the timing
of distributions from the subsidiaries and is not expected to
distribute these profits in the foreseeable future.

—ETEER
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RSB BERBIN FTEEERE A ARETT)

30

IR1TIE X

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

30 BANK BORROWINGS

20205 20194
ARETT AEB¥FT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ENHA Current

—BiKH — Secured 11,172 18941

JEENHA Non-Current
—BEifiH — Secured 9,500 =
20,672 18,941

(@)

1120204 52019812431 H » <
EEFFAERITEREUARES
&e

REEF2020F K%2019F 12831
HAVIRITERA R 120,672,000

€)]

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, all of the Group’s
bank borrowings are denominated in RMB.

The Group’s bank borrowings as at 31 December 2020
and 2019 of RMB20,672,000 and RMB18,941,000 were

TR ART£18,941,00075H 7 secured by the following.
FIB(EILIR

202045 20194
AR®TT AR®FT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
Y ENT =Yk Property, plant and equipment 1,239 1,372
EREESE Right-of-use assets 2,442 2,525
B 5 W EIE Trade receivables 36,100 =
BEIRIFRIRITER Pledged bank deposits - 2,321
39,781 6,218

BRE EIRIFIN 7201912831
B iR1TERAR1E18,941,0007T
HESEEEREAABERERE
BIERE R

1120204 520194128531 H » /il
BFHBERMERDRIRA.72% K
6.36% ©

1 90 China New Energy Limited

In addition to pledge of assets, bank borrowings of
RMB18,941,000 as at 31 December 2019 were
guaranteed by Mr. Yu Weijun, the chairman of the board
and a shareholder of the Company.

The weighted average effective interest rates as at 31
December 2020 and 2019 were 4.72% and 6.36%
respectively.



IR A IRR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30 HRITfER @ 30 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)
© 7 REIRE E A R ER B R E (c)  The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximated
RER RITERNREERER their fair values as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 as the
20205 522019512831 HA impact of discounting borrowings with fixed interest rates
FERE- was not significant.
(d) 122020F Kx2019F12831H » 7 (d) At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s bank
EEREEENRITEROT - borrowings were repayable as follows:
20204 20194
AR®BTT AR®EFTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
1R Within 1 year 11,172 18,941
1225 Between 1 and 2 years 2,000 =
PESD = Between 2 and 5 years 7,500 =
20,672 18,941
31 RIEWA 31 DEFERRED INCOME
20204 20194
AR®BTT AR®FT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
BB EENBITEE Government grants relating to
intangible assets 2,400 -
B mBNER D Less: Current portion - -
JERENEL Non-current portion 2,400 =
BRSBTS L 22 B AR 1B B B UREst The government grants were subsidies received from local
F BRI E - BIEE ST L AT governments for development of ester fuel project. The amounts
Za AR TR B EN TR AR SR will be amortized to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
IR B R i8m o the expected useful lives of the related assets when the project

completes and delivers.

ZETEER
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32 AHMRER

32 CONVERTIBLE NOTES

20204 20194

AR®BTT AR®EF T

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

FAEER Opening balance 11,847 =
e Addition - 10,606
A D Converted to shares (10,385) -
R EES Change in fair value (1,462) 1,241
FRAGER Closing balance - 11,847

KRB D RIN20199288H 2019625
158 8£175,250,00078 7T 526,250,000/ 7T
BY12% Pl - R E RBIN A AT E
HAERETRLHBRARKARIATERE
R RS ERETRRI2EREE
120195128 » " ARRRFEL LB
FER3ME A - EMIRRRAER T~ R E
SRR H0.48178 7T > B THREEIL
ETEHNTE ERER T BiEE
FEAIENZMREBATRHEE AS
DR ESRLUSE ST BB KRR TS ER

The Company issued 12% convertible notes for HK$5,250,000
and HK$6,250,000 on 8 February 2019 and 15 February 2019
respectively. The notes are convertible into ordinary shares of the
Company upon the Company obtaining the approval for listing in
Hong Kong, or repayable at 12 months following the respective
issue dates. The Company extended in December 2019 the
termination date of the notes by 3 months with other terms
unchanged. The conversion price is HK$0.481 per conversion
share subject to adjustments for consolidation or sub-division, in
the event of which, the conversion price in force immediately prior
thereto shall be adjusted by multiplying it by the revised nominal

MIRMEE amount and dividing the result by the former nominal amount.

PR BBERRARNTETLRZ2H DR
REE HARRERBEUSATNIL
SEERLUMIER BT ARNZTAE
SRANTETR  HERVIGHEEE
BESR AT ES AR Bt HERA
BB EB AR D8 - AREE AR

The convertible notes and embedded derivative are classified
entirely as liabilities because they were issued in a currency other
than the functional currency of the Company. As the instrument
contains an embedded derivative, it has been designated at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition and as such the

AFESABENERTANFRERS

PRASTS EE RS A FEs o

12202078 158 > el R IR E A HE

7523924 502RS G5 ©

1 92 China New Energy Limited

embedded conversion feature is not separated. All transaction
costs related to financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed as incurred.

On 15 July 2020, convertible notes have been fully converted into
23,924,502 shares.
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(B AERPIN FRESEEMNA AR TIT) (Al amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

33 HHE&RE 33 LEASE LIABILITIES
20205 20194
ARETT N
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
EHHEaE Lease liabilities payable:
—FR Within one year 1,075 1,073
—F M EERBBmEZ Within a period of more than one year
2RI but not exceeding two years 1,186 1,075
MEN LERNBBERF Within a period of more than two
RN oS years but not exceeding five years 746 1,814
3,007 3,962
B OREEEE NPT Less: Amount due for settlement
1218 B A EHBASE A0 with 12 months shown
I8 under current liabilities (1,075) (1,073)
IERBEEE TR Amount due for settlement
12{8 B B R ER4S S BY after 12 months shown under
I8 non-current liabilities 1,932 2,889
BANEESEZNEFIESERRFE] The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease
K #653% (20194 : 653%) © liabilities was 6.53% (2019: 6.53%).
—E_TFEFR
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(B EREBIN FRESEEENA AR TT) (Al amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

34 g& 34 SHARE CAPITAL
LEREE f& s B s
TFoEEE N
Number of
ordinary shares Share capital Share capital
GBP’000 RMB’000
ERE - Authorized:
22020512831 H As at 31 December 2020 589,758,898 147 1,762
ERTILEEHRE : Issued and fully paid:
FR2019F1H1H At 1 January 2019 491,256,350 123 1,541
FIEEFRS Cancellation of treasury shares
Ez30)) (note (i) (46,808,809) (12) 97)
22019512831 H At 31 December 2019 444 447 541 111 1,444
BITIRAD (H1aEa) Issuance of shares (note (i) 82,600,000 21 182
AR ERER AR  Convertible notes converted to
(K &£ i) shares (note (i) 23,924,502 5 52
THEEXRABEBERPE  Exercise of the Pre-IPO Share
REREStE (BtaEav)) Option Scheme (note (iv)) 38,786,855 10 84
122020512831 H At 31 December 2020 589,758,898 147 1,762

0

(i)

FR2018F 15 18H » 2K 23 5] X
FR0.01222FFHI 1B 15 FE [EI B
46,808, 8098 &K » S TP 15
AIBHEER61, 706815 (FIN FE 15
4,681,0007T) °§$20194 10523
H > KX 2 Bz BB CIR E 77 iR

140

2020575 15H » K A B2 /R
0.98 87T HI1EE #1782,600,000%
BB

1 94 China New Energy Limited

(1)

(1)

On 18 January 2018, the Company repurchased its
46,808,809 ordinary shares each at a price of GBP0.012
per share, paying gross proceeds of GBP561,706
(approximately RMB4,681,000). On 23 October 2019, the
Company cancelled the treasury shares it repurchased.

On 15 July 2020, the Company issued 82,600,000
ordinary shares each at a price of HKDO.98 per share.



RS BERBIN FTESEEMBARETT)

34 IgZE @)

(iii)

(iv)

KRER2019F28 F17
11,500,000 7T A912% F] # i8 F&
B RZFEBER KNG EMNE
REB LT EZ R A E]
BER BRI FEH IR EF
A RIRIR 17098 B B
23924, 5028% o 2020475 15H
K AEEREE LT AIBRE
S IROABETTHIES 72 75
23924, 5020 B3l

F20174F 10517 H » X £ [E 57K
EEHEZREGRIESIIRAH
Bt ERE 8 ([BRA R
BERERENE) - RUE
#39,300,50817 fE IR 1EREFE K
ERIESREGR].SELHIER
WIE BB I RERZ S 5
BE T EFBIF T AIEE - Tl
27,633, 16717 BB IR AT E1E A o
HH927,633 16717 R E AT H
KL FEFEE ST 5 =B F B 1T1Z -
BRTHI11,667,34117 FEARIEFHE
HAEFE =72 —RIRHA
HI B — R B BESEEIN=
PDZ— WA =FATTEF
2020495 23H » 38,786,855 &
BIREIZ RO 0ISZETFHIERS %
1TFPEFERERES -

IR A IRR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

34 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

The Company issued 12% convertible notes for
HKD11,500,000 at February 2019. The notes are
convertible into ordinary shares of the Company upon the
Company obtaining the approval for listing in Hong Kong.
Assuming no adjustments to the conversion price is made,
the number of conversion shares shall be 23,924,502
Shares. On 15 July 2020, the Company has been listed
in Hong Kong, and the convertible notes converted to
23,924,502 ordinary shares each at a price of HKDO0.481
per share.

On 17 October 2017, the Group granted share option
scheme for the long-term incentive of directors and senior
employees of the Group (the “Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”). An aggregate of 39,300,508 options were
granted to allow directors and senior employees to acquire
ordinary shares at a price of 1.5 pence per share subject
to vesting conditions under these schemes while there
are 27,633,167 options being accepted. The 27,633,167
of the share options granted may be exercised after
the third anniversary of the grant date. The remaining
11,667,341 share options vest as to one third on the date
of grant and an additional one third on each of the first
and second anniversaries of the date of grant and are
exercisable for a period of three years. On 23 September
2020, 38,786,855 ordinary shares have been exercised
by the directors and senior employees each at a price of
GBPO0.015 per share.

—ETEER
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35 f#f&

BB ARARETIT)

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

35 RESERVES

BATE

AR

MR 2EWEH
bS] e EERR  EREE

RVEE  AfHE  EERE  OTEE  RERE fitE #E  REEN E:hy
i) izt fiztte) Hizt) Hiztte) Hizn g
Foreign Financial
Share-based currency Treasury assets
Share  Combination Statutory payment  translation shares  at FVTOCI Retained
premium reserves reserves reserves reserves reserves reserves eamings Total
note (@) note (b) note(c) note (d) note (e) note (f) note (g)
1#2019%181H Balance at 1 January 2019
HEER 68830 (33,156) 12,328 556 23951 (4,681) - 1,657 69,485
EREA Profit for the year - - - - - - = 59,168 59,168
Hit2EEE Other comprehensive loss = = = = (238) = 13 = (225)
BT TERE Transfer to statutory reserves = = 7498 = = = = (7,498) =
MR AR FE Share-based payment expenses - - - 461 - - - - 461
HHEEERR Cancelation of treasury shares (4,584) = = = - 4681 = - 97
1#2019%12A31H Balance at 31 December 2019
pET e 64,246 (33,156) 19826 1,017 23713 - 13 53,327 128,986
4202051818 Balance at 1 January 2020
pET 64,246 (33,156) 19,826 1,017 23713 - 13 53,327 128986
ERiEA Proft for the year = = = = = = = 44,364 44364
Bt 2EEE Other comprehensive loss - - - - 145 - (145) - -
BETTTHE Transfer to statutory reserves - = 8108 = = - - (8,108) -
BURIA AEHRE(T30357 Share-based payment expenses - - - u8 - - - - 98
RTRG Issuance of shares 72965 = = = = = = = 72965
HARMEERZMA  Tansaction coss atiributable to
issue of shares (21,700) - - - - - - - (21,700)
TARZEERAR?R  Convertible notes transfer to shares 10,333 = = = = = = = 10,333
TEERABEER  Drercise of the Pre-PO Share
R 2 Option Scheme 6917 = - (1,965) - - - = 4952
#2020%12H318 Balance at 31 December 2020
pET 132,761 (33,156) 27934 - 23,858 - (132) 89,583 240,848
(a) MHiEE (@  Share premium
BIOIRMFTEENRD REY B Share premium arising from the issue of shares can be
RIBINESHERNHEE AR utilised in increasing paid-in capital as approved by the
directors.
(b) EHE#E (b)  Combination reserves

GHREFIEEEER S HERN
AERWEHEANEERER
BEEERBUWENAEREZREN
= R

1 96 China New Energy Limited

Combination reserve represents the differences between
the nominal amount of net assets of the combining entities
under common control at the date on which they were
acquired by the Group and the nominal amount of the
consideration for the acquisition.
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35 RESERVES (continued)

EEREE (c)  Statutory reserves
RIEAE BN PRSI 2 MY According to the rules and regulations applicable to the
BABERENRANERN e Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC, when
FRIRAH > ZEMWBATE distributing net profits of each year, these subsidiaries
AR RB RN ERIEEE are required to transfer an amount of their net profits as
BEEATEHE BEEZLEHE reported in their statutory accounts to statutory reserves
ZEEFMEAR50% % L o 1R until the accumulated balance of such reserves reaches
WE A E RGBT BIEIRHENE 50% of their registered capital. Depending on the nature,
NEINREEIEFI LA 5D the statutory reserves can be used to set off accumulated
IKTFFTEE - losses of the subsidiaries or distribute to the owners in
form of bonus issue.
LU A ERB (DR E (d)  Share-based payment reserves
DR BB A 8 B The share-based payments reserves are used to recognise
6 8 T R1TERITEAVEE IR the grant date fair value of options issued to employees but
FIRH AR AT E. not exercised.
120209 H 231 ' EE M= kiR On 23 September 2020, the directors and senior
E1ER0.015HIENEBSTTHEA employees exercised the share options of the Company
NB $38,786,85508 B 15 U BE for the 38,786,855 shares, at a price of GBP0.015 per
B - BR TSR ERE TES share. The rest of options had been forfeited due to the
FHEMH 2 U o resignation of certain employees.
DUR 85 1R 45 51835 H B BB AR A Set out below are summaries of options granted under the
BE . plan:
20204 20194
fERC SR B EHE
2020 2019
Number of Number of
options options
REH] At beginning of the year 39,300,508 39,300,508
FRITEE Exercised during the year (38,786,855) -
FRR I Forfeited during the year (513,653) =
RER At end of the year - 39,300,508
—E_DEEFR
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(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

35 RESERVES (continued)

(d) UkPHEBROMSRER (B (d)

iR FEIR R 22 T (B

BRERED BN A TER
i — M e AT E B
BHE 2Bt ARBHA-
IRELE 20206 K 20196 12831H
LEFE stAREGRm TR
IR BRI TR H A
R 461,0007T > K25t ARmBILL
RN BERH TR E RS AR

948,000 7T °

(e) SMBMERHE

(e)

MEBINESEEEZ EREEA
By SESPRAt S Hofth 2 E IR bR -
R EmANEBREED R
RSN HERE PR TR

pay cEiFl

( EEkOHE

U]

BERDEERRESERAT
BEARRARMEMZ MR
B> BRI EARBUHNEM T

R2018F 18188 » A AT MU
EMRR0.012EFENERLCEBEH
46,808,8098% L@ AR > ZATFT1S
HIEAREEA561, 706 EE AR
#54,681,0007T) ° 522019510823
B AABHHEHBRINEER

e

(8 RBATFEFAEMEEKEH (®

BRNEREE

REREENHih 2 E WD
RAEZBFRENATEES %
FEFNRTmABIRATEST A
HitzmWmHENEREER
K5t MIRRAR A E 5748 LLFESD
B AEERHE RS EESRE

REER -

1 98 China New Energy Limited

Share-based payment reserves (Continued)
Fair value of options granted

The fair value of the options at grant date was calculated
using the Black Scholes option pricing mode, with this
amount to be charged over the vesting period. The
share-based payment charge included within expense
in the consolidated income statements and in the share-
based payment reserves in equity are RMB461,000 and
RMB948,000 for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019 respectively.

Foreign currency translation reserves

Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign
operations are recognised in other comprehensive
income as described in Note 3 and accumulated in a
separate reserve within equity. The cumulative amount
is reclassified to profit or loss when the net investment is
disposed of.

Treasury shares reserves

Treasury shares reserves is used to recognise the
consideration paid when group companies purchase the
Company’s shares and the shares are not yet cancelled or
reissued.

On 18 January 2018, the Company repurchased its
46,808,809 ordinary shares each at a price of GBP0.012
per share, paying gross proceeds of GBP561,706
(approximately RMB4,681,000). On 23 October 2019, the
Company cancelled the treasury shares it repurchased.

Financial assets at FVTOCI reserves

The Group has elected to recognise changes in the
fair value of investments in equity securities in other
comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated
within the financial assets at FVTOCI reserves within
equity. The Group transfers amounts from this reserve to
retained earnings when the relevant equity securities are
derecognised.
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36 LIST OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 December

2020 and 2019:

AL/ E¥TR 120205128318 H2019%12831H

AGIE BUMH%RAS &S BREk cEERGRE FEEEERE TDEBREERE
Attributable equity  Attributable equity
Place and date of interest of the Group interest of the Group

incorporation/ Registered Issued and fully s at 31 December  as at 31 December  Principal activities and

Company name establishment capital paid capital 2020 2019 place of operation

ERER .

Directly owned:

BRTRXTIAR R 10965295 1095529% 100% 100% RAEERECEEERARES
HEAT (AT 200659528 it

Guangdong Zhongke Tianyuan The PRC, USD 10,955,529 USD 10,955,529 100% 100%  Provision of ethanol production system
New Energy Science 2 September 2006 technology integrated services in
and Technology Co Ltd the PRC
(‘Zhongke Tianyuan”)

FER |

Incirectly owned:

EREEEXTNES  HED AEB5000000  ARH5,0000007 100% 100%  RAEREEENERKEHEE
WRITTRBRAT  1998F9A30H R
(3% %)

Guangdong Boluo Tianyuan ~ The PRC, RMB5,000,000 RMB5,000,000 100% 100%  Fabrication and manufacture of
Jiuneng High Technology 30 September 1998 equipment in accordance with
Engineering Co Ltd project requirements and designs
(“Boluo Tianyuan”) in the PRC

BEXREEERE 37 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

FEFREERER DBEREAEENE
R UFEEELE TEBE
BB RERGRAER ARNRARE
HoAEEBIERE FFEERT

4
wero

FEBNEAEREEES ETaR
RITAEM (FE30) A AR R ARG
o (BREEEHTRE  REBEN KHAt
&) o

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to owners through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group'’s overall strategy remains unchanged from

prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include
bank borrowings (Note 30), and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital, retained earnings

and other reserves.

Annual Report 2020
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FAREZTERBEREREE - 1FRIL
BERN—IR EFELZRERMETR
BEXBFIFINERER - RIFEEE
2 AEEREEBIRE BITHR
RETHEGNEERAEHHITY
BEARGEHE AEET A ZH FEMAIMB
SRINBYE A E K o B E20204F f220194F
12831RILFE  EAEEER BERK
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38 FRMITH

(@ EWMIARMNSE

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

37 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital structure regularly.
As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issue and the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,

policies or process for managing capital during the years ended 31

December 2020 and 2019.

38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Category of financial instruments

20204 20194
ARETT AR®FT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
EREE Financial assets
HER A ST ERN Financial assets at amortised cost
TREE
B 5 EWRIE R Trade and bills receivables
FEW R 74,598 94,628
HAhE W Ig Other receivables 77,253 79,328
RIS RIRE Bank balances and cash 37,322 26,466
BIEIRIRITER Pledged bank deposits - 2,321
WAFEStAEMEE  Financial assets at FVTOCI
SR EE 4,845 5,015
194,018 207,758
THaR Financial liabilities
FHE A ST ERN Financial liabilities at amortised cost
=K
B 5 R EMENRIE Trade and other payables
(FEFEREMIZER) (excluding VAT payable) 103,550 140,109
HEaRE Lease liabilities 3,007 3,962
RITE™R Bank borrowings 20,672 18,941
EE -t Convertible notes - 11,847
127,229 174,859

2 00 China New Energy Limited
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HHBEREERRREEK

FEENTEZSHMTIAGEES
FE LS R TE TRk LAY 2R 48 ~ ELth AL
BN HE RIS EEY)  BIRR
RITER - RATESAHMS
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eI HE A IRITERKR
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BIRERS BRI SR T
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EREENZERR S EER
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SHERGEE - AEBEERKREE
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(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and bills receivables, other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, financial assets at
FVTOCI, trade and other payables, lease liabilities, bank
borrowings and convertible notes. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with the financial instruments include market
risks (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

Currency risk arises from future commercial transactions
or recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency that is not the functional currency of the relevant

group entity.

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of the
transactions denominated and settled in RMB, which
is the functional currency of the Group. The Group was
exposed to currency risk arising from foreign currency
transactions, primarily with respect to Great Britain Pound
(“GBP"), United States Dollar (“USD”) and HKD.

The Group has not hedged its foreign exchange rate
risk exposure. However, management of the Group
monitors currency risk exposure and will consider hedging
significant currency risk exposure should the need arise.

—ECEEER
Annual Report 2020

201



REMBRRIE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B EREBIN FRESEEENA AR TT) (Al amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

38 EMITAw 38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) HBEMREEEEREER (@ (b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

HE B (E Market risk (Continued)

%R (&) Currency risk (Continued)

NEFEST AR AFRBEE > K&E The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
BLUMNSSHENEKEERGH denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
BEMNIREENT the respective dates of consolidated statement of financial

position are as follows:

20204 20194
ARETT ARETTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
T GBP
—H g RIE — Other receivables 2,555 =
— RIS RIRE — Bank balances and cash 60 =
—HENRIE — Other payables 112 1,798
E7T usD
— RIS RIRE — Bank balances and cash 32 379
—HMENFIA — Other payables - 9%
BT HKD
—RITHERNIRE — Bank balances and cash 10,246 433
—H B WRIE — Other receivables - 42
— AR ERE — Convertible notes - 11,847
—HAERE — Other payables 4,768 3,075

2 02 China New Energy Limited
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38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The following table shows the sensitivity analysis of a 5%
change in RMB against the relevant foreign currencies.
The sensitivity analysis includes only foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the year-end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
Should RMB strengthened/weakened by 5% against the

AR EUT - relevant currencies, the effect on post-tax profit for the
years would be as follows:
PRI &AL, GR2L) &8
20204 20194
ARETT AR®EFTT
Change of post-tax profit
increase/(decrease)
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHEREEE RMB against GBP:
FHES% Strengthened by 5% (105) 77
B2 (E5% Weakened by 5% 105 (77)
AEERET: RMB against USD:
FHES% Strengthened by 5% (1) (12)
B2 (E5% Weakened by 5% 1 12
AEBRET RMB against Hong Kong dollar
(FFB7Tl) - (“HKD"):
FH{E5% Strengthened by 5% (233) 614
B2 1E5% Weakened by 5% 233 (614)
—E_DEEFR
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38 EMT A w

(b) MBERREEBRRERK (&)

5 BE ()
AL =PI

AEE YT 2T E R B EE
MRNER CEEBERBELF
BENRER NEEZTERET
KB R HHAEEH T E R

=,
o

ARE B H AR ETEAF FIFHLL
HPEFRERR

2 Oll- China New Energy Limited

38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises from borrowings
with fixed rates, which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. The Group closely monitors trend of
interest rate and its impact on the Group’s interest rate risk
exposure.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risks.
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38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

HBEEREEEEREE (&) (b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
EE R MG R B EFFEG Credit risk and impairment assessment
AEEHBERASREE -B5 The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its
FE U RN IE K FEWR 4 ~ EAEUR contract assets, trade and bills receivables, other
MIE RIS RIRE U R ER receivables, bank balances and cash and pledged
HIRITERERNEERRK B bank deposits. The carrying amounts of trade and
e IE R FEUR B2 4% ~ g bills receivables, other receivables, bank balances and
I IRITAE R RIRE UK E cash and pledged bank deposits represent the Group’s
IR TTERNREEARNER maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
MEMBEMSNRAEER assets. The tables below detail the credit risk exposures
%o TR EEEREE (B of the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL
ETHEREEREND NiEE assessment:
R
12(8R 2
REEETHR TEHEERSE AREAR(E
ARET
Internal 12-month Gross
20204 Kzt credit or carrying
2020 Notes rating lifetime ECL amount
RMB’000
FBIEMAETEMN  Financial assets at
TREE amortised costs
SRITEEGR RIRE Bank balances and cash 25 REH 1218 B T8 HA 37,322
N/A EEHHE
12-month-ECL
W EE Bills receivables 21 (M &) 128 B T8 5R 2,600
(note i) EEBE
12-month-ECL
B S EWIE Trade receivables 21 (Bfd5Ei) 2 HATAHA 87,492
(note i) (B=15E
Lifetime ECL
EREE Contract assets 23 (M) 2 HATALR 153,768
(note i) (B=15t
Lifetime ECL
HhpEu RIS Other receivables 22 (Pt &xii) 1218 B T8 58 84,766

(note ii) EEK518
12-month-ECL

—_ZE_EEER
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(b)

2 06 China New Energy Limited

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

MERKREEBRKRER (8

15 B Jm 2 R B 1B 5T 1 (4

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

1288 525
WEMEET4  TBEEEEE IREAAE
AR#&F 7z
Internal 12-month Gross
20194 Kzt credit or carrying
2019 Notes rating lifetime ECL amount
RMB'000
PSR A St EAY  Financial assets at
TREE amortised costs
EIEHIRTTER Pledged bank deposits 25 NER 128 37848 2321
N/A EEBE
12-month-ECL
SRITEHRNIRS Bank balances and cash 25 A 12{8 B 7848 26,466
N/A FEBE
12-month-ECL
FEWERE Bills receivables 21 B 1218 57858 -
N/A EEEB#E
12-month-ECL
B 5 EGIE Trade receivables 21 (P =%i) ZHATEH 105,752
(note i) BEEBE
Lifetime ECL
EREE Contract assets 23 (&) 2HATEHR 124,107
(note i) EERBE
Lifetime ECL
HAhpE WIS Other receivables 22 (Ff i) 128 37851 79,331
(note i) FEBE
12-month-ECL
Hia - Notes:
@ FE S ENTE ENER RS (i) For trade receivables, bills receivables and contract assets,

FIEEME > 7 EHEfEHER
SRR BIFBIB LA
EHIEAE R BRTIRA
17 R RETTIER T IHA9RE (B
FETTIRERTE) ) - RE S
HgREEZ S RENFRBIEE

BFR

(i) AETTABERRRERE &
BEFF B ERE S
FR BB ST LU SAE XA MEIE I © 78
20205F K2019F 12531 A » %%
ABBFUL R IBHT TR B EE AR o

(i)

the Group has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for items
that are subject to individual evaluation, which are assessed for
impairment individually, the Group determines the ECL on these
items by past due status.

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the
Group uses past due information to assess whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition. As at 31
December 2020 and 2019, these balances are either not past
due or does not have fixed repayment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Other receivables

The credit risk on other receivables is also limited because
of the historical settlement record, past experience,
and also quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.

Bank balances and cash and pleaged bank deposits

The credit risk of the Group on liquid funds is limited
because the majority of the counterparties are international
banks and state-owned banks with good reputation.

Bills receivables

The credit risk associated with bills receivables, which
are all bank acceptance drafts, is limited because the
accepting bank will cash the bills unconditionally when the
Group presents these bills on due dates.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for
contract assets and trade receivables.

—ECEEER
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38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) HEEMEEEEREER (& (b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
EE R R B EFFE (& Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
ESEKFHIEREREE (& Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)
AotEEAEEER B5EW To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
MERGEREEDREEREE and contract assets have been grouped based on shared
RSB ARE D E & F credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The
BEHARHAENTREIREARRH contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and
I BB [EIFE AL & [EIRY B 5 e IR have substantially the same risk characteristics as the
EAEBABUIERE R A trade receivables for the same types of contracts. The
It NEER A B S EUGEIERN Group has therefore concluded that the expected loss
FEHEEEAGREEBEERN rates for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation
IR ME of the loss rates for contract assets.
AR IR DRI ER S EES The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles
{E7< B HARI36(E B BB HE 2 of sales over a period of 36 months prior to each balance
IR U EZ B AR ERN sheet date respectively, and the corresponding historical
EEELEERE EL AR credit losses experienced within this period. The historical
THETRBU R M ER RS loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
FEWFIBSE N R B BRI =B looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting
BRI AIREEER the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
REEBBREEIRS £0EE Analysis of trade receivables, bills receivables and contract
SEWEIE - ERERNERE assets by categories based on method of provision for
EZ D credit loss allowance
RMB’000
ARETT
20204 2019
2020 2019
RERE ERGRRE EEGE EEBERE
Book value Credit loss allowance Book value Credit loss allowance
S8 Wl  SE  HA  BEE S8 AW 2B HAlw  BEE
Proportion Proportion Carrying Proportion Proportion Carrying
Category ) Amount ) Amount ©)  amownt  Amount ) Amount ) amount
Provision on individual basis BERI B2 R 80,224 33 (8,272) 103 71,952 - - - - -
Provson on portolobasis A& RS2 163,636 6 (7,149 105 146487 229859 0 (1712 74 2127%
Total 85t 243,860 100 (25,421) - 218439 229,859 100 (17,123) - 212,736

2 08 China New Energy Limited
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(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

Analysis of trade receivables, bills receivables and contract
assets by categories based on method of provision for
credit loss allowance (Continued)

(i) Analysis of trade receivables and contract assets
for which credit loss allowance is provided on an

BEEZ D individual basis:
RMB’000
AEETFIT
HARAEERR
Closing balance
IREEREE  SEBERE EEBI(%) BERR
Credit loss Proportion Reason for
ltem JEH Book value allowance (%) provision
Trade receivable 1 B 5 EEIa] 1,732 (1,732) 100% Note Ffiz¥ (i)
Trade receivables 2 B REFIE2 8 (8) 100%  Note Fi3E (ii)
Trade receivables 3* B3 FE3 36,100 (3,005) 8.3%  Note FffzE (iii)
Contract assets 1* ERBEL 42,384 (3,527) 8.3%  Note i3 (i)
80,224 (8,272)
* BRI R AR * Trade receivables 3 and contract assets 1 are the same
BEUBR—7-° party.

—ETEER
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k) - HIRAE ERIREST
ML EHE RS R

0] EEERS AR
Z 8 5 B WRRIE
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rEEEEESR
FFran R [EfEFS A
ERMZEZE
WA R 2 |
HE

(i) — EEESS #HR
rEBRZEH
AR EHHAE > FIE
ISR 2 E A
Be

iy BEEBRA N
20205F12H31H%#F
BEEARKREES
FRBEHEANETT
BT

2 1 0 China New Energy Limited

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

Analysis of trade receivables, bills receivables and contract
assets by categories based on method of provision for
credit loss allowance (Continued)

(i)

Analysis of trade receivables and contract assets
for which credit loss allowance is provided on an
individual basis: (Continued)

Description of trade receivables and contract
assets for which credit loss allowance is provided
on an individual basis:

Note:

The Group considered the reasonable and
evidenced information (including forward-
looking information) available in relation to the
counterparty, assessed the expected credit losses
and accrued loss allowance.

(i) The management believes that fully
impairment is necessary in respect of
this trade receivable as there are internal
changes of this trade receivable and the
Group consider to have litigation to collect
the debts.

(i) The management believes that fully
impairment is necessary in respect of this
trade receivable as the Group lost contact
with this debtor.

(iii) The management consider the debtor with
significant outstanding balances as at 31
December 2020 was assessed individually.
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(b) MBEREEBRRER (&)

EERBERBETE (&
EZBNNEARSFEE (B)
(iy — HEGEESREEGR

BENESRIEERS
FIEEZ I

BREKTER Trade and bills receivables
EREEUREFAEE  and contract assets

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

(ii) Analysis of trade receivables and contract assets
for which credit loss allowance is provided on

portfolio basis:
1£R 1225/ 2E3ER 3ENE st
AEETR AEETR ARETRT ARETR ARETR
Over Over
lyearand 2 yearsand
Within within within Over
1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

1#2020%12A31H At 31 December 2020

BEEEE-ZSMNE  Gross canying amount - trade and
BERENEENRE bills receivables and contracts

REE assets
EHEEX Expected loss rate
BERESE Loss allowance provision
FR3E Net carrying amount

134,857 13,037 4,519 11,223 163,636

4% 5% 8% 99% -

(4,918) (638) (376) (11,217) (17,149)

129,939 12,399 4,143 6 146,487
—ETEER
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38 ERMTH®@ 38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) HBEMREEEEREER (@ (b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
EE R R B EFFE (& Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
ESERFIERSFEE (B) Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)
1R 1R2ER 2E3ER 3EYE st
ARETRE AREFRT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Over Over
lyearand  2yearsand
Within within within Over
BARWHIEREKZ  Trade and bills receivables 1 year 2 years 3years 3years Total
BUAREREE and contract assets RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
#2019%12H318 At 31 December 2019
BEEEE-ZRERT  Gross camying amount - trade and
BEREWZENRE bills receivables and contracts
FEE assets 205,134 11,178 6,170 1377 229,859
EHEEX Expected loss rate 3% 2% 27% 100% -
BREELE Loss allowance provision (5,637) (2432) (1,677) (7377) (17,123)
IREFE Net carrying amount 199,497 8746 4493 = 212,736
FRNAERE S EWNIE M EWE Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade and
B IEEEIRESIINT ¢ bills receivables during the year is as follows:
20205 20194
2 HATERA 2 HATERA

EEGEHRBs EEBEES
AR®TT AR®ET T

2020 2019

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

Total Total

RMB’000 RMB’000

R1B1EM4EER Balance at 1 January 11,124 18,159
F AR EEE Impairment losses recognised

during the year 4,773 801

HSE I AR Bad debts written off (403) (7,836)

R12831 0 456 Balance at 31 December 15,494 11,124

2 1 2 China New Energy Limited
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ERTH @ 38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) HMEEAMREEEEREER (@ (b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
EERERBEFG (& Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
B S EKFIEREREE (&) Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)
FRNEMEEEENBBEER Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of contract
EEINT assets during the year is as follows:
20204 20194F
2 HATERA 2 HETEEA

FEBRE EEBEE
AR®FT AR®ET T

2020 2019

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

Total Total

RMB’000 RMB’000

18 1H SR Balance at 1 January 5,999 3,255
FAERN R EEE Impairment losses recognised

during the year 3,928 2,754

I EHIRAR Bad debts written off - (10)

R12831 B 4s &R Balance at 31 December 9,927 5,999

FRA BAEMERRIBRE5 181 Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of other
BEREIIT receivables during the year is as follows:

202045 20194

st R 12{E A 4t R 121E B

TEHREERSE ARG EEIR

AR#TT AR¥TT

2020 2019

Total and Total and

12m ECL 12m ECL

RMB’000 RMB’000

R1B 18 W4ERR Balance at 1 January 3 3
FFESRRY R B E Impairment losses recognised

during the year 7,510 -

R12831 B4 ER Balance at 31 December 7,513 3

—E_TFEFR
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38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) MBEREEBRRER () (b)

15 B Jm 2 R B 1B 5T 1 (4

BB T MR

RPEZRBEFERRERE
AT 2 UB TR B B ERVE R
FEREBNRBESRREE
KEEHEENBREHBARE
oo xEENEREBBESRT
TR R B &
ESNEEMREEEZ BRE

F o

FAEENBREEHERERFR
FRHREB BB R UHERE
MR TE R BV IRE R R m B R
RPBRBIESH K BR1> 5%
ERETRE TR B RIERR

e

2 1 ll- China New Energy Limited

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter
difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to shortage
of funds. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises
primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial
assets and liabilities. The Group'’s objective is to maintain
a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through financial support of business partners and
suppliers.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserve of cash to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and long term. At present, the Group is
financed by advance payments from customers and bank
borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the
Group’s financial liabilities at the reporting date based on

=p, contractual undiscounted payments:
—FR A — st
AR¥FT ARBETIT AR®FT
Less than More than
one year one year Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2020%12H31H 31 December 2020
RITRER Bank borrowings 11,454 10,030 21,484
B REMPEMIIE  Trade and other payables
(R EFERETIRER) (excluding VAT payable) 103,550 - 103,550
HEaRE Lease liabilities 1,240 2,039 3,279
116,244 12,069 128,313
2019FE12H31H 31 December 2019
PR Convertible notes 12,439 = 12,439
RITER Bank borrowings 19,445 = 19,445
B REMPEMFIE  Trade and other payables
(FEIEFE(IIEER)  (excluding VAT payable) 140,109 - 140,109
HEaE Lease liabilities 1,187 3,279 4,466
173,180 3,279 176,459
—E_TFEFR
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(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made
in determining the fair values of the financial instruments
that are recognised and measured at fair value in the
financial statements. To provide an indication about the
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the
Group has classified its financial instruments into the three

iz REE TR levels prescribed under the accounting standards. An
explanation of each level follows underneath the table.
WE A FEFE Recurring fair value measurements
34K “ast
AR®FT AR®FT
Level 3 Total
RMB’000 RMB’000
#2020%F12H31H At 31 December 2020
EREE Financial assets
BAFESAEMEE  Financial assets at fair value through
W SR EE other comprehensive income 4,845 4,845
#2019%F12H31H At 31 December 2019
ETREE Financial assets
BAFESFAEMEE  Financial assets at fair value through
W SR EE other comprehensive income 5,015 5,015
THan Financial liabilities
AR E R Convertible notes 11,847 11,847

2 1 6 China New Energy Limited
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38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(Continued)

Recurring fair value measurements (Continued)

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets (such as publicly traded
derivatives, and equity securities) is based
on quoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period. These instruments are
included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined
using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is the
case for unlisted equity securities.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 for
recurring fair value measurements during the year ended
31 December 2020 and 2019.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of
the reporting period.

—ETEER
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2 1 8 China New Energy Limited

38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(Continued)

Recurring fair value measurements (Continued)

Valuation techniques used to determine fair value

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

° For financial assets at FVTOCI, asset-based
approach (Note (i))

° For convertible notes, weighted scenario approach
(Note (ii))
Note i: The Group’s financial assets at FVTOCI represent 2.08%

equity interests in an unlisted company, Inner Mongolia
Zhongneng Biotechnology Co., Ltd. The investee was
established on 4 April 2019 and as at 31 December 2020,
the investee has not launched any operation, the majority of
the assets are one building and land use right. Therefore,
the valuer used asset-based approach for financial assets at
FVTOCI.

Note ii: The fair value of convertible notes was arrived at by
calculating the weighted average fair value of the convertible
notes under two scenarios: disapproval and approval of
listing on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Under the
disapproval and approval of listing on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange scenario, the fair value was arrived at
using discounted cash flow analysis and market approach
respectively.
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38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

ETRMIANAFEFE (@)

B

BEHATENE (2

IEEBA B IR R LT ER

TREFABRAEIRATESE
PRAAEARN AT ERREABIRIIE
BEK (BRFTRMEERN R

(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(Continued)

Recurring fair value measurements (Continued)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

The following table summarises the quantitative
information about the significant unobservable inputs used
in level 3 fair value measurements (see (b) above for the

b)) : valuation techniques adopted):
20205
120206 EAFTAHR 12A31A% AFIREGARES
st 12A31AMATE BAHE BAREEE ATENRG
Fair value as at  Significant Range of inputs as at  Relationship of unobservable
Description 31 December 2020  unobservable inputs 31 December, 2020 inputs to fair value
BATEFARMEE 4845 FREE-1E- 75%84%  PAEHE A ATE#S
WEHNEREE BEkRE
Financial assets at FVTOCI 4845 Rate of newness — 75%-84%  The higher the rate of newness, the
Property, plant higher the fair value.
and equipment
B AR,/ FHK) 110 mEHEs IATEHS.
Market price 110 The higher the market price, the

(RMB/square metre)

higher the fair value.

—ETEER
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38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

ETHMIANAFEFE (@)

BERATFEHE (7

1B BN 15 R H A

Rz (&

AT

(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(Continued)

Recurring fair value measurements (Continued)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value (Continued)

20195
2019 EARAHZE 12A31AK  AARZRHAHIEE
it 12A31EMATE BARE BAMEEE ATENRG
Fair value as at ~ Significant Range of inputs as at  Relationship of unobservable
Description 31 December 2019  unobservable inputs 31 December, 2019 inputs to fair value
BATES ARMEE 5015 FME-1%- 85%-90%  MEEHE AIATEER
G e BER#E
Financial assets at FVTOCI 5,015 Rate of newness - 85%-90%  The higher the rate of newness, the
Property, plant and higher the fair value.
equipment
B AR®,/FHK) 128 mEHEE I ATEES.
Market price 128 The higher the market price, the
(RMB/square metre) higher the fair value.
ARRE 11847 HEIRE 203% HREEE AIATEEE.
Convertible notes 11,847 Discount rate 203%  The higher the discounted rate, the
lower the fair value.
HERB BB LT 40%  HAEREBHRPT EmAYA Y
)5k HA BIATEHS
Probability for approval of 40%  The higher the probability for
listing on the Hong Kong approval of listing on the Hong
Stock Exchange Kong Stock Exchange, the

FEBNZAFES ARMER
By R E A R PR ERTD
MBI G ERMGEMETH
B W BB REEMREER

R RAERETE R

22 0 China New Energy Limited

higher the fair value.

The financial assets at FVTOCI and convertible notes of the Group
was valued by independent and qualified valuers. Discussions

of valuation processes and results were held between the Chief
Financial Officer and the valuers.



RS BERBIN FTESEEMBARETT)

38 EMT A w

(c)

ETRMIANAFEFE (@)

FIRAFEEEHEHIK

38

iR e TS IRARIEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

BATER A

Hh e mhem

NEREE

AR¥FT

Financial assets

at FVTOCI

RMB’000

KR201941H1H At 1 January 2019 =

EEE Purchased 5,000
AU Total gains:

—REMEERE — in other comprehensive income 15

72019412831 H At 31 December 2019 5,015
HAE5I8E Total losses:

—REMEEKE — in other comprehensive income (145)

Hith Others (25)

122020 12H31H At 31 December 2020 4,845

Gyt

AR¥FT

Convertible Notes

RMB’000

20191811 At 1 January 2019 =

BITARAR R Upon issue of convertible notes 10,606

NE(EEE Change in fair value 1,241

1R201912H31H At 31 December 2019 11,847

AR Conversion to shares (10,385)

N EES Change in fair value (1,462)

112020 12H31H At 31 December 2020 =

—E_TFEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B EREBIN FRESEEENA AR TT) (Al amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

39 FEHRERERMEE 39 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
(a) PBREAIEMAEF ELEFRER (@  Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash
EFEMNHER used in operations
HZE12H31HLLEE
20204 20194
AR®BTT AR®EF T
Year ended 31 December
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
FRETISIR AR F] Profit before income tax 56,944 72,455
KU R Adjustments for:
— AT A R — Finance costs — net 1,370 1,335
— W BB S — Depreciation of property,
e plant and equipment 3,454 2,188
— B EITE — Depreciation of right-of-use
assets 1,131 1,131
—E B ERH — Amortisation of intangible assets 1,072 722
—MEBEEREREE - Netimpairment losses on
AEEIEFER financial assets and contract
assets 16,211 3,555
— R AERIEN  — Share-based payment expense
fisz 948 461
— ARG ER AT E — Fair value (gains)/losses on
(&) #548 convertible notes (1,462) 1,241
—EREE, ) — Exchange losses/(gains), net
JFRE 1,409 (744)
—HEMERREZ — Loss on disposal of property and
518 equipment 179 =
—WEH S RBE — Contract assets written off 2,752 =
— U EEER — Recovery of bad debts (3,270) =
SEESEFHAIZ Operating profit before working
=il capital changes 80,738 82,344
EEBETET Changes in working capital:
—GaREE — Contract assets (32,413) (29,643)
—78 — Inventories (2,612) 303
—BSRBFIEREW - Trade and bills receivables
ERMAEMER and other receivables and
FIB B FIA prepayment (66,573) (83,402)
—aFaRE — Contract liabilities 5,086 (5,388)
—BEREMMENMTUE - Trade and other payables (23,616) 61,221
—IRIEUTA — Deferred income 2,400 =
& (FrR) /Fr83E%  Cash (used in)/generated
from operations (36,990) 24,935

222 China New Energy Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B AERPIN FRESEEMNA AR TIT) (Al amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

FEBHIK

FEHIIN S 2N EREFEB R

39 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Net debt reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the

BESEHE DT o movements in net debt for each of the year presented.
202045 20194
AREBTT AR®FTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

REMIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 37,322 26,466
IRTTER R AR ZSE  Bank borrowings and convertible

MEE&E—TRE) notes and lease liabilities — current

——FRNER — repayable within one year (12,247) (31,861)
RITERREEESE Bank borrowings and lease liabilities

—IERE — non-current (11,432) (2,889)
RETS Net debt 13,643 (8,284)

202045 20194
AR®BTT AR®F T
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
REMIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 37,322 26,466
MEF—E TR Gross debt — fixed interest rates (23,679) (34,750)
RETS Net debt 13,643 (8,284)
—E_TFEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B EREBIN FRESEEENA AR TT) (Al amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

39 FEeHRERERMFT @ 39 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) FEHHIKR (@ (b)  Net debt reconciliation (Continued)

R—ER
ek R—FR fém— HEN HERRA- HERR-
ReEE HENED FRE FHBRRRE ik ] FETE st
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETR

Convertible Lease

Cash  Borrowings  Borrowings  notes due Lease Liabilities

and cash  due within - non- within  Liabilities - non-
equivalents 1 year current 1 year - current current Total

RMB'000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMBOOO ~ RMB'O00  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000

120195 Net debt as at

18188 1 January 2019

BEH 6,358 (6,540) - - (1,489) (3315) (4,986)
REne Cash flows 19364 (12401) - (10606) 842 - (2,801)
NFEEEE Fair value losses = = = (1,241) = = (1,241)
ERipET] Reclassification = = = = (426) 426 =
HWEEE Translation differences 744 - - - - - 744

120195 Net debt as at
12831HM 31 December 2019

BR 26466 (18941) - (1ea) (1,073) (2,839) (8,284)
Rene Cash flows 12,102 7,769 (9,500) - 955 - 11,326
NFEWT Fair value gains = = = 1,462 - - 1,462
BRAKRN Converted to shares = = = 10,385 - - 10,385
EoEiibags Reclassification - - - = (957) 957 =
HWEEE Translation differences (1,246) - - - - - (1,246)

12020F Net debt as at
12R31HKH 31 December 2020
FEH 37,322 (11,172) (9,500) = (1,075) (1,932) 13643
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(b)

IR E TR R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

R Bk 75 45 BR (@  Related party balances
BiRAE S 2 W R E R G EREB Details of the outstanding balances with related parties are
RS BRI R R MIEE225 set out in the consolidated statement of financial position
27° and in Notes 22 and 27.
FTEEEEHM (b)  Key management compensation
20204 20194
AREETT AR®EFTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
TE e Ttk Salaries, wages, bonuses and other
HAEH benefits 3,075 2012
DUBRAD A EERIBN Share-based compensations 240 343
3,315 2,355

41 THAEE

1R2020F12H31H > AEET FERER
HAER

42 BEAEIE

FR2020F12H31 8 > AERWEE R ER
ERVS L

41 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities.

42 CAPITAL COMMITMENT

The Group did not have any material capital commitment as at 31
December 2020.

—ETEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RSB BERBIN FTEEERE A ARETT)

BRBEMBRARK B

43

28

(@ FAFMBRIER

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

43 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY

(@) Statement of financial position of the Company

20205 20194
ARETT AREEF T
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

BE ASSETS
ERENEE Non-current asset
R—REMEBASIA  Investments in a subsidiary

®"E 86,034 10,501
RMEE Current assets
FEU AR B Dividend receivables 6,013 6,145
HhFEWRIERFE  Other receivables and

(NERET prepayments 3,387 8,752
IRTTHEFRIRE Bank balances and cash 10,332 778

19,732 15,675

HEE Total assets 105,766 26,176
1 EQUITY
TATEBA Equity attributable to

FE(L S Owners of the Company
%N Share capital 1,762 1,444
HAuhAE B Other reserves 156,619 57,839
RETEIR Accumulated losses (58,739) (66,222)
Mt (BS54 Total equity/(deficit) 99,642 (6,939)
aE LIABILITIES
mENEE Current liabilities
AR Convertible notes - 11,847
FE—RIMIEBAS  Amounts due to a subsidiary

=HIg 883 17,207
HhpEI I8 Other payables 5,033 3,847
FEIIRIE Tax payable 208 214

6,124 33,115

wmas Total liabilities 6,124 33,115
BERKREE Total equity and liabilities 105,766 26,176

RRB MR ER B FL20225F4
R22BHEFEHERKET

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 April 2022

2 AT ATRRES and are signed on its behalf by:
REE RE K
Yu Weijun Tang Zhaoxing
EFE EBE
Director Director
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS BERBIN FTESEEMBARETT)

(All amounts in Renminbi thousands unless otherwise stated)

EATIMFEAR TR B f#HE 43 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
S5 @ AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
(b) ZFARAFEBESD (b)  Reserve Movement of the Company
Migfa
AERN  MEBRE EERG
RipEE  ARRE it E  RER fst
A\EETT ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARETT ARETR
WEze  HEea  HEe) B30
Foreign
Share-based currency Treasury
Share payment translation shares  Accumulated
premium reserves reserves reserves losses Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Note 35(@)  Nole 35(d)  Note 35(e)  Note 35(1)
20191818  Balance at 1 January 2019
HhsER 68,330 556 (7,678) (4,681) (50979) 6,048
ERNER Loss for the year = - - - (15,243) (15,243)
Hitzmks Other comprehensive income = - 254 = = 254
DR ARMENA  Share-based payment
B eXpEnses - 461 - = = 461
SEEERGD Cancellation of treasury
shares (4,584) - - 4,681 - 97
201912831  Balance at
HhsER 31 December 2019 64,246 1017 (7424) - (66,222) (83%3)
120201818  Balance at 1 January 2020
WeR 64,246 1017 (7 424) - (66,222) (83%3)
FRHER] Profit for the year - - - = 7483 7483
Ht2ERE Other comprehensive income = - 31,282 - - 31,282
DR ARENA  Share-based payment
EEi eXpenses - 948 . - - T
BT Issuance of shares 72,965 - - - - 72965
BRMEERS  Transaction costs atfributable
WA to issue of shares (21,700) - - - - (21,700)
AERZHEERE  Convertible notes Transfer to
&5 shares 10333 = = = = 10333
TEERARSE  Exercise of the pre-IPO Share
Bl S Option Scheme 6917 (1,965) - - - 4952
#2020%12831F  Balance at
igfegd 31 December 2020 132,761 - 23858 - (68,739) 97,880
TECTEFR
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

FRIFMAEREE F20174F 2018F ~2019F K The following table summarises the results, and assets and liabilities of the
2020 12F31HIEEEZ #:E  BENEE Group for the years ended 31 December 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020:

REFHZE20174F 2018F K2019%12831HLE  The summary of the results, and assets and liabilities of the Group for the
FEZEE SENEEHMEREEANATIHE  years ended 31 December 2017, 2018 and 2019 was extracted from the
#20205E6 8300 2 B ST c AEME ZE2016  prospectus of the Company dated 30 June 2020. No financial statements
F12831HIEFE T ZER FFRR of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 have been published.

HBE12H31HLEEE
202045 20194 20184 20174
AEBTRT ARETRT ARETRT ARETR
Year ended 31 December
2020 2019 2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

SeERmkEMEEKER
TEEE

SESE

£

EH=

NEER AEGET]

BHEE

REMBRAREEER

FRBEE

RENEE

TS

REER
NEERNBEERRH#E

BEABRX

Major Items of Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

Revenue 521,561 398,558 249,978 257,109
Gross profit 132,716 109,417 72,604 77,321
Gross profit margin 25.4% 27.5% 29.0% 30.1%
Profit attributable to the owners of the

company 44,364 59,168 45,821 45,659
Net profit margin 8.5% 14.8% 18.3% 17.8%

Major Items of Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position

Non-current assets 51,031 45,464 27,599 16,567
Current assets 448,140 355,569 221,323 176,314
Non-current liabilities 13,832 2,891 - -
Current liabilities 242,729 267,712 177,896 163,231
Capital and reserves attributable to

the owners of the company 242,610 130,430 71,026 29,650
Gearing ratio N/ARE 0.06 0.00 0.06

228 China New Energy Limited






	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Financial Highlights
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
	Corporate Governance Report
	Environmental, Social and Governance Report
	Report of the Directors
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Financial Summary
	Back Cover



